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MESSAGE OF

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ CHAIRMAN

F

irst of all, may I act on behalf of the
Board of Directors, the Management and
the whole staff and officers of Eximbank
to extend our gratitude and appreciation
to valued shareholders, customers as well
as partners for your company, support and
sharing with our Bank during the past time.

Eximbank has experienced 2015 with great
difficulties and challenges. Specifically, it
had to focus on resolving the outstanding
issues being the retrospective adjustment
of the profits during 2010 - 2013 which were
not recognized as of 31/12/2015 and resulted
in negative accumulated retained earnings of
817.5 billion VND.

This issue continues to be handled, while risk
provisioning is also a requirement to reflect the
transparency and enhance the business quality
of Eximbank.
The new Board of Directors of the VIth tenure
(2015 - 2020) elected on 15/12/2015 with 9
members include those who have experienced
different key positions in banking, law and
other business industries. The Board of
Directors of the new term undertakes to
lead the Bank’s operations in line with five
vital principles:
(1) Transparency; (2)
Law compliance; (3) Professionalism; (4)
Efficiency; (5) Direction towards the best
practices and standards, so as to sustainably
develop Eximbank for permanent benefits
of customers, shareholders, employees and
prestige of its own.

4

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
www.eximbank.com.vn

Turning to a new stage, the Board of
Directors together with the Management
expresses determination in comprehensive
transformation.
Concretely,
Eximbank
shall, upon working with strategic senior
consultants and experts (a) strengthen and
improve staff performance, (b) concentrate
on developing more professional and lively
system procedures, (c) establish and carry
out projects of restructuring and developing
Eximbank’s strategies in the short, medium
and long run, and particularly (d) pay
attention to build up Eximbank’s brand name
in a professional way.
In order to complete the said strategy, the
handling of non-performing loans and
prevention of overdue loans shall be closely
directed for execution, ensuring safe and
sustainable fund structure. In addition, the
execution of one of the most important
projects being the investment in upgrading the
corebanking system by modern technology
aims at enabling Eximbank to strengthen
the risk management, develop diversified
products and services for retail banking, and
promote traditional business lines which are
the Bank’s strengths such as trade finance, or
export - import finance. This is the competitive
advantage that will be further promoted in the
forthcoming time. Eximbank shall step by step
become a universal bank with the best service
quality.
We do believe that such concrete steps promise
to lead Eximbank to a positive transition and
bring the Bank back to its orbit of stable and
sustainable growth.
On behalf of the Board of Directors

Chairman
LE Minh QuOc
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MESSAGE OF

THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Eximbank restructured assets and liabilities items by strongly
reducing interbank funding, promoting fund raising from
individual customers, boosting retail credits. Balance sheet
was contracted in terms of scale; however, asset structure
was adjusted towards healthier and firmer direction, creating
foundation for sustainable growth.
Eximbank’s development orientations in 2016 are to continue
handling the outstanding issues and consolidate operation
backgrounds, focus on developing core business activities,
enhance financial capability and governance competence,
quickly resume Eximbank’s position and scale in the financial
market, aiming at the objective of sustainable growth in the
long run. Some key business targets in 2016 of the bank are to
strive to expand its total assets by 14%, fund mobilization from
economic entities and residents by 15% and credit exposure
by 10%, and to have an NPL ratio of below 3% and anticipated
profit before tax of 720 billion VND.
Accomplishment of the above targets is challenging to
Eximbank in the context current business environment still
faces with many difficulties. In order to successfully perform
2016 business plan, the Management has given out 4 main
groups of measures:

Dear Sirs,

2

015 has ended with the
global economic picture still
dealing with many difficulties.
Political and social conflicts have
been happening in many places.
For Vietnam’s economy, 2015
was a year marking quite strong
recovery. GDP grew higher than the
target set out and was the highest
growth rate during the past 5 years.
Inflation continued to remain low,
macroeconomic situation was stable,
real estate market evolved positively,
capital absorption capacity of the
economy rose high, contributing to
well expand the whole system’s credit
scale in 2015. The economy had
new advancements and integrated
deeper into the world’s economy
through various trade agreements
having been entered into.
For Eximbank, 2015 was a year full
of obstacles and challenges. Tough
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business environment and changes in
senior personnel have partly affected
Eximbank’s business operations. The
key business indicators such as total
assets, deposits, loan balance, pretax profit did not reach the proposed
plan. As of end of 2015, total assets
were 124,850 billion VND, decreasing
by 35,295 billion VND compared to
the early year, completing 69.4%
of the plan. Funds raised from
economic entities and residents
were 98,431 billion VND, contracting
by 2.949 billion VND, finishing 78.1%
of the plan. Total credit exposure
(including loans and corporate
bonds) reached 96,188 billion VND,
dropping 1,768 billion VND from the
beginning of the year, fulfilling 88.4%
of the plan. Of which, total outstanding
loans to economic entities and residents
was 84,760 billion VND, reducing by 2,387
billion VND. Pre-tax profit reached 61
billion VND, completing 6.1% of the plan.

Although profit result
of Eximbank failed to
meet the plan set out,
Eximbank’s businesses
still maintained stable
development and such
results accurately
reflected Eximbank’s
determination in drastic
handling of outstanding
issues of prior years,
especially those of
bad debt handling
and provisioning
strengthening, with NPL
ratio falling to 1.86%.

Group of measures to restructure operating apparatus:
Restructure the operating apparatus at the Head Office
and branches and transaction offices for a streamlined
direction with the aim of serving customers in the best and
fastest manner; Consolidate the apparatus of the Divisions,
Departments, Sections at the Head Office, especially Corporate
Banking Division, and establish Trade Operations Center of
Eximbank; Improve structure of sales force (RBO and RM),
strengthen the role of management and supervision of the
Head Office over the sales team; Specify reward and sanction
policies towards the units; Improve operational supervision
structure to strengthen supervision and management of risks
in the entire system, especially credit risk management.
Group of measures of financial restructuring to make
Eximbank develop sustainably: Restructure assets – liabilities
items to ensure the financial indicators to be balanced,
assuring effective and sustainable business operations;
Structure the funds raised from organizations and residents
towards focusing on strengthening medium and long term
segment to ensure capital source for mid- and long-term credit
granting and also ensure ratio of short-term funding used for
mid- and long-term loans to be maximum <40% for system
liquidity safety; Strengthen retail banking activities; Promote
trade finance activities; Study plans to increase charter capital
in the following years in order to strengthen the financial
capability to meet requirements of funding and operation
scale expansion.
Group of measures to focus on strengthening debt handling:
Develop debt handling plans based on debt classification

by each particular group with specific measures to quickly
recover arrears and bad debts. Debt handling should be
considered a key task to reduce the burden of bad debt
cost on profit of Eximbank in the coming years; Assign
debt handling plan to each region, branch. The degree of
completion of debt handling target should be treated as
one criterion in evaluating the management capability
of the business units’ leaders; Empower initiative to the
Debt Handling Center, Branch Directors and Transaction
Office Managers in debt recovery such as negotiating to
lower lending interest rates for overdue loans, proactively
handling debt disposal expenses in line with the general
regulated levels as issued and making finalization on the
basis of recovered debts, etc.; Consolidate the operating
apparatus of the Debt Handling Center and AMC to improve
operation efficiency.
Construction of infrastructures to serve for business
activities: Consider building Eximbank’s headquarter to
stabilize the working premise of the Head Office, centralize
the management over the departments, sections under
Head Office, reduce the rental cost in the future, facilitate the
dealing of partners and contribute to improve Eximbank’s
brand image; Consider improving the quality of infrastructure
at branches and transaction offices towards consistence
in offices’ facade, professionalism and beauty in the
arrangement of those departments dealing with customers,
especially customer service transaction counters; Review
the location of the offices of existing branches, transaction
offices towards concentrating at the favorable business
areas in order to improve efficiency in marketing to potential
customers with cost in line with business performance of
the units; Gather personnel and resources into the new
Corebanking system development project, Data Center
construction project to ensure project progress.
With solidarity and dedication of the entire staff and officers
of Eximbank together with strategic orientations from the
Board of Directors as well as suitable and efficient regulating
measures from the Management, Eximbank will soon
overcome the tough period to be back to the sustainable
development trajectory.
On behalf of the Management and all employees of Eximbank,
I would like to extend the sincerest thanks to the valued
shareholders, customers, local and international partners,
especially the State Bank of Vietnam for having always
accompanied with and assisting Eximbank. We do look
forward to continuing to receive your kind support, sharing
and feedbacks for Eximbank to further improve and develop
more sustainably and strongly in the forthcoming time.

On behalf of the Management
Acting Chief Executive Officer
TRAN TAN LOC
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General Information

Registered Vietnamese Name
Registered English Name

: Ngân hàng Thương mại Cổ phần Xuất Nhập khẩu Việt Nam
: Vietnam Export Import Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Vietnam Eximbank)

Chairman of the Board of Directors
Acting Chief Executive Officer

: Mr. Le Minh Quoc
: Mr. Tran Tan Loc

Registered Head Office address

: Level 8, Suite No. L8-01-11 + 16, VINCOM CENTER
		 72 Le Thanh Ton, Ben Nghe Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

Office address

:
		
Tel
:
Fax
:
Website
:

Level 8, Suite No. L8-01-11 + 16, VINCOM CENTER
72 Le Thanh Ton, Ben Nghe Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
(84-8) 3821 0056
(84-8) 3821 6913
http://www.eximbank.com.vn

Regulato
Auditor

: The State Bank of Vietnam
: KPMG Limited Vietnam
: Level 10, Sunwah Tower, 115 Nguyen Hue, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

Date of first registration
Date of registration for the 25th modification
Authority of first registration
Business Operation License
Tax registration certificate number

:
:
:
:
:

Stock information
Stock name

: HoChiMinh Stock Exchange
: Vietnam Export Import Commercial Joint Stock Bank (Eximbank)

Stock code

: EIB

23/07/1992
17/08/2015
Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City
11/NH-GP ngày 06/04/1992
0301179079

History and Development

Establishment
Vietnam Export Import Commercial Joint Stock Bank is one of the first
commercial joint stock banks of Vietnam, established on 24 May 1989
under Decision No. 140/CT by the Chairman of the Council of Ministers with
the original name being Vietnam Export Import Bank.
Vietnam Export Import Bank officially came into operation on 17 January
1990 and received its License of Operation No. 11/NH-GP dated 06 April
1992 by the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam allowing the Bank to
operate for a term of 50 years with the registered charter capital of 50 billion
VND (equivalent to 12.5 million USD at the time of establishment) under the
new name being Vietnam Export Import Commercial Joint Stock Bank (or
“Eximbank” in short).

Business Lines
Eximbank’s major business lines include:

Short, medium and long term fund mobilization in form of savings 		
deposits, payment deposits, certificates of deposit;
Receipt of funds entrusted for investment;  
Receipt of funds from domestic and foreign credit institutions;
Short, medium and long term lending;
Discount of commercial papers and valuable papers;
Foreign exchange trading;
International settlements;
Investment in securities and valuable papers;
services of acquiring and issuing domestic cards , international Visa, 		
MasterCard, and Visa Debit cards;
Cash services;
Package financial services for overseas study;
Financial advisory services;
Corporate bond purchase;
Gold bar trading;
Custodian service;
and other banking services, etc.

Giới thiệu đồng phục nhân viên Eximbank theo Nhận diện thương hiệu mới.
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History and Development (continued)

208

transaction points nationwide

Operation Locations

22

network has covered
provinces and cities nationwide

Eximbank has its Head Office located at Level 8, Suite No. L8-01-11+16,
Vincom Center, 72 Le Thanh Ton, Ben Nghe Ward, District 1, Ho Chi
Minh City, Vietnam. At the end of 2015, Eximbank’s operation network
comprises of 208 banking units at cities and provinces nationwide,
including: 44 Branches, 163 Transaction Offices, and 1 Savings Fund.

Currently, Eximbank’s transaction network has covered 22
provinces and cities nationwide, including Hanoi, Hai Phong,
Nghe An, Quang Ninh, Quang Ngai, Quang Nam, Da Nang,
Hue, Nha Trang, Lam Dong, Dac Lac, Binh Phuoc, Binh Duong,
Dong Nai, Ba Ria - Vung Tau, Ho Chi Minh City, Long An, An
Giang, Tien Giang, Can Tho, Bac Lieu and Kien Giang.

Listing
Eximbank obtained the approval from HoChiMinh Stock Exchange to list
its shares from 20 October 2009 under Decision No. 128/QD-SGDHCM.
Stock name

: Stock of Vietnam Export Import
Commercial Joint Stock Bank

Stock type

: Common stock

Par value

: VND10,000 per share

Total listed volume

: 1,235,522,904 shares

Total listed value

: 12,355,229,040,000 VND (as per par value)

1,235,522,904
Total listed volume

12,355,229,040,000 VND
Total listed value (as per par value)
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History and Development (continued)

2015

Prominent events

through years of operation

Selected by The Banker magazine to appear in its Top 1,000 World Banks in 2014. Eximbank is honoured to be
ranked in the Top World Banks for many consecutive years;

Awarded by EuroMoney Magazine with “Best Bank in Vietnam 2014”.

1991, 1992
Entrusted by the State Bank of Vietnam and the Ministry of Finance to carry
out part of the Swedish non-refundable finance program extended to
Vietnamese entities having demands for importing goods from Sweden.

Join the Electronic Clearing System of the State Bank of Vietnam.

Eximbank is one of the first banks becoming member to issue
JCB-branded international card in Vietnam.

1995
for

Worldwide

Interbank

2013
Awarded by The Asian Banker Magazine with “Best Managed Bank in Vietnam 2013”; by EuroMoney Magazine
with “Best Bank in Vietnam 2013”; and continue to be ranked in the Top 1,000 World Banks 2013 by The Banker
magazine.

1993

Join SWIFT (Society
Telecommunication);  

2014

Financial

Selected as 1 among 6 Vietnamese banks to
participate in the Bank Modernization Project
organized by the State Bank of Vietnam and
funded by the World Bank.
1997
Become a principal member of MasterCard International.

1998
Become an official member of Visa International.

2012
Presented “Best Domestic Bank in Vietnam 2012” award by the AsiaMoney magazine;

Continue to be ranked in the Top 1,000 World Banks 2012 by The Banker
magazine.
Officially launch the new set of brand identity
2011
EIncrease the charter capital to 12,355 billion VND;

Selected by The Banker magazine to appear in its Top 1,000 World Banks
and Top 25 Banks by Asset Growth in 2010.

2003
Launch the online Intra-bank Payment System in the whole network.

2005

2010
Increase the charter capital to 10,560 billion VND.

Be the first bank in Vietnam to issue international Visa Debit cards.

2009

2007

Raise the charter capital to 8,800 billion VND and officially have shares listed on HoChiMinh Stock Exchange.

Sign strategic partnership agreements with 17 domestic and foreign
investors, especially the strategic alliance agreement with Sumitomo
Mitsui Banking Corporation (SMBC) of Japan.

2008
Increase the charter capital to 7,220 billion VND.
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MILESTONES in 2015

Ngày 18/01/2015

Eximbank
tổ chức
kỷ niệm

AWARDS IN 2015

On 14/04/2015

25

In Hong Kong, Eximbank was honorably bestowed

Best Trade Finance Bank 2015 award by The Asian Banker.
This was the second time The Asian Banker presented awards to
Eximbank.

năm thành lập.
On 07/05/2015

Straight Through Processing

On 26/06/2015

- STP Award in 2014. This award was given as a recognition for
Eximbank’s excellence in international settlement operations, reflected
by the high rate of automatic and straight through processed messages
which has always been nearly 100%.

Eximbank organized the Cooperation Agreement
Signing Ceremony to guarantee for house buyers
with Khang Dien House Trading and Investment
Joint Stock Company to ensure customers’ interests
and create trust for house buyers and investors.

On 16/09/2015

Vietnam Export Import Commercial Joint Stock
Bank (Eximbank) and Jetstar Pacific low-cost airline
cooperated with JCB International Co., Ltd. (JCB) to
launch Jetstar - Eximbank JCB co-branded card.

Eximbank and Infosys signed contract to deploy
Infosys Finacle Core Banking software solution to
gradually replace the existing corebanking system
being in use. The new corebanking solution
will enable Eximbank to create breakthroughs
in exploiting and developing more banking
products and services, and conduct stricter and
more efficient internal management.
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Eximbank was honorably bestowed

Best Local Cash Management Bank
in Vietnam 2015

by Asiamoney Magazine – Hong Kong as voted by small enterprises with
annual turnover of below 100 million USD. It is known that Asiamoney
was established in 1989, and is a subsidiary of Euromoney (UK). It is one
of the leading magazines in banking and finance in Asia Pacific. “Best
Local Cash Management Bank” poll is among the survey and award
programs held annually by Asiamoney for financial institutions around
the world, especially in Asia Pacific.

On 29/09/2015

On 19/11/2015

Standard Chartered Bank (SCB) visited
and bestowed Eximbank with the

On 29/09/2015

Vietnam Export Import Commercial Joint Stock Bank - Eximbank was
honored to receive Excellence in

International Payments

award bestowed by JPMorgan Chase Bank (US). This was a recognition
for Eximbank’s excellence in automatic processing of international
payment messages (money transfers to customers). The award was
given based on the criteria applied consistently by JPMorgan Chase
worldwide, including both quantity and quality of straight through
payment messages being processed.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Financial highlights
over the years

Consolidated total assets

Consolidated pre-tax profit

ROE

UNIT: Billion VND

UNIT: Billion VND

UNIT: %

183,567

170,156

169,835

160,145

124,850

4,056

2,851

828

354

61

20.39

13.3

4,3

2.45

0.3

12,355

billion VND

Charter capital as at
31/12/2015

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Total consolidated capital funding
UNIT: Billion VND
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2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Total consolidated loan balance
UNIT: Billion VND

72,777

85,519

82,650

101,380

98,431

74,663

74,922

83,354

87,147

84,760

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015
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2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Accumulated
balance of reserves
established from
post-tax profit Above

1,500

billion VND
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Organization

Structure

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
(board of internal auditors)
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OFFICE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COUNCILS/COMMITTEES

EXIMBANK CONSTRUCTION WORK
PROJECT MANAGEMENT UNIT
(Specialized unit)

TRAINING CENTER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
COUNCILS/COMMITTEES
VICE PRESIDENTS
Chief Accountant

Alliance Dept.

Corporate Banking Division

Corporate Planning Dept.
Fund Management Dept.
International Relations Dept.
Marketing Dept.
Quality Management Dept.

Market Risk Management Dept.
Operational Risk Management Dept.
Credit Risk Management Dept.
Legal & Compliance Dept.
General Accounting Dept.

NPL Analysis Dept.
Assets - Liabilities Handling Dept.
Dispute Resolution Dept.
Regional Debt Handling Teams
Network Expansion & Support Dept.
Administration Dept.
Eximbank Representative Office in Hanoi Cash Dept
Human Resources Management Dept.

Business Development Division

Corporate Customers Dept.
International Settlement Dept.

Retail Banking Center

Sales Management Dept.
Sales Support Dept.

Retail Banking Division

Individual Customer Service Dept.

Card Center

Card Sales Promotion Dept.
Card Business Management Dept.

Operational Supervision Division

Treasury Division

Debt Handling Center

Credit Center

Cash-Administration Division

Valuation Center

Human Resources Division

Information Technology Division

Gold Trading Center
Foreign Currency Trading Dept.
Financial Investment Dept.
Fund Trading Dept.
Credit Appraisal Dept.
Credit Analysis Dept.
Credit Support Section

Asset Valuation Dept.
Regional Valuation Sections
Data, Infrastructure Management Center
IT Service Development Center
IT System Safety, Security Center
Electronic Banking Dept.

REGIONS
Regional Offices
BRANCHES

TRANSACTION OFFICES/POINTS
20
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Management Structure

Development

orientations

and Subsidiary

Development

Management Structure
The Board of Directors
Mr. Le Minh Quoc

Chairman – Independent Member of the Board of Directors

Mr. Cao Xuan Ninh

Member

Mr. Le Van Quyet

Member

Mr. Ngo Thanh Tung

Member

Mr. Dang Anh Mai

Member

Mr. Hoang Tuan Khai

Member

Mr. Nguyen Quang Thong

Member

Mr. Naoki Nishizawa

Member

Mr. Yasuhiro Saitoh

Member

The Board of Supervisors
Mr. Tran Le Quyet

Chief Supervisor

Mr. Tran Ngoc Dung

Member

Mr. Dang Huu Tien

Member

Mrs. Pham Thi Mai Phuong

Member

Mr. Trinh Bao Quoc

Member

Eximbank will take advantage of market
opportunities to maintain sustainable growth
pace, strengthen and expand its customer
base, heighten position and develop Eximbank
into a modern commercial joint stock bank at
which all shareholders, investors, customers
and partners are confident with their capital
investment efficiency and safety; a bank
that offers a variety of high quality banking
and financial products and services; and a
brand with high prestige in the banking and
financial industry and great contribution to
the community and society.

The Management
Mr. Tran Tan Loc

Acting Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Dao Hong Chau

Vice President

Mr. Nguyen Quoc Huong

Vice President

Mrs. Dinh Thi Thu Thao

Vice President

Mr. Nguyen Ho Hoang Vu

Vice President cum Chief Executive Officer

Mrs. Van Thai Bao Nhi

Vice President

Mr. Masashi Mochizuki

Vice President

Mr. Le Anh Tu

Vice President

Mrs. Bui Do Bich Van

Vice President

Mr. Le Hai Lam

Vice President

Mr. Nguyen Quang Triet

Vice President

Mr. Nguyen Van Hao

Vice President

Mr. Bui Van Dao

Vice President

Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Ha

Chief Accountant

Subsidiary
Eximbank has one subsidiary which is

Debt Management and Asset Exploitation One-member Limited Liability Company
with the registered charter capital of 1,700 billion VND, located at Building No. 24B Truong Dinh, Ward 6,
District 3, Ho Chi Minh City. The actual paid-up capital as of 31 December 2015 is 955 billion VND.
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vision

Development targets and
orientations up to

2020

For the period of 2015 - 2020, Eximbank strives to be in Top 5 commercial joint
stock banks (excluding commercial joint stock banks with state-owned holding).
To take advantage of chance and opportunities, effectively use the strength in shareholders’
equity through the operations of commercial banking and investment banking, and activities of
the subsidiary and associates. Simultaneously, to leverage the advantage of good relations with
foreign partners, especially the strategic partner as Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation.
To develop products and services in line with market demands, to increase the service income
structure over the total income of the Bank, especially the settlement services.
To continue promoting its strengths in trade finance, export and import finance, gold
trading, foreign exchange trading, diversifying products and services based on the
application of advanced information technology platform, gradually adopting best
international standards and developing high quality human resources.
To keep on boosting retail banking operations through the development of
appropriate retail sales model, a more professional sales force, and a product policy
suitable with market demands.
To strengthen the concentration on protecting and improving the environmental quality,
protecting human rights, observing with the requirements on labour and occupation, and
participating in other social policies during the course of operation of Eximbank.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Risks

Eximbank is aware of and

Risk due to objective factors

takes control over the key
risks that are likely to affect
its

business

activities

or

Risk due to
objective factors
is the risk arising
out of macroeconomic factors,
governmental
policies and
security and
political situation
of the world.

the execution of its general
objectives,

including

such

types of risk.as risk due to
objective factors, credit risk,
market risk, liquidity risk and
operational risk

Market
risk

2

Liquidity risk

Credit risk

Operational
risk

Risk due to
objective factors

of the biggest progress was TransPacific Partnership (TPP) agreement
between 12 countries including
Vietnam being officially negotiated
successfully in the second half of
2015. The official signing of TPP
agreement is expected to take place
in February 2016 after relevant
decisions are adopted at the XIIth
National Congress of the Party.
The enterprises of such industries
as apparel, aquaculture, financialbanking, etc. will benefit from the
participation in TPP agreement;
however, in the meanwhile,
businesses will also have to face
with big challenges in 2016 like
technology, engineering, quality of
human resources having to meet
common international standards.

015 saw significant
movements in the
country’s
economy
(GDP
grew
by
6.68%
compared to 2014, reaching
the highest level over the
past 05 years). Agriculture,
forestry, fisheries, industry,
construction and services
sectors all had positive
contributions to the national
economy. In addition, one

Credit risk

C

redit risk is the loss likely to
happen to the Bank’s loans
due to customers’ failure to
fully perform their obligations as
committed. Such risk may be due to
subjective or objective reasons.
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For Eximbank in particular and
Vietnam’s credit institution system
in general, 2015 was a year of great
challenges. Regarding exchange
rate, the exchange rate depreciation
by China (to the lowest level during
04 recent years) in December 2015
caused severe impact on the global
economic – financial situation. 2015
was also the last year of implementing
the Government’s Scheme on
“Restructuring the credit institution
system in the 2011 - 2015 period”,
Eximbank has been striving to execute
the restructuring plan throughout
the entire network, improve human
resources, develop infrastructure in
order to maintain its position as one
of the leading commercial joint stock
banks in Vietnam over the past years.

Credit risk is considered the
biggest risk regularly affecting
Eximbank’s operations as credit
activity generates the highest
income for the bank.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Risks (continued)

Market risk

Market risk is
the risk arising
out of market
fluctuations
causing
adverse
impacts on
Eximbank’s.

M

arket risk is the risk arising
out of market fluctuations
causing adverse impacts on
Eximbank’s income and (or) capital,
including:

Interest rate risk as Eximbank’s
asset and income portfolio mainly
originate from lending and bond
investment activities, the interest
rate volatilities shall cause strong
impacts on Eximbank’s performance.
Interest rate risk may arise from the
difference in the times of interest rate
fixation, changes of the relationship
among different market interest
rates, or changes of the interest rate
relationship among different tenors
or interest-linked option products.

Exchange rate risk is the risk
resulted from exchange rate
volatilities causing negative impacts
on Eximbank’s income and capital.
Exchange rate risk may arise from
such forms as foreign exchange
transactions,
foreign
currency
derivative transactions (e.g. future,
currency swap and option contracts).

BUSINESS
PERFORMANCE IN 2015
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32
38
40
			
42
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Investment value risk is the risk
resulted from price fluctuations of
stocks, bonds and other capital and
securities investments, leading to
the diminution of investments held
by the Bank.

Some main Financial indicators.
Operations, Financial Condition &
Business Results of 2015.
The Board of the Management.
Human Resources and Personnel Policies.
Investment in Debt Management and Asset
Exploitation Company (Eximbank AMC).
Number of shares and shareholding structure of Eximbank.
Social and environmentalimpact report.

L

iquidity risk is the risk that leads
to the possibility that Eximbank
is unable to meet its obligations,
liquidity demand at the time of
financial obligation incurrence; or
that, though being able to perform its

obligations when due, Eximbank has
to suffer great losses upon performing
such obligations. Liquidity risk may
arise from the gap between the size
and tenor of assets and liabilities in
different times.

Operational risk

O

perational risk is the risk
associated with the bank’s
operations but it is hard to
manage and prevent the same. It stems
from human factors, deficiencies
in
operational
procedures,
weaknesses in information system
and internal control system, or
external factors. Operational risk is
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the most complicated risk faced by
Eximbank for its hardly controllable
nature and diversity. To cope with
such risk, Eximbank has developed
and promulgated internal policies
and manuals, set up business
continuity plan to deal with mistakes
in manipulations and unexpected
incidents.

Law compli
a

Liquidity risk

e
nc

27

Some main

financial indicators

Item

Unit

2014

2015

% +/- against
2014

Operations,

1. Capital size
Total assets

billion VND

160,145

124,850

-22%

Shareholders’ equity

billion VND

13,120

13,145

0.2%

Of which: Charter capital

billion VND

12,355

12,355

0,0%

%

13.16

16.52

101,380

98,431

-3%

billion VND

97,956

96,188

-1.8%

Of which, outstanding loans to economic entities and residents billion VND

87,147

84,760

-2.7%

Consolidated capital adequacy ratio (CAR)

financial condition

business results of 2015

2. Operating results
Capital funding from economic entities and residents billion VND
Total credit exposure
Overdue loans (groups 2-5)

billion VND

2,680

2,069

-22.8%

NPLs (groups 3-5)

billion VND

2,144

1,575

-26.5%

Ratio of overdue loans/total loan balance

%

3.08

2.44

Ratio of NPLs/total loan balance

%

2.46

1.86

Net interest income

billion VND

2,828

3,398

20.2%

Net non-interest income

billion VND

376

317

-15.7%

Net other income

billion VND

24

85

254%

Total operating income

billion VND

3,228

3,800

17.7%

Total operating expenses

billion VND

(2,049)

(2,305)

12.5%

Net operating profit before provision for credit losses

billion VND

1,179

1,495

26.8%

Provision expenses

billion VND

(825)

Profit before tax

billion VND

354

61

-83%

Corporate income tax

billion VND

(13)

(21)

61.5%

Profit after tax

billion VND

341

40

-88.3%

Return on Equity (ROE)

%

2.45

0.30

Return on Assets (ROA)

%

0.21

0.03

Quick ratio (converted to VND)

%

17.38

16.51

Ratio of short-term funding used for mid- and longterm lending

%

24.19

48.79

0

0

3. Financial condition

(1.434)

4. Profitability

73.8%

I

In the context of
tough operating
environment,
Eximbank has
strived to maintain
stable business
operations, ensure
liquidity and
operational safety.

ts total assets reached
124,850 billion VND, down
22% compared to 2014,
completing 69.4% of the plan.
VND-converted funding raised
from economic entities and
residents reached 98,431
billion VND, down 3% against
2014, accomplishing 78.1%
of the plan. Total credit
exposure to economic entities
and residents (including
loan balance and corporate

bonds) reached 96,188 billion, down
1.8% compared to 2014, completing
88.4% of the plan. Of which, VNDconverted outstanding loans to
economic entities and residents
were 84,760 billion VND, down 2.7%
against 2014.
Eximbank has strengthened its
provision establishment from
the operating profit in order to
strictly observe the commitment
of developing the bank in a
healthy and sustainable direction,
serving as a premise for growth
in subsequent years. As such,

Eximbank’s 2015 business results
posted a pre-tax profit of 61 billion
VND.
In 2015, Eximbank’s prudential
ratios all satisfied the stipulations
of Circular 36/2014/TT-NHNN of the
State Bank of Vietnam, specifically:
ratio of short-term funding used
for mid- and long-term loans was
48.79% (SBV’s regulated ratio to be
≤ 60%), loan-to-deposit ratio was
78.65% (SBV’s regulated ratio to be
≤ 80%), capital adequacy ratio (CAR)
was 16.52% (much higher than SBV’s
regulated ratio of 9%).

5. Liquidity

6. Dividend payout ratio
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Best Local

Cash Management

Bank in Vietnam 2015

Operations,

financial condition

business results of 2015 (continued)

Eximbank continued
restructuring the
organization model
in way of refining to
enhance operating
efficiency;

G

athered personnel to
develop a strong sales
force;
incessantly
innovated product and service
quality; tightly controlled credit
quality, drastically handled
bad debts, and curbed NPL
ratio at low level; reinforced

and upgraded operating quality
of transaction offices to enhance
businesses, heighten competitive
advantage and expand market
shares. Eximbank has stepped
up the deployment of focused
information technology projects,
continuously improved and raised
Electronic Banking service quality to
increase competitiveness. In 2015,
in order to encourage Branches
and Transaction Offices to focus
on promoting business activities,
Eximbank launched emulation and
reward movement which was applied
to various operations like credit, card,
international settlement, gold, etc.,
creating motivation and supporting
working spirit of the employees.

Good
Trade Growth

In addition, Eximbank continued
developing and perfecting its
risk administration model at all
management levels of from the Board
of Directors, Board of Supervisors to
the Management and Divisions on
the three aspects being organization
structure; internal policies, procedures,
regulations and executing personnel
in line with the business scope and
orientations.

Excellence in

International Payment

Also in 2015, Eximbank hired Ernst &
Young Vietnam to assess the actual
status of risk management at Eximbank
to prepare for the deployment plan of
Basel II adoption in accordance with the
State Bank of Vietnam’s schedule.

Best Trade

Finance Bank 2015

prepare for the

deployment plan of

by
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Awards

Voted by

Best Trade Finance Bank in Vietnam 2015

The Asian Banker

Best Local Cash Management Bank in Vietnam 2015

Asiamoney magazine

Good Trade Growth presented

Wells Fargo

Excellence in International Payment bestowed

JPMorgan Chase Bank,
The Bank of New York Mellon,
Standard Chartered Bank

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2015
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The board of

the Management

Mr. Dao Hong Chau

Mrs. Dinh Thi Thu Thao

Mrs. Van Thai Bao Nhi

Acting Chief Executive Officer

Phó Tổng Giám đốc

Vice President

Appointed as Vice President
in April 2004.

Appointed as Acting Chief Executive
Officer in December 2015.

Appointed as Vice President
in December 2007.

Appointed as Vice President in
May 2012.

Master of Economics.

Ph.D. of Economics in Finance - Credit.

Master of Economics.

Master of Economics.

22 years of service at Eximbank.

25 years of working at Eximbank.

20 years of service at Eximbank.

Vice President

24 years of service at Eximbank.

Mr. Tran Tan Loc

Mr. Nguyen Quoc Huong

Mr. Nguyen Ho Hoang Vu

Vice President

Vice President
cum Chief Financial Officer

Appointed as Vice President in
February 2006, then Acting Chief
Executive Officer in September 2013
and officially appointed as Chief
Executive Officer in December 2013;
currently being Vice President.

Appointed as Vice President
cum Chief Financial Officer in
September 2013.
Master of Economics.
23 years of service at Eximbank.

Master of Economics.
23 years of working at Eximbank.
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The board of

the Management (continued)

Mr. Masashi Mochizuki

Mrs. Bui Do Bich Van

Mr. Le Hai Lam

Mr. Nguyen Quang Triet

Mr. Nguyen Van Hao

Vice President

Vice President

Vice President

Vice President

Vice President

Received and appointed as Vice
President cum Co-Director of
Alliance Department in May 2015.

Appointed as Vice President in August
2013, currently being Vice President
cum Central and Highlands Regional
Director.

Appointed as Vice President in
September 2013, currently being Vice
President cum Saigon Branch Director.

Appointed as Vice President
in September 2013.

Appointed as Vice President in January
2014, currently being Vice President
cum South East Regional Director.

Bachelor of Economics.
19 years of working for Sumitomo
Mitsui Banking Corporation.
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Master of Economics.
23 years of service at Eximbank.

Bachelor of Economics.
20 years of service at Eximbank.

Master of Economics.
24 years of working at Eximbank.

Master of Economics.
Having worked for Eximbank since 2007.
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The board of

the Management (continued)

Changes in Members of the Management
No.

1

TImes

Item

February 2015

Mr. Mitsuaki Shiogo resigning from the title of Vice President and nominated as Senior Information Technology Consultant.
Mr. Kenji Kuroki resigning from the title of Vice President cum Co-Director
of Alliance Department.

2

May 2015

3

October 2015

Mr. Bui Van Dao – South West Regional Director – appointed as Vice President in charge of South West Region.

4

November 2015

Mr. Nguyen Thuc Vinh resigning from the title of Vice President and
accepted to leave the bank.

5

December 2015

6

January 2016

Mr. Masashi Mochizuki received and appointed as Vice President cum
Co-Director of Alliance Department

Mr. Pham Huu Phu – Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors – ceasing his
concurrent holding of the title of Chief Executive Officer.
Mr. Tran Tan Loc – Standing Executive Vice President – appointed as Acting Chief Executive Officer.
Mr. Cao Xuan Lanh resigning from the title of Vice President

Shareholding Ratio by Members of
the Management
No.
Mr. Le Anh Tu

Mr. Bui Van Dao

Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Ha

Vice President

Vice President

Chief Accountant

Appointed as Vice President in
August 2013, currently being Vice
President cum North Regional
Director.

Appointed as Vice President in
charge of South West Region in
October 2015.

Appointed as Chief Accountant in
September 2013.

Master of Economics.
21 years of working at Eximbank.
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Master of Economics.
Having worked for Eximbank since 2008.

Bachelor of Economics.
19 years of service at Eximbank.

Full name

Position

1

Mr. Tran Tan Loc

Acting Chief Executive Officer

2

Mr. Nguyen Quoc Huong

Vice President

0.0033689

3

Mr. Dao Hong Chau

Vice President

0.0057685

4

Mrs. Dinh Thi Thu Thao

Vice President

0.0016472

5

Mrs. Van Thai Bao Nhi

Vice President

0.0000009

6

Mr. Masashi Mochizuki

Vice President

0.00

7

Mrs. Bui Do Bich Van

Vice President

0.0042342

8

Mr. Le Anh Tu

Vice President

0.00

9

Mr. Nguyen Ho Hoang Vu

Vice President cum Chief Financial Officer

10

Mr. Le Hai Lam

Vice President

0.00

11

Mr. Nguyen Quang Triet

Vice President

0.0001102

12

Mr. Nguyen Van Hao

Vice President

0.0000007

13

Mr. Bui Van Dao

Vice President

0.0000006

14

Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Ha

Chief Accountant

0.0000001

Shareholding ratio (%)

0.00

0.0023008
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Human Resources and

Personnel Policies

Personnel Policies

Human Resources

Continuing promoting the
advantage of existing human
resources, in 2015, Eximbank
focused on implementing policies
to attract talents, recruiting
high quality employees with more
than 1,300 newly hired employees.

21.7%
45.5%

54.5%

78.3%

1,300
B

lượt

newly hired employees

esides, Eximbank has always taken
good care of the employees’ livings
through such policies as salary and
bonus policy, employee planning and
career development policy, training policy,
treatment policy, employee safety and health
policy, etc

Responsibility

of employees towards the community

Gende:

No.

Female

3,401 persons

54.5%

Graduate and above

78.3%

Male

2,838 persons

45.5%

College and below

21.7%

Item

Quantity

1

Total personnel in 2015

2

Gender:

3

4

38

Education level:

G

oing forward the tradition from the first days
of establishment to date, in 2015, Eximbank
kept on orienting and creating conditions
for employees to participate in and contribute to
charitable and social security activities, such as the

“Home for summer days”, the “Full moon festival” in
association with the Radio and Television Broadcasting
Station of Binh Phuoc Province, visiting and presenting
gifts to the Vietnamese Heroic Mothers, scholarship
program for university students, etc.

Ratio

6,239 persons

100%

*

Female

3,401 persons

54.5%

*

Male

2,838 persons

45.5%

Education level:
*

Graduate and above

4,885 persons

78.3%

*

College and below

1,354 persons

21.7%

Seniority:
*

Above 15 years

227 persons

3.6%

*

From 10 to 15 years

478 persons

7.7%

*

From 05 to 10 years

2,663 persons

42.7%

*

Under 05 years

2,871 persons

46.0%

1,051 persons

46.8%

5

Managing officers (Deputy Manager and above)

6

By regions:
*

Ho Chi Minh City

3,711 persons

59.5%

*

North

911 persons

14.5%

*

Central and Highlands

621 persons

10%

*

South East

487 persons

7.8%

*

South West

509 persons

8.2%
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Investment in

Debt Management and Asset Exploitation Company (Eximbank AMC)

Summary of the

operation, financial conditions
and business results of AMC

Business Characteristics

of the Company
Establishment

T

he Debt Management and Assets Exploitation
One-member Limited Liability Company was
established under Decision No. 157/2010/
EIB/QD-HDQT dated 21 April 2010 of the Chairman
of the Board of Directors; Decision No. 754/QD-

NHNN dated 01 April 2010 of the State Bank of
Vietnam and Business Registration Certification
No. 0310280974 dated 24 August 2010 granted
by Ho Chi Minh City Department of Planning and
Investment.

Business lines
Other monetary intermediation activities
In details: Receive and manage arrears of Vietnam
Export Import Commercial Joint Stock Bank
(including secured and unsecured loans) and the
collaterals (i.e. mortgaged or pledged assets; debt
set-off assets; assets delivered to the bank by the
Court) related to the loans for fastest handling and
recovery of loans. Proactively sell collaterals under
the discretion of Vietnam Export Import Commercial
Joint Stock Bank at market price (collateral selling
price may be higher or lower than the outstanding
loan value) by such methods as publicly selling
by itself on the market; selling through Asset
Auction Service Center; selling to the State’s Debt

Trading Company (when established). Restructure
arrears by such methods as rescheduling, interest
rate reduction or waiver, additional investment,
conversion of debts into contributed capital.
Dispose of collaterals by renovating, repairing,
upgrading the same for sale, lease, business
exploitation, capital contribution, joint venture by
assets in order to recover the loans. Perform other
activities as authorized by Vietnam Export Import
Commercial Joint Stock Bank in accordance with
law regulations. Buy and sell arrears of other credit
institutions, and of asset management companies
of other commercial banks as stipulated by law.
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VND

955

charter capital In 2015

31/12/2015

1

Total assets

2

Deposits at bank

3

Other long-term receivables (from Eximbank)

4

Fixed assets

45,044

5

Costs of capital construction and fixed asset purchase

39,197

6

Capital invested by owners

7

(Registered charter capital: 1,700 billion VND)

8

2015 accounting profit before tax

986,940
94,692
806,930

955,000
10,849
8,664

Profit after corporate income tax

Business results

Unit: million
VND
2014

2015

+/- against
2014

% +/- against
2014

I. Total revenue

22,232

21,077

-1,155

-5.20%

1. Rental revenue

13,830

14,574

744

5.38%

8,362

6,503

-1,859

-22.23%

2. Financial activity revenue

billion

Unit: million VND

No. Target

Target

Charter capital
Business Registration Certification No. 0310280974
was granted by Ho Chi Minh City Department of
Planning and Investment on 24 August 2010 with
the initial registered charter capital of VND300
billion. The second amendment was made on 08
September 2011, the third on 30 March 2012, the
ninth on 02 April 2014 with the registered charter
capital of 1,700 billion VND. The paid-up charter
capital as of 31 December 2015 was 955 billion VND.

Some financial figures

3. Other income
II. Total expenses
1. General and administrative expenses
2. Other expenses
III. Profit before tax

40

-40

10,105

10,228

123

1.22%

10,104

9,803

-301

-2.98%

1

425

424

12,127

10,849

-1,278

-10.54 %
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Number of shares and

3.18%

shareholding structure of Eximbank
23.19%

96.82%

76.81%

Number of shares and
shareholding structure of Eximbank
Number of Shares
As at 31 December 2015, number of shares

:

1,235,522,904

shares

Number of transferable shares:

:

948,642,158

shares

Number of non-transferable shares as regulated at
clause 1 Article 56 – Law on Credit Institutions 2010

:

286,880,746

shares

Details of major shareholders
No. Name

1

Sumitomo Mitsui
Banking Corporation

2

Commercial Joint-stock
Bank for Foreign Trade of
Vietnam (Vietcombank)

Major shareholders (owning
5% of charter capital and upwards)

23.19

Shareholders owning less than
5% of charter capital

76.81

Address

Banking

1-2 Marunouchi
1-chome,Chiyado-ku, Tokyo
100-0005 Japan
198 Tran Quang Khai Street,
Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi

Number of
shares

Holding
ratio (%)

185,329,207

15%

101,245,131

8.19%

Other shareholders

96.82
0,00

Founding shareholders

26.21%

73.79%

Shareholding
ratio (%)

Shareholding
ratio (%)

Shareholder

65.41

Domestic shareholders

73.79

Individual shareholders

34.59

Foreign shareholders

26.21

Shareholding Structure
No.

In 2015, Eximbank did not have change in shareholders’ equity.
2

Treasury Stock Transactions
As of 31 December 2015, number of treasury stocks of Eximbank was 6,090,000 shares.
Eximbank did not conduct treasury stock transactions in 2015.
3

Other Securities: Eximbank did not issue other securities in 2015.
4

Shareholder

Number of shares

Shareholding
ratio (%)

Major shareholders (owning 5% of charter capital
and upwards)

286,574,338

23.19

Shareholders owning less than 5% of charter capital

948,948,556

76.81

Organizational shareholders

808,184,385

65.41

*

Domestic

486,581,891

39.38

*

Foreign

321,602,494

26.03

427,338,519

34.59

425,068,990

34.40

2,269,529

0.18

Domestic shareholders

911,650,881

73.79

Foreign shareholders

323,872,023

26.21

State shareholders

39,274,536

3.18

Other shareholders

1,196,248,3 68

96.82

0

0.00

1,235,522,904

-

Individual shareholders
*

Domestic

*

Foreign

Founding shareholders
Total number of shares

www.eximbank.com.vn

3.18

Organizational shareholders

Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
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State shareholders

65.41%

1

42

Shareholding
ratio (%)

Shareholder

34.59%

Shareholder

Line of
business

Banking

Shareholding
ratio (%)

Shareholder
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Social and environmental

impact report

Laws

Compliance with
on
Environmental Protection

Eximbank always complies with the laws and regulations on environmental protection.

Eximbank ensures
its compliance
with laws on
protection of the
environment and
society. Apart
from business
activities,
Eximbank also
actively involved
in social activities,
took care of
and improved
the employees’
quality of life,
contributing to
the development
of the local
community in
particular, and
society in general.
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Laborer-related Policies
Salary and bonus policy

I

n 2015, in order to encourage Branches and Transaction Offices
to focus on pushing growth of main business targets, as well as
to create motivation and working spirit for employees of different
operations, Eximbank launched emulation and reward movement
and implemented various types of reward in such operations as
credit, card, international settlement, gold, etc.

Besides, in 2015, to promptly compliment the teams and individuals
with outstanding achievements in business activities, Eximbank
continued maintaining the Yellow Apricot Flower prizes and giving
bonuses for overachievement of 2015 profit target to the units and
individuals having good business results and accomplishing 2015
business plan.
As for the average number of employees and average salary,
please refer to 2015 Consolidated Financial Statements, Note 33
“Employees’ benefits”.

Employee planning, career
development policy
The planning of officers of all levels
has been paid with special attention
by the Board of Directors, the
Management in order to prepare
cadre of managing officers and
inherited workforce to serve for the
needs of development, operation
network expansion as well as to be
active in staffing.
In 2015, for the purpose of
establishing an inherited workforce
for Branches and Transaction
Offices, Eximbank held contests for
leadership positions of Branches and
Transaction Offices. Simultaneously,
Eximbank continued organizing
training courses for the titles of
standby Branch Directors and
Transaction Office Managers.
Moreover,
Eximbank
regularly
organized examinations to check the
competence, expertise, professional
knowledge of employees by
each operation to evaluate job
performance, compliance, potential
for development to orient career
promotion roadmap for employees.

Training policy
Eximbank has encouraged and
created the best conditions for
employees to enhance professional
competence to serve for the job in
a variety of forms such as sending
employees to participate in short
and long-term training courses inside
and outside the country held by
the Institutes, Universities, strategic
partner,
correspondent
banks;
supporting tuition fees and facilitating
staff participation in postgraduate,
second-degree courses in connection
with their profession; assigning officers
to participate in the workshops,
professional enhancement training
courses, etc. to satisfy work demands.
Eximbank also by itself organized
advanced training and coaching on
professional operations and banking
administration skills for the employees.
In 2015, Eximbank’s Training Center
organized and coordinated to organize
133 training classes with 4,090 learners.
Of which:

Moreover, in 2015, Eximbank
continued searching for land
resources to implement “housing
policy” for employees in order to
create coherence between the
employees and Eximbank.

Employee safety and health policy
Eximbank always attaches special
importance to assurance of
employees’ health in working. For
this reason, Eximbank annually
deducts part of its profit for health
care for employees as union
members through such activities
as: organizing periodic and
assembled health examination for
all employees; organizing sport days
for employees to practice health;
timely visiting sick employees
and aiding for their treatment
expenses; etc. Thanks to that, the
number of employees encountering
health problems and occupational
diseases at Eximbank is always at a
very low rate over the years.

Training for newly-recruited employees:

04 classes

139 learners

Training for managing officers:

07 classes

179 learners

Training for sales officers:

14 classes

439 learners

101 classes

3,078 learners

7 classes

255 learners

Operational coaching for employees:
Other classes:

Treatment policy
As an expression of its interest in the
employees with working seniority
and long-time service at Eximbank,
from May 2012, Eximbank has
issued and implemented “seniority
policy for employees”. Accordingly,
employees with full 5 years of
service are entitled to seniority
allowance.

4,090

learners
organize 133 training
classes
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o
Pr

towards local community

From 2009 (the
year Eximbank
entered stock
market) to date,
apart from brand
and product and
service promotion
activities, Eximbank
also pays attention
to sponsoring
activities for the
charitable and
social community
programs held
by the banking
industry, mainly
philanthropic
programs such
as presenting
scholarship,
supporting
healthcare and
social security
activities, etc.,
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sio

responsibilities


Supporting the People’s Committee of Quang Tri province
in building Juvenility Park.



Supporting the People’s Committee of Binh Dinh province
in building Hoai Nhon district’s healthcare center.



Supporting the construction of martyrs cemetery in Duy
Hoa, Duy Xuyen, Quang Nam province.



Supporting the construction of charity houses for the
Association for Victims of Agent Orange / Dioxin in An Giang
province.



Sponsoring hundreds of scholarships for needy pupils and
students in the remote provinces and areas, for the universities
and for the programs of gratitude/helping the poor prepare for
Tet in Ho Chi Minh City and other provinces, etc.

f

es

Report
related to

n a li s m

impact report (continued)

In addition to the above programs, Eximbank has always tried to support
the community charitable programs in the locality held by the prestigious
organization, such as preparing gifts for Tet for Farmers’ Association
in HCMC and Women’s Union of Go Vap District on the occasion of
Goat Lunar New Year; supporting 2015 Goat Lunar New Year’s “District
3 Kindness” program; supporting Disabled Youth Association and the
Glorious Vietnam Veteran Entrepreneurs program, supporting Retirement
Liaison Committee of the State Bank of Vietnam – HCMC Branch.
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Evaluation

on business results

As for Eximbank,
2015 was a
year full of
difficulties
and challenges.
Obstacles from
the business
environment
and changes
in senior
personnel
partly
influenced
on Eximbank’s
business
operations.

S

uch key business targets as
total assets, capital funding,
credit exposure, pre-tax profit
all failed to be achieved as per the
plan set out. As of end of 2015, total
assets decreased by 22%, funds
raised from economic entities and
individuals reduced by 3%, credit
exposure contracted by 1.8% against
2014. Profit before tax was 61 billion
dong, reaching 6.1% of the plan.
Although Eximbank’s profit result
did not reach the proposed target,
its operations still maintained stable
development and such results
accurately reflected Eximbank’s
determination in drastic handling
of outstanding issues of prior
years, especially those of bad
debt handling and provisioning
strengthening, with NPL ratio
falling to 1.86%. Asset structure was
gradually restructured for higher
solidity, creating foundation for
sustainable development.

Regarding the task of governance
and administration, Eximbank
kept on reforming the executive
apparatus at the Head Office in the
direction of activeness, fast handling
of business units’ requirements;
promoted the transaction offices’
operations; rearranged the business
locations of the units for business
convenience;
established
and
applied reward policy according to

1,86

Retail

%

tỷ lệ nợ xấu xuống mức thấp
tăng cường trích lập dự phòng

business results; enhanced training,
especially training for leaders and
sales officers; strengthened risk
management, strictly controlled
credit quality, etc. In addition,
Eximbank has stepped up the
deployment of major information
technology projects, continuously
improved
and
strengthened
Electronic Banking service quality.

In 2015, Eximbank entered into a
contract to implement Finacle
Corebanking solution,
which is an opportunity for
Eximbank to leverage the strengths
of Corebanking solution to launch
modern banking services, creating
differentiations in products and
services, meeting international
standards
and
improving
competitive position.

Retail fund raising
As of 31/12/2015,
individual deposit
balance achieved
70,322 billion VND, up
7% from the early
year, with the number
of retail customers
accounting for 96%
of total customers
of Eximbank, reaching
1,011,048 customers,
an increase of 13%
against the early year.

F

unding structure in
2015 was improved in
way of more mid- and
long-term funds (from 17% in
2014 to 22% in 2015), ensuring
the stability of the mobilized
funds and satisfying the need
for mid- and long-term loans.
To achieve such positive
results in 2015, Eximbank has
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Banking
Services

always been active and timely in its
mobilization policy, in line with the
State Bank of Vietnam’s policies and
market trends. In addition, Eximbank
has made relentless efforts in
introducing better customer care
solutions, enhancing customers’
satisfaction and trust, and improving
products and services on the basis
of diversification associating with
modern technology which meet
various demands of customers.

1,011.048

customers, an increase of
13% against the early year.

Deposit products offered by
Eximbank to retail customers: 15
products
 current deposit combo;
 savings deposit with optional terms;
 Eximbank VIP savings deposit;
 Truong Phat Loc savings deposit;
 Online savings deposit;
 Phuc Bao An savings deposit;
 50+ savings deposit;
 Savings deposit for beloved children;
 Savings deposit by salary accumulation, etc.

together with different
utilities (SMS messages
informing deposit or
savings deposit maturity
date, etc.)
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Evaluation

on business results (continued)

Eximbank’s card growth during 2013 - 2015

15,500 billion VND

12,600 billion VND

11.000 billion VND

3,000 units

3.400
vị
3,400đơn
units

2015
2,700 units

16,000 billion VND

As of 31/12/2015, loan balance of individual customers reached 35,985
billion VND, fulfilling 112% of 2015 plan, increasing 18% against 2014,
and accounting for 42% of the network’s total loan balance. Among
which, retail loan balance achieved 31,694 billion VND and increasing
by approximately 9,300 billion VND compared to 2014.

13,500 billion VND

loan balance of individual
customers, fulfilling 112% of
2015 plan, increasing 18%
54,5%
against 2014

2014
11,000 billion VND

billion VND

35,985

1.6 million cards

I

n 2015, apart from training and developing RBO (retail banking
officer) sales team with intensive professional skills and market
in-depths to promote retail banking activity, Eximbank continued
launching programs of house loan, car loan, production loan, etc. with
preferential interest rates, targeting customers with stable income.

1.3 million cards

Retail credits

1.45 million cards

2013

39

7

Individual customer loan balance
breakdown (billion VND)

Retail

31,297

Others

4,290

  Card, overdraft

4,290

31,297

up 11% from 2014. Card use
volume reached 16,000 billion
VND, up 18% from 2014.
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Card use
volume

Number of
merchants

Card acquiring
volume

In 2015, Eximbank has launched several products and
services, and increased more utilities for accommodation
of customers’ demands, namely as Jetstar – Eximbank
JCB co-branded credit and debit cards, JCB international
debit card, Instalment loan with preferential interest rate
applicable to Eximbank’s credit cards, enhancement
of 3D-Secure for higher security of international cards,
enlargement of payment gateways to accept Eximbank
cards, and offering more card utilities on Internet
Banking, etc.

Besides, for better customer care, Eximbank has
also strengthened to promote card products and
services as well as carried out more promotions
and offers in different forms and contents, which
attract more attention from customers.

Overseas outward remittance

T

397

Card issuance and acquiring

1.6 million cards

Total number of
cards issued

At the present, with the merger of Smartlink and Banknet,
Eximbank has expanded the ATM and POS connections
with large banks in Vietnam and diversified the business
types of card acquirers, meeting customers’ need for
card use.

I

n 2015, total cards issued were 160,000 cards, raising the total number
of cards having been issued to 1.6 million cards, up 11% from 2014.
Card use volume reached 16,000 billion VND, up 18% from 2014.

Eximbank merchants nearly reached 3,400 units with more than 6,800
POS terminals and 260 ATMs located in major locations nationwide.
Total acquiring volume through POS terminals and ATMs in 2015
achieved satisfactory results of 15,500 billion VND, increasing by 22%
year-over-year.

otal overseas outward remittance volume of
individual customers in 2015 increased by 8%
compared to 2014 and finished 78% of 2015
plan. Among which, overseas study remittance volume
accounted for 70% of total overseas outward remittance
volume, rising by 2% against 2014. In the year, Eximbank
adjusted the money transfer limits, so the service suffered
slower growth.
Outward remittance was mostly made to the US market,
followed by Australia, Canada, Hongkong, and the UK, etc.
Eximbank is currently offering 02 overseas outward remittance
channels, including remittance via SWIFT and quick
remittance through MoneyGram, which are at customers’
option with competitive pricing. In the forthcoming time,
Eximbank will launch more quick remittance channels to
promote and increase overseas outward remittance volume.
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Evaluation

on business results (continued)

Remittance payout
In 2015, total
overseas inward
remittance
volumes of
individual
customers rose
by 53% year
over year and
completed 104%
of the year’s
plan. Inward
remittance
markets
were mostly
traditional ones
such as the US,
Japan, Australia
and Germany.

I

n the year, Eximbank entered
into cooperation contract with 04
new remittance partners, further
reaching European, American and
Malaysian markets and facilitating
customers to receive money
from their relatives overseas in a
convenient and fast way.
Additionally,
Eximbank
also
launched new remittance payment
channels, including:

“Flagship transaction unit - Red
Kiosk” - This is the first flagship sub-

agent model of MoneyGram in the
Vietnamese market so as to create
differentiation for the transaction
unit and professionalize services,
attracting more customers to
receive
remittance
through
MoneyGram.
“QUICK

remittance

account/card

via

payment”

to
Banknetvn

network. This is the first “Quick”
remittance
payment
service
channel at Eximbank as well
as the Vietnamese market. The
service connects online payments
from remitters and recipients may
receive money to their accounts
within minutes after the remitters
complete remittance procedures.
This remittance payment channel
operates on 24/7 basis including
weekends and holidays. Therefore,
this
channel
is
considered
a breakthrough to raise the
competitiveness of Eximbank’s
remittance service both locally and
internationally.
Besides, Eximbank has continuously
enhanced its remittance service
quality
and
improved
the
technologies aiming at quickness,
convenience and safety in order to
diversify the payment channels and
meet rising demands of customers.

Corporate
Corporate
Corporate fund raising

Funding from
corporate customers
in 2015 marked a
positive transition
in the mobilization
breakdown by
customers and deposit
terms.
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Banking
Services

E

ximbank has launched several deposit programs for
more current deposits to create fund sources with
good interest rates, and increased mid- and longterm deposits to improve the proportion between midand long-term deposits and mid- and long-term loans.
Also, Eximbank carried out promotional programs to
attract funds from small and medium enterprises (SMEs).

Consequently, Eximbank has sharply increased its current
deposits (by 15%),  significantly improved mid- and longterm deposits so as to meet the demands for mid- and
long-term loans, and enhanced the proportion of fund
mobilization from SME customers.
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Evaluation

on business results (continued)

Electronic Banking Services

Corporate credits

I

n 2015, the corporate banking
directions saw lots of changes in
way of improving the corporate
loan breakdown by customer
segments, restructuring the credit
granting to enterprises by asset
types, and strengthening business
performance by promoting those
companies bringing high efficiency
to the whole network. Accordingly,
Eximbank made good growth in
SME segment with high credit
quality, controlled risks and good
business results.
With the strength of a bank
specializing in export – import
financing,
Eximbank
also
restructured its corporate lending
activity in the direction of focusing
funds on companies’ export-import
activities through credit policy,
pricing policy and products/

services. Thanks to which, the
fund financing to these customers
remarkably improved in the year.
SME operations have strongly
increased in the year thanks to
great contributions of relationship
managers (RMs) who have made a
growth rate of more than 10% both
in amounts and loan balance, and
helped to develop other operations
in the network. The RM cadre who
has been growing and confident
with well-trained knowledge will
become the network’s core force
in marketing, consultation and
customer care in the next coming
time.
In addition, Eximbank is also
trusted by different agencies and
departments, and has actively
participated in the State’s intentions

by cooperation with the People’s
Committee, departments, sectors,
and the State Bank of Vietnam to
carry out such programs as loans
to the stabilization program of
HCMC, loans to goods suppliers for
companies stabilizing the market,
credit program for agricultural
subsidy, and connection program
of banks and enterprises.

With the programs launched to
increase
and

business

develop

performance

customer-targeted

products, Eximbank has achieved
positive results during the past year.

International settlement

6,014 million USD

International settlement volume in
2015, rising by 2.6% against 2014

P

romotion
of
international
settlement and enhancement
of service quality were among
significant objectives of Eximbank in 2015.
Despite the obstacles and challenges facing
the banking activities due to slow recovery
of the Vietnamese economy in particular
and the world economy in general,
Eximbank has made efforts to maintain the
growth of international settlement which
has been the Bank’s traditional strength.
International settlement volume in 2015
achieved 6,014 million USD in 2015, rising
by 2.6% against 2014.
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Thanks to the advantages in brand name and export-import financing
policy, Eximbank has aimed at core values with product diversification
and service quality enhancement policy to bring about more added
values to customers. These will be effective tools to keep maintaining and
deploying the solid foundations for the Bank’s international settlement
activities in the coming years.

International settlement volume through the years
Unit: Million USD
7,000

4,944

5,862

6,014

2013

2014

2015

6,000
5,000
4,000
3,000
2,000

corporate customers. By e-banking
services, customers may keep track
of or perform such transactions as:

E

ximbank’s
e-banking
services enable customers
to easily manage their
accounts and make financial
transactions with the Bank
conveniently,
everywhere,
everytime upon saving time
and costs. Customers are able
to perform almost all financial
transactions by means of Internet
Banking, Mobile Banking, and SMS
Banking without arriving at the
Bank’s transaction units.
Currently, Eximbank has provided
basic to advanced e-banking
service utilities to meet the
demands of individual and

 Inquiry for account information, interest
rates, transaction units/ATM locations, bonus
point accumulation, etc.
 Intrabank and interbank money transfer
(transfer by batch, fast interbank transfer,
periodical transfer scheduling, etc.);
 bills
payment
(electricity,
water,
telecommunication, cable TV, air fares, etc.);
 Online savings deposits;
 Mobile phone top-up (VnTopup);
 credit management (loan repayment,
payment for credit card loan balance);
 Card services (card lock/unlock, PIN reissuance, card information change, card SMS
service, online payment by domestic card,
card issuance);
 Payroll service for companies, and online
registration for SMS Banking, etc.

In order to ensure safety, security
as well as assure customers in

e-banking transactions, Eximbank
has applied several authentication
methods with respect to customers’
online transactions on Internet
Banking/Mobile Banking, namely
as SMS OTP, Mobile OTP and digital
certificate (PKI Token).
Apart
from
the
continuous
improvement and enhancement of
E-banking service quality, Eximbank
has also developed many customer
care and promotion programs,
attracting customers to register
for and use E-banking services.
Specific programs launched in 2015
include “Grand Promotion with
E-banking”, “E-banking – 90 Days
for Corporate Customers Growth”,
“Top-up Your Phone and Receive
Interesting Gifts”, “Preferential
Exchange Rates with Internet
Banking”, etc.

E-banking service
performance in 2015 has
reached the proposed
plan, specifically number
of customers increasing
by 16% and earnings
growing by 29% compared
to 2014.

1,000
0
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Evaluation

on business results (continued)

Capital Trading
The volatile business
environment in
the recent years
has remarkably
depreciated the
financial resources,
business efficiency
in general and
interbank business in
particular.

With flexible strategies which are
adaptable to policy changes by the
State Bank of Vietnam and the money
market, the Capital Trading section
continues playing a significant role
in ensuring Eximbank’s liquidity and
profitability, upon making relentless
innovations and perfections in
capital management and trading:




Balance cash flows to ensure the
network’s liquidity.
Monitor changes in funding –
fund use in the network, collect
and analyze the impacts of

FX Trading
changes in interest rates and
exchange rates in the market,
from which suggest policies
connecting to fund mobilization
and fund use to effectively
balance the capital of the whole
network.


Balance operating capital for
Treasury Division and perform
arbitrage trading in the interbank
fund market through borrowing,
lending, Government bond
repo, interest rate swap and
investment in valuable papers
with terms of less than 01 year.

The Vietnamese FX market
sharply fluctuated in 2015
when the economy suffered
from trade deficit and
influences of USD rate hike
by the US Federal Reserves
as well as the application
of new RMB exchange rate
mechanism by the People’s
Bank of China, which created
not only challenges but also
opportunities to Eximbank’s
FX trading activities.

With its traditional strengths in
export – import settlement and FX
trading, Eximbank has diversified the
products and services to ultimately
satisfy customers’ needs for foreign
currencies, and improved online
transaction facilities for FX trading
to bring the best convenience to
customers in doing transactions,
through which the competitiveness
and trading volume have accordingly
enhanced.
Trading and internal control systems
have been improved to reduce the

processing time for customers,
strengthen
the
performance
and minimize operational risks.
Eximbank has also strengthened the
management of FX trading activity,
compliance with new FX control
regulations of the State Bank of
Vietnam, and fostered and enhanced
professional skills for the dealers
in the whole network in the new
context.
FX trading volume with customers
in 2015 was 41 billion USD, reaching
nearly 80% of the proposed plan.

Gold Trading
The State Bank of
Vietnam in 2015 went on
with its tight control
over the gold market in
line with the stability
target set out by the
State Bank of Vietnam’s
Governor. Many
companies and banks
have narrowed down
their gold businesses.
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Eximbank – with its long-time
reputation in gold trading, large
customer base, and widespread
network of branches and transaction
offices licensed by the State Bank of
Vietnam to trade in gold bars – has
focused on promoting gold retail so
as to best satisfy customers’ trading
demands in the areas where the
Bank’s transaction units locate,
upon aiming at perfection and
improvement of customer service
quality.

policies towards employees for
their dedication to the work and
perfection of operational skills,
and applied IT methods to increase
productivity, reduce the operational
time, and improve customer service
performance.

Specifically, Eximbank has carried
out motivation and encouragement

country.

Thanks to which, the market share
of Eximbank has been enlarged and
takes up the largest in the whole
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on business results (continued)

Financial condition

Assets

Financial Investment

13,871 billion VND
Closing bond balance

I

n spite of difficulties of the
Vietnamese economy in 2015,
remarkably the steep decline
of the world oil price and strong
exchange rate fluctuation,
the stock market made quite
good growth where VN-Index
achieved an increase of 6.1%
compared to end of 2014.

As for bonds, Eximbank maintained
the bond investment portfolio with
respect to companies having good
business performance, market
reputation, and high profitability.
Therefore, the bond portfolio has
brought about significant revenues
to Eximbank although interest rate
decreased in 2015.

Following the intention of
restructuring
Eximbank’s
investments,
no
new
investment was made and
under-performing investments
were divested.

Closing bond balance reached
13,871 billion VND, including 4,072
billion VND of Government bonds
and municipal bonds; 4,600 billion
VND of credit institution bonds and
5,198 billion VND of corporate bonds.

16.52%

Capital adequacy ratio (CAR)
and reserves established
from post-tax profit had
accumulated balance of
more than 1,500 billion VND

Customer-base Development

A

ccording to the audited
consolidated
Financial
Statements,
Eximbank’s
businesses just in 2015 already
reflected safe and steady state.
The bank’s total assets in 2015
were 124,850 billion VND; pre-tax
profit was 61 billion VND; reserves
established from post-tax profit
had accumulated balance of
more than 1,500 billion VND; NPL
ratio accounted for 1.86% of total
outstanding loans, which was a low
level in the banking system. Pre-tax
profit of 61 billion VND showed that
the Board of Directors aggressively
set aside provisions and disposed
of the backlogs on the principle
and guideline of transparency as
mentioned. Capital adequacy ratio
(CAR) was 16.52%, ratio of shortterm funding used for mid- and longterm loans was 48.79% and loan-todeposit ratio was 78.65%.

124,850 billion VND
The bank’s total assets in 2015

Liabilities
Eximbank continued to maintain good customer growth thanks to its
relentless efforts in developing professional sales team, enhancing
service quality, and innovating products and services. Total customers
of Eximbank as at end 2015 nearly reached 1.06 million customers,
rising by 13% against 2014.
Among which:

96

Individual customers
accounted for
%
up 12.5% compared to the
early year (or 113 thousand
customers)

58

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
www.eximbank.com.vn

4

Corporate customers
accounted for
%
up 16.8% compared to the
early year (or 7 thousand
customers)

I

n 2015, Eximbank had revised
its funding policy to gradually
increase proportion of term
deposits of individual customers and
raise current deposits of corporate

customers in order to improve
funding structure, maintain and
develop a stable funding with low
cost. Thanks to that, funding from
individual customers grew by nearly

Thanks to that, funding from individual customers grew
by nearly 7% in 2015 and proportion of current deposits
in total funding from the primary market was improved
from 11% in 2014 to 14% in 2015.

7% in 2015 and proportion of
current deposits in total funding
from the primary market was
improved from 11% in 2014 to 14%
in 2015.
Based on positive signals of 2015,
the Board of Directors and the
Management of Eximbank have been
coordinating with stakeholders,
especially the strategic shareholder
being Sumitomo Mitsui Banking
Corporation (SMBC), a world’s
leading financial institution from
Japan and a strategic investor having
always accompanied Eximbank
since 2008, to set out some feasible
plans to bring Eximbank back to the
leading position among commercial
joint stock banks.
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Improvements in

organization structure, policy and management

Credit risk management

I

Quality Management
With the goal
of improving
quality in
provision
of banking
products
and services,
Eximbank
established
Quality
Management
Department in
May 10/2013.

I

n 2015, Eximbank received 43,000
opinions from customers through
the Call Center for advice, support
to answer questions/reflections
on the products and services
and employees’ service attitude.
Based on such calls, relevant
units has consolidated/analyzed
to adjust policies and regulations
on products and services to
better meet customer demands in
accordance with law regulations.
Also from the customers’ feedbacks,
Eximbank aggregated them into
case studies and communicated the
same to the tellers in the network
for reference and suitable solutions.
Moreover, the Management also
launched emulation program in

service quality among the units in
the system to encourage them to
improve customer service quality,
which served as a basis for annual
evaluation and grading. On the
other hand, the monitoring and
enhancement
of
professional
quality and communication skills of
the employees were also attached
with special importance through
secret inspection tranches and
professional examinations over
the units in the network to assess
professional competence of the
employees so that the units’ leaders
could have appropriate training
policy, operational fostering in line
with professional capabilities of
each individual.

Risk Management

A

waring that risks may
arise from changes and
challenges
in
today’s
economic environment, Eximbank
in 2015 continued developing and
perfecting its risk administration
model at all management levels of
from the Board of Directors, Board of
Supervisors to the Management and
Divisions on the three aspects being
organization structure; internal
policies, procedures, regulations and
executing personnel in line with the
business scope and orientations.
In terms of organizational structure,
at the Board of Directors level,
Eximbank has always ensured
personnel of the Risk Management
Committee to comprise of foreign
members with good command of
international risk management
standards
and
Vietnamese
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members with deep insights of risk
characteristics of Vietnam’s market.
At the Management level, the bank
kept on building, consolidating and
intensifying the scope of operations of
the risk management units according
to the independent management
model advised by SMBC, comprising
of the following departments: Credit
Risk Management, Market Risk
Management, and Operational Risk
Management.
Between the two levels of risk
management, there always exists
continuous and timely exchange
of information to ensure the
risk information are fully known
to all responsible individuals.
Simultaneously, the sections under
the Management regularly advise
Risk
Management
Committee

on necessary adjustments in risk
management policy and procedures,
risk appetite.
In 2015, Eximbank finished the
project of assessing the actual status
of risk management and established
detailed schedule on Basel II
implementation with support from
the consulting firm Ernst & Young. At
present, Eximbank has completed
this project and continued to
promote other projects of various
scales in order to narrow the gap
with international Basel II protocols
to ensure observance with the
schedule set out by the State Bank of
Vietnam.
Current risk administration at
Eximbank is carried out with respect
to types of credit risk, liquidity risk,
market risk and operational risk.

n 2015, Eximbank continued
implementing centralized credit
risk management through not
increasing credit approval authority
of Branches and Transaction
Offices while vesting credit
approval authority to Regional
Directors, Chief Executive Officer,
Head Office Credit Council, and
Central Credit Council for handling
dossiers exceeding the authority of
Branches and Transaction Offices.
Supervision over credits and
compliance with stipulations of
law and the State Bank of Vietnam
has always been paid with great
attention. Especially in 2015,
Eximbank deployed the regulations
on prudential ratios and limits in
operations of credit institutions,

foreign banks’ branches in
accordance with Circular 36/2014/
TT-NHNN dated 20/11/2014 of the
State Bank of Vietnam. The control
over credit granting conditions
before, during, after disbursement
and revaluation of security assets
were conducted regularly to timely
assess Eximbank’s credit quality for
duly treatment measures.
The credit scoring system is the
basic tool to assist in managing
credit risks. From 2013, Eximbank
has put this system into operation
in order to support the credit
granting approval and credit risk
management. In 2015, Eximbank
hired Ernst & Young Vietnam to
conduct the system re-inspection
to ensure its optimum upon being

put into official operation as a risk
management tool of Eximbank.

Besides, in 2015, Eximbank also
hired Ernst & Young Vietnam
to

evaluate

the

current

situation of risk management
at Eximbank to prepare for the
implementation and adoption
plan of Basel II according to
the State Bank of Vietnam’s
roadmap.

Liquidity risk management

L

iquidity is a crucial factor for
financial institutions. Most of the
failures of financial institutions
occurred largely due to failing to
ensure their liquidity. To prevent and
cope with issues relating to liquidity
risks, Eximbank set up a system of

full and cautious internal regulations
and procedures on liquidity risk
management in line with standards of
the whole industry, with stipulations
on solvency management and on
prudent ratios in operations by the
State Bank, and with Eximbank’s

business characteristics. The stresstest model has been applied by
Eximbank to forecast cases where
the Bank might encounter problems
of liquidity risk, and to offer the most
optimal provisional treatment plans
accordingly.

Market risk management
Interest rate risk management: For

timely response to and handling
of interest rate risk, Eximbank
researched, built and implemented
risk management models: Gap in
asset-liability revaluation period
(interest rate GAP technique),
interest sensitivity ratio (ISR),
interest rate risk assessment by
the net present value method with
respect to interest-sensitive items
(NPV). Eximbank will continue
to research, build and enhance
the internal regulation system
including the Regulation on interest
rate risk management to ensure

safe business operation of the
Bank in compliance with relevant
stipulations of the State Bank,
as well as gradually approach
international practices which are in
the short run Basel II International
Treaty.
Exchange rate risk management: To

manage exchange rate risk, Eximbank
researched, built and promulgated
regulations on policy, trading limits,
foreign exchange risk measuring
and control instruments in strict
compliance with stipulations of the
State Bank and Vietnamese laws, and

launched derivative products with
the aim of preventing issues resulted
from exchange rate risks.
Investment price risk management:

To manage investment price risk,
Eximbank implemented portfolio
measurement and assessment
methods at market price, and set
up limits for investment price risk
(e.g. securities investment limit,
stop loss limit, risk provisioning
limit, etc.) in line with the Bank’s
objectives and business strategy
from time to time.
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Improvements in

organization structure, policy and management (continued)

Information Technology System
Operational risk management
Internal fraud-related risk
management






Eximbank issued internal
regulations and conditions
for the appointment of
leadership positions, and
credit officers in the officer
appointment task, which was
centralized to Head Office
only, while Branches and
Regions had no authority;
Eximbank always considered
evaluating
the
officer
capability of each branch and
transaction office to assign
appropriate credit approval
and valuation authority;
Segregating the functions
of sales officers and credit
appraisal officers by credit
processes;



Issuing new regulations on
risk management, enhancing
the role of internal control
system, etc.

In addition, the inspection and
supervision were frequently carried
out by Internal Inspection and Control
Teams at branches so as to mitigate
risks such as credit, international
settlement, accounting, cash, and
card operations.
Risk
management
relating
to
operational interruption and errors in
information technology system

Eximbank conducted the construction
of a backup Data Center in Binh
Duong and set up business continuity
plan upon occurrence of incidents
such as responses to liquidity and

B

eing aware of the importance
of IT, Eximbank has boosted
application of information
technology in banking operations,
invested and equipped with modern
devices, and regularly upgraded the
system to meet the Bank’s business

information technology incidents,
and information crisis treatment;
Risk management in connection with
products and services

Eximbank issued regulations and
guidance on the implementation
procedures for each specific product
and service, focused on training new
employees, ensured cross inspection
and control in operations, established
and managed approval limits on the
trading systems in line with new
models of business activities and
risk limits, and promoted the role of
internal control system;

Finacle

Data center

có thể đưa Trung tâm dữ liệu chính thức vận hành trong năm 2016

Eximbank has always attached special
importance to customer due diligence,
strictly
performed
operational
procedures for each product and
updated risk-related information for
warning the network;

Eximbank implemented anti-money
laundering system for supervising and
preventing fraudulent and suspicious
transactions;
In the forthcoming time, Eximbank
will establish operational risk
management policy aiming to perfect
the construction of evaluating and
ranking method over branches;
Develop tools to collect, analyze
and manage operational risk-related
losses; Assess by its own the risks and
the control barricades; and Provide
key risk indicators (KRI) to identify
potential changes in internal and
external environment.

In line with the Bank’s general
development strategy, in 2015,
Eximbank continued improving and
developing IT System and achieved
the following results:

Corebanking

External fraud-related risk

Money-laundering risk management

and compliance requirements.

Information
Technology (IT)
plays a pivotal role
in management,
business development,
and compliance
requirements of
a modern Bank. It
is a tool to create
advantages and
differentiation of
the Bank in market
competition.

Having kept on accelerating the implementation of key projects in the IT
Development Program so as to satisfy the requirements of the business
development strategy in the period of 2011 - 2015 and visions up to 2020,
specifically

In 2015, Eximbank entered into a contract to implement Finacle Corebanking
solution with Infosys. The selection of world’s leading Corebanking solution
to be first deployed in Vietnam is an opportunity for Eximbank to leverage
the strengths of Corebanking solution to launch modern banking services,
creating differentiations in products and services, shortening the period of
launching products to market, meeting international standards, and improving
competitive position .
After having entered into a contract with Schneider Electric IT Vietnam to
implement the construction of a modern Data Center meeting international
standards, in 2015, Eximbank has been promoting the construction of a modern
Data Center in parallel with the installation of IT equipments for the Data Center
so as to be able to put the Data Center into official operation in 2016.
Having maintained stable operation of key IT systems such as Corebanking, Card,

Internet Banking, Mobile Banking, helping Eximbank not only to focus on its
traditional business operations but also to provide new services to customers,
meeting the Bank’s needs for business expansion.
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Improvements in

organization structure, policy and management (continued)

Having
strengthened
the
implementation
of
technical
measures and security and safety
policies for the IT system, performed

the management and supervision
over the operation of network
systems and security, ensuring safe
operation of the system.

Having continued perfecting IT-related
internal procedures to improve the
management efficiency. In 2015,

banking, Eximbank directed the IT



operations to focus on supporting
retail business, diversifying products
and services, and enhancing
Electronic Banking product and
service quality.

In 2016, Eximbank continues to develop
IT according to the following orientations



To implement new Corebanking
system and complete the
construction of modern Data
center meeting international
standards. To conduct the
transformation of existing IT
system to a new IT system
engineering,
build
strong
IT infrastructure, serving as
premise
for
breakthrough
development in IT technologies
and services.





Eximbank continued to issue such
important regulations and procedures
as password management regulation,
business continuity deployment
procedures, digital certificate and
digital certificate storage device
management regulation, etc.

In consistence with the business
strategy of focusing on boosting retail

To promote the implementation
of
Card
and
business
development
projects
to
continue providing new Card
and Electronic Banking products
and services according to the
Bank’s retail strategy.
To implement IT system safety
and security projects to perfect
the safety and security system
in technical aspect and protect
the engineering infrastructure
against threat of attacks by hightech crimes.
To continue to perfect the
organizational
structure,
standardize internal procedures
related to IT system to improve
the management efficiency and
transparency in Eximbank’s IT
system management.

foreign
strategic shareholder

Cooperation with

2015 witnessed
an increase in the
number of Japanese
investors investing
in Vietnam market
in many sectors
from supporting
industry, precision
engineering to
restaurants,
hotels.
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A

long with such trend, SMBC
and Eximbank based on the
strategic alliance agreement
have boosted the marketing and
provision of affiliated services
to Japanese corporate clients
and Japanese direct investment
companies in Vietnam. The most
prominence of which is the business
that SMBC refers partners and
Eximbank provides financial services
to SMBC’s clients in Vietnam.
Continuing the growth momentum
of previous years, with experience
sharing and technical support by
SMBC, Eximbank has strengthened
the sales team and expanded its
retail banking market share with
key products such as house loans,
auto loans in affiliation with Japanbranded automobile dealers.

In addition to supporting Eximbank
in funding, risk management, SMBC
also pays attention and supports
Eximbank in inherited leadership
planning and training, perfection of
procedures and regulations in order
to make all operations transparent,
mitigate risks, enhance system
stability and business efficiency.
In 2015, SMBC’s secondees has
led IT project team to shortlist
and successfully select new Core
Banking solution for the bank as
well as expedite the construction of
a new data center to provide better
supports to the business activities.

International relations

900 SWIFT codes
of banks/banks’ branches
in nearly 80 countries
worldwide

I

n 2015, Eximbank’s international
relation activities were carried out
in two simultaneous directions.
Firstly,
Eximbank
proactively
reviewed and expedited various
measures and forms to reinforce
cooperation with existing partners
so as to effectively leverage each
party’s advantages and respective
assistance in operations, limits,
training, etc., helping better
serve customers’ demands. In
parallel with that, Eximbank also
considered establishing relations
with new partners, new markets.
As at end of 2015, Eximbank had
relations with nearly 900 Swift
codes of banks/banks’ branches in

nearly 80 countries worldwide.
With the above policy, Eximbank put
more emphasis on attending world’s
and region’s leading conferences
and seminars in banking sector, such
as: Asian Development Bank (ADB)’s
Annual Conference, ASEAN Banking
Council Meeting, Meeting of Finance
Sector CEOs at the sidelines of the
APEC Finance Ministers’ Meeting
2015, Sibos 2015, etc. Especially at
Sibos 2015 (Annual Conference on
banking and finance organized by
the Society for Worldwide Interbank
Financial
Telecommunication
(SWIFT)) with the participation of
nearly 8,000 delegates as leaders,
policy makers, experts from central
banks, commercial banks, financial
and market infrastructure service
providers all over the world,
Eximbank, apart from attending the
Conference, has along with 5 other
Vietnamese banks organized one
exhibition booth under coordination
of the State Bank of Vietnam. From
that, Eximbank could promote
its brand name to the world’s
banking financial community, meet,
exchange and seek for new business
opportunities with both existing and
potential partners.

Relations with

E

In 2015, Eximbank was also honored
to receive high recognition and
appreciation from big correspondent
banks and prestigious international
organizations and magazines with
respect to various operation aspects
via such awards as: Top 3 Best
Trade Finance Providers 2014 in
Vietnam by Euromoney magazine,
Best Trade Finance Bank 2015 by
The Asian Banker, Best Local Cash
Management Bank in Vietnam 2015
by Asiamoney magazine as voted
by small enterprises, Good Trade
Growth presented by Wells Fargo,
Excellence in International Payment
bestowed by JPMorgan Chase
Bank, The Bank of New York Mellon,
Standard Chartered Bank, etc.

From the results achieved,
Eximbank in 2016 will continue
strengthening its international
activities to further affirm
and heighten Eximbank’s brand
and position.

Investors and Shareholders

ximbank complied with the
disclosure on stock market
of the information related to
the bank’s operations, financial
statements, corporate governance
reports, General Meeting of
Shareholders, etc. in accordance
with the provisions of Circular
No. 52/2012/TT-BTC providing for
guidelines on information disclosure

on the stock market. Besides,
Eximbank was willing to receive
and furnish relevant information to
investors and shareholders in need
to study and invest in Eximbank,
and timely provided information
to the media about the bank’s
operations for investors to have
more information about Eximbank’s
activities.
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Profit before tax
2016 plan

720

Gross Domestic Product
(GDP) to rise by

million VND

6.7

%

export turnover
to surge by

10%

Regarding monetary policy orientations in 2016, the
State Bank of Vietnam defines its objectives of regulating
monetary policy in an active and flexible manner with close
coordination with fiscal policies and other macroeconomic

policies to control inflation in accordance with the targets
set forth, stabilize macro-economy to support reasonable
economic growth, and ensure liquidity of credit institutions
and the economy. Some specific targets are:

Total means of payment to
grow by

16% - 18%

Vietnam’s economy is
forecast to continue
strong recovery in 2016.
With the foundation
achieved in consecutive
entry into several trade
agreements, Vietnam will
become a place of FDI
attraction in the coming
years.
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2016
2016

business plan

Y

ear 2016 is also a pivotal year in the new term of
performing missions of the 5 years 2016 - 2020.
The Government’s objectives are to maintain
macroeconomic stability, strive for higher economic
growth against 2015, focus on improving the growth
quality, ensure sustainable development. Some key
indicators are anticipated as follows: Gross Domestic
Product (GDP) to rise by 6.7%, export turnover to surge by
10%, Consumer Price Index (CPI) growth rate to be below
5%, total investment for social development to be about
31% of GDP.

Based on the State
Bank of Vietnam’s
orientations in
regulating the
monetary policy
in 2016 and
Eximbank’s business
performance in
2015; upon assessing
its own internal
strengths as well
as advantages,
Eximbank has set out
the focused targets
and missions in 2016
as follows:

Credit exposure
to increase by

18% - 20%

subject to revision to suit
with actual situation

Unit: billion VND
Target

2016 plan

Increase against 2015

1. Total assets

142,500

14%

2. Fund raising

113,500

15%

3. Credit exposure

105,805

10%

4. NPLs/total loan balance
5. Profit before tax

≤ 3%
720
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Social and environmental responsibility

assessment report

Youth, dynamism,
creativity,
enthusiasm and
appropriate
qualifications are
favorable conditions
for the stability
and development
of Eximbank in the
future.

Assessment on
labour-related issues

E

ximbank’s total personnel
as of December 31, 2015
was 6,239 persons, up 511
persons (or 8.9%) compared to end
of 2014, mainly due to operational
scale expansion and continued
implementation of retail models.
The

majority

of

Eximbank’s

employees are at young age (nearly
80% of personnel are aged under
36), with high professional skills
and competence (nearly 80% of
personnel are holding graduate
or higher degree) and devotion to
Eximbank’s development (more than
50% of personnel have more than 05
years of seniority at Eximbank).

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’
EVALUATION ON THE BANK’S
PERFORMANCE
70	The Board of Directors’ evaluation on
			 operational aspects of the Bank .
71	The Board of Directors’ evaluation on
			 the performance of the Management.
72	Plans and Orientations of the Board of Directors.

Assessment on the bank’s
responsibility towards local community

W

ith the bank’s motto of
sustainability, Eximbank
not only focuses on
operational tasks but also always
calls for employees’ attention to
social responsibility activities such as
giving Mid-Autumn gifts to local poor
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Thanks to that, relationship and
responsibility of Eximbank with the social
community are further tightened.

From the charity programs, and
contribution to the social security
programs launched by the industry or
the locality, Eximbank’s high sense of
responsibility has been acknowledged
by the unions, departments/agencies
and the society, and its brand has also
been appreciated. Thanks to that,
relationship and responsibility of
Eximbank with the social community
are further tightened. This serves as a
source of motivation for Eximbank to
develop and enhance its brand value
in the coming years. With the efforts to
build a good community and to share
with the same, Eximbank will keep
focusing on charity activities and
social security programs organized by
prestigious organizations.

Direction t
ow
a

children, presenting gifts to policyfavoured families on Tet holiday, etc.
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The Board of Directors’ evaluation

The Board of Directors’ evaluation on

the performance of the Management

on operational aspects of the Bank

Eximbank seriously
implemented the
directions of the
State Bank of
Vietnam through
offering various
credit packages
to facilitate
businesses to
access sources
of funds at
preferential
interest rates,
concentrating
credit funds
on the priority
sectors, developing
lots of products
for individual
and corporate
customers, boosting
export and import
financing, etc.

B

esides, Eximbank continued
improving governance and
management
capacity,
strengthening organization mode,
enhancing funding structure in way
of higher stability and sustainability,
tightly controlling credit quality,
drastically disposing of bad loans,
perfecting mechanisms, policies,
procedures and regulations on

operational areas to maintain stable
business activities, and ensure
liquidity and operational safety.
Although the operating targets
failed to reach the Resolution
assigned by the General Meeting of
Shareholders, all staff and officers
of Eximbank had tried their best to
implement. Some targets achieved
included:

Total assets reached

Profit before tax reached

124,850 billion VND
completing 69.4% of the plan

61billion VND

completing 6.1% of the plan

Total mobilized funds from economic
entities and residents reached

98,431billion VND
completing 78.1% of the plan

NPLs (groups 3 to 5)

1,575 billion VND
accounting for 1.86%
of the total loan balance

ROA

ROE

0.03 %
0.3 %

Business performance
in 2015 was noteworthy
result achieved by the
Management in executing
the guidelines of the Board
of Directors. Eximbank
had fulfilled some basic
targets, of which the
most important ones were
to maintain stable and
sustainable customer base
and business activities

D

uring last year, under the business
conditions of changes in the general
regulating policy of the State Bank
of Vietnam; fluctuations in exchange rates;
information about Eximbank’s senior personnel,
Eximbank’s operating situation was still safe
through complying with prudential indicators as
stipulated by the State Bank of Vietnam, keeping
good liquidity in the system. Eximbank boosted
retail activity, bringing retail loans to rise by
41.5% compared to the end of 2014, contributing
significantly to the increase of pure loan balance
of the whole system. Although some large
domestic corporations, foreign banks withdrew
funds from Eximbank, in general mobilized
funds were still maintained, assuring Eximbank’s
business activities. Eximbank actively handled
overdue and bad loans through Risk Handling
and Overdue Debt Prevention Council,
reducing NPL ratio to 1.86%, contributing to the
transparency of the bank’s financial figures.       

Total credit exposure reached

96,188 billion VND

completing 88.4% of the plan. Of which,
loan balance reached 84,760 billion VND

70

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
www.eximbank.com.vn

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ EVALUATION ON THE BANK’S PERFORMANCE

71

Plans and
orientations of

By such, Eximbank should carry out
the following measures

the Board
Board of
of Directors
Directors
the

Group of measures to
restructure operating apparatus

The Board of Directors has agreed with the Management on assignment of 2016
business plan with some key operating targets being:

funds raised from
the primary market to reach

total assets to reach

142,500 billion VND

rising by  14% compared to 2015

113,500 billion VND

increasing by 15% against 2015

a streamlined
direction with
the aim of serving
customers in the
best and fastest
manner

credit exposure to reach

105,805 billion VND

up 10% compared to 2015
NPL ratio
to be under

<

3

R

estructure the operating apparatus at the Head Office and branches
and transaction offices for a streamlined direction with the aim of
serving customers in the best and fastest manner.

Consolidate the apparatus of the Divisions, Departments, Sections at the
Head Office, especially Corporate Banking Division, establish Eximbank Trade
Operations Center.
Improve structure of the sales force (RBO and RM), strengthen the role of
management and supervision of the Head Office over the sales team.
Specify reward and sanction policies towards the units in the system.
Improve operational supervision structure to strengthen supervision and
management of risks in the entire system, especially credit risk management.

profit before tax to be

720 billion VND

%

Group of measures of financial restructuring
to make Eximbank develop sustainably
Restructure assets
- liabilities items to
ensure the financial
indicators to be
balanced, assuring
effective and
sustainable business
operations

S

tructure the funds raised from organizations and residents towards
focusing on strengthening mid- and long-term funding to serve for midand long-term credit granting; ensuring ratio of short-term funding used
for mid- and long-term loans to be maximum <40% to ensure liquidity for the
system.
Strengthen retail banking activities.
Promote trade finance activities.
Study plans to increase charter capital in the following years in order to
strengthen the financial capability to meet requirements of funding and
operation scale expansion.

In order to achieve such objectives, Eximbank defines for 2016 the
orientations of restructuring the operating apparatus, restructuring
finance to make Eximbank develop stably, focusing on boosting debt
handling and building infrastructures to serve for business activities.
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The Board of Directors’ evaluation

on operational aspects of the Bank (continued)

Group of measures to focus on
strengthening debt handling
Debt handling should
be considered a
key task to reduce
the burden of bad
debt cost on profit
of Eximbank in the
coming years.

D

evelop debt handling plans based on debt classification by each
particular group with specific measures to quickly recover arrears and
bad debts. Debt handling should be considered a key task to reduce
the burden of bad debt cost on profit of Eximbank in the coming years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
76	The Board of Directors.
80	Operations of the Board of Directors.
84	The Board of Supervisors.
87	Operations of the Board of Supervisors.
88	Transactions, remunerations, and interests of the Board of
		Directors, the Board of Supervisors & the Management.

Assign debt handling plan to each region, branch. The degree of completion
of debt handling target should be treated as one criterion in evaluating the
management capability of the business units’ leaders.
Empower initiative to the Debt Handling Center, Branch Directors and
Transaction Office Managers in debt recovery such as negotiating to lower
lending interest rates for overdue loans, proactively handling debt disposal
expenses in line with the general regulated levels as issued and making
finalization on the basis of recovered debts, etc.
Consolidate the operating apparatus of the Debt Handling Center and AMC to
improve operation efficiency.

Construction of infrastructures
to serve for business activities
reduce the rental
cost in the future,
facilitate the
dealing of partners
and contribute to
improve Eximbank’s

C

onsider to build Eximbank’s headquarter to stabilize the working
premise of the Head Office, centralize the management over the
departments, sections under the Head Office, reduce the rental cost
in the future, facilitate the dealing of partners and contribute to improve
Eximbank’s brand image.
Consider to improve the quality of infrastructure at branches and
transaction offices towards consistence in offices’ facade, professionalism
and beauty in the arrangement of those departments dealing with
customers, especially customer service transaction counters.

cy

Review the location of the offices of existing branches, transaction
offices towards concentrating at the favorable business areas in order to
improve efficiency in marketing to potential customers with cost in line
with business performance of the units.

Efficien

Gather personnel and resources into the new Corebanking system
development project, Data Center construction project to ensure the
project progress.
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The Board

of Directors

Mr. Cao Xuan Ninh

Mr. Le Minh Quoc

Mr. Le Van Quyet

Mr. Dang Anh Mai

Mr. Ngo Thanh Tung

Mr. Hoang Tuan Khai

Mr. Cao Xuan Ninh was born in 1962 in
Vietnam and is a Bachelor of Foreign Credit
and a Master of Business Administration.
He used to hold key positions at Joint
Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade
of Vietnam like Deputy Manager, Manager
of International Settlements Department Vung Tau Branch, Deputy Director - Vung Tau
Branch, Deputy Director - Ho Chi Minh City
Branch, Director - Tien Giang Branch, and
Director – Ky Dong Branch. He used to be
Director of Vietnam Finance Co., Ltd. in Hong
Kong – VINAFICO; Deputy Chief, Chief of the
Representative Office of the State Bank of
Vietnam in HCMC. He is currently Member of
the Board of Directors of Eximbank.

Mr. Le Minh Quoc was born in 1951 with
Vietnamese and Canadian nationalities, and
is a Bachelor of Business Administration
in Switzerland. He used to be staff, Senior
Officer, Department Manager, Director,
Senior Vice President of BNP Paribas Canada
in Canada; Regional Manager in charge of
Trade finance for Asia, Australia and India
of Banque Nationale de Paris in France;
Regional Manager in charge of Trade finance
for Asia, Australia and India of BNP Paribas in
Singapore; Managing Director of BNP Paribas
in Taiwan; General Manager of BNP Paribas
Vietnam; Deputy General Manager, Deputy
Chief Comptroller of Orient Commercial
Joint Stock Bank. He is currently Chairman
cum Independent Member of the Board of
Directors of Eximbank.

Mr. Le Van Quyet was born in 1961 in
Vietnam and holds Bachelor’s degree of
Economics and Master’s degree of Business
Administration, and Certificate of Advanced
Political Theory. He used to hold various
positions at the State Bank of Vietnam in
Dong Nai Province like staff, Deputy Manager
of Currency Circulation Department, Deputy
Manager and then Manager of Economic
Analysis and Consolidation Department;
At Vietcombank Dong Nai, he used to be
staff, Deputy Manager of International
Settlements Department, Deputy Manager
of Credit Department, Manager of General
and Appraisal Department, Deputy Director,
Director; Vietcombank Bien Hoa Branch
Director. He is currently Member of the Board
of Directors of Eximbank.

Mr. Dang Anh Mai was born in 1966
and graduated with Master’s degree
from Duke University, USA. He used to
hold such positions as Senior Officer,
Deputy Department Manager and then
Department Manager at International
Cooperation Department of the State Bank
of Vietnam, Expert of World Bank in the
U.S., Department Manager at International
Cooperation Department of the State Bank
of Vietnam, Deputy Director of International
Cooperation Department of the State Bank
of Vietnam. He is currently a member of the
Board of Directors of Eximbank.

Mr. Ngo Thanh Tung was born in 1969 in
Vietnam and graduated with Bachelor
of Laws, Administration and Leadership
Certificate of USA, Master of Laws in USA,
and Doctoral researcher in USA. He used
to hold such positions as Legal consultant
– Managing Partner of Hong Duc Lawyers’
Office; Member of HCMC Bar Association
– HCMC Bar Federation; Member of the
Board of Directors of Grand Imperial Saigon
Hotel Co., Ltd. (Parkhyatt Hotel Saigon);
Chairman, Senior Member of the Executive
Council of Vietnam International Law
Firm (VILAF – Hong Duc); Visiting Lecturer
of Judicial Academy; Foreign consulting
member of Washington Bar Association,
USA; Corporate Advisory Council of
UNICEF Vietnam; Member of International
Association of Defense Counsel (IADC). He is
currently Member of the Board of Directors
of Eximbank.

Mr. Hoang Tuan Khai was born in 1962
in Hanoi. He graduated from Foreign
Trade University with major in Foreign
Trade Economics and studied Economics
Management in Netherlands. He used to be
Deputy Director and then Director of Vietnam
National General Export – Import Joint
Stock Company No.1. He is now Member
of the Board of Directors of Eximbank,
simultaneously, Chairman of the Board
of Directors of Vietnam National General
Export – Import Joint Stock Company No.1,
Chairman of the Board of Directors of De
Nhat Development Company, Chairman
of the Board of Directors of General Real
Estate Joint Stock Company No.1 and a
representative for the contributed capital
of Eximbank at and Board member of
Vinaconex Investment and Tourism
Development Joint Stock Company.

Board Member

Chairman
Independent Board Member

Members and Structure of the Board of Directors

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

The Board of Directors consists of 9 members: 1 Chairman cum Independent
Board Member and 8 members.
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The Board

of Directors (continued)

Changes in Members of the Board of Directors
As the Board of Directors’ Vth tenure (2010 - 2015) expired, 2015 Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders on
15/12/2015 elected the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors for the VIth tenure (2015 - 2020). Changes in the
members of the Board of Directors were as follows:

Full name

Board of Directors
membership in the Vth tenure

Board of Directors membership in
the VIth tenure

1

Mr. Le Hung Dung

Board Chairman

N/A

2

Mr. Ha Thanh Hung

Standing Vice Chairman

N/A

3

Mr. Pham Huu Phu

Vice Chairman

N/A

4

Mr. Dang Phuoc Dua

Vice Chairman

N/A

5

Mr. Lawrence Justin Wolfe

Independent Board
Member

N/A

6

Mr. Nguyen Quang Thong

Vice Chairman

Board Member

7

Mr. Hoang Tuan Khai

Vice Chairman

Board Member

8

Mr. Dang Anh Mai

Board Member

Board Member

9

Mr. Naoki Nishizawa

Vice Chairman

Board Member

10

Mr. Le Minh Quoc

N/A

Independent Board Member
– Board Chairman

11

Mr. Cao Xuan Ninh

N/A

Board Member

12

Mr. Le Van Quyet

N/A

Board Member

13

Mr. Ngo Thanh Tung

N/A

Board Member

14

Mr. Yasuhiro Saitoh

N/A

Board Member

No.

Mr. Nguyen Quang Thong

Mr. Naoki Nishizawa

Mr. Yasuhiro Saitoh

Mr. Nguyen Quang Thong was born in 1963 in
Kien Giang and is a Bachelor of Economics.
He used to hold such positions as: member
of the Board of Supervisors of Eximbank
and member of the Board of Directors
of Eximbank. He is currently member
of the Board of Directors of Eximbank;
simultaneously, Vice Chairman of the Board
of Directors of Bao Long Insurance Company,
and of Viet Long Securities Investment Fund
Management Corporation.

Mr. Naoki Nishizawa was born in 1957
with Japanese nationality, and is a Master
of Business Administration at Harvard
University, USA and a Bachelor of Laws at
Kyoto University. He is the representative
of the strategic partner, Sumitomo Mitsui
Banking Corporation (SMBC), at Eximbank. He
used to be Deputy General Manager of Tokyo
V-VI Corporate Banking Department of SMBC
Tokyo, Japan; Senior Vice President and then
Executive Vice President of Asia-Japanese
Banking Division; Executive Vice President
of Planning Department of Manufacturers
Bank, Los Angeles, USA; and Executive Vice
President of Planning Department of SMBC,
Tokyo, Japan. He is currently member of the
Board of Directors of Eximbank.

Mr. Yasuhiro Saitoh was born in 1961 with
Japanese nationality, and is a Bachelor of
Science in Japan; a Bachelor of Cultural
Anthropology with the sub major in Global
Economics in Japan; and a Bachelor of
Science with major in Cultural Anthropology
in France. He used to be Marketing Officer of
Mitsui Bank Ltd.; Vice President of Global Fixed
Income Investment Group, Capital Market
Trading Division (Tokyo); Management Senior
Vice President, Chief Investment Officer
(Bonds, Stocks, Commodities and investment
in private equity) of Asset Management
Division of Sakura Trust Company (New
York); Senior Executive Vice President of
Treasury Department of Manufacturers Bank
(Los Angeles); Standing Vice Chairman of
Risk Management Committee; Member of
Financial Investment Council, Member of
Central Credit Council of Vietnam Export
Import Commercial Joint Stock Bank. He is
currently member of the Board of Directors
of Eximbank.

Board Member
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Board Member

Board Member

Shareholding Ratio of Board members

No. Full name

Position

1

Mr. Le Minh Quoc

Independent
Board Member
cum Board
Chairman

2

Mr. Cao Xuan Ninh

Board Member

No. of
Personal
shares
shareholding
personally
ratio (%)
owned
0

0.00

0

0.00

3

Mr. Naoki Nishizawa

Board Member

0

0.00

4

Mr. Le Van Quyet

Board Member

0

0.00

5

Mr. Yasuhiro Saitoh

Board Member

0

0.00

6

Mr. Nguyen Quang Thong Board Member

152,714

0.0123603

7

Mr. Hoang Tuan Khai

Board Member

67,392

0.0054545

8

Mr. Dang Anh Mai

Board Member

0

0.00

9

Mr. Ngo Thanh Tung

Board Member

0

0.00

No. of
Representative
shares of the
of entity
entity
shareholder

Entity’s
shareholding
ratio (%)

Sumitomo
Mitsui Banking
185,329,207 15.0000624
Corporation
(SMBC)
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Operations of

the Board of Directors

of Councils and Committees
under the Board of Directors

Operations of

At present, Councils and Committees under the Board of Directors consist of:

Central Credit Council

In 2015, members of the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors
of the Vth tenure (2010 - 2015) from
01/01/2015 to 15/12/2015 directly
attended 32 meeting sessions of the
Board of Directors and their opinions in
writing were collected for 135 times;
members of the Board of Directors and
the Board of Supervisors of the VIth
tenure (2015 - 2020) from 15/12/2015
through 31/12/2015 directly attended
04 meeting sessions of the Board
of Directors and their opinions in
writing were collected for 3 times. The
Board of Directors’ operations were
reported every 6 months and annually
to the state regulators. The Board of
Directors’ Resolutions in 2015 were
fully posted on the bank’s website.

In 2015, Central Credit Council organized regular or
extraordinary meeting sessions to timely resolve credit
profiles exceeding the approval authority of the Head
Office Credit Council to quickly satisfy customers’
demands.

Financial Investment Council
Analyzed, assessed and advised the Board of Directors
on financial investment policies and regulations. In
performance of the function of advising the Board of
Directors, Financial Investment Council held meetings
to discuss investment-related issues upon occurrence
of actual operations. Accordingly, suggested to the
Board of Directors for tackling of such issues as:
making decisions regarding investments in new
bonds, restructuring of equity investments previously
executed in a more effective way, and considering
strengthening
cooperation
with
investment
counterparties for higher benefits, etc.

Fixed Asset Investment and
Liquidation Council
Analyzed, assessed and advised the Board of Directors
on fixed asset investments and disposals of Eximbank.

Risk Handling and Overdue Debt
Prevention Council
In 2015, Risk Handling and Overdue Debt Prevention
Council organized weekly meeting sessions for
resolution of debt handling dossiers, recovery of
overdue and bad loans exceeding the approval
authority of branches, Regional Directors and Debt
Handling Center, and decision-making on issues
related to loan classification, off-balance sheet
commitments, establishment and use of provisions for
disposal of credit risks.

Emulation, Reward and
Discipline Council
Studied and kept abreast of operating condition and
staff quality to timely advise the Board of Directors
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on discipline or reward according to regulations.
Specifically, advised the Board of Directors on reward
policy for excellent sales officers, and reward regime for
branches for exceeding the assigned targets, making high
contribution to the whole network’s profit and having low
NPL ratio.

Development Strategy Committee
The Committee’s members regularly studied and stayed
abreast of the information to conduct discussions with
and provide strategic consultations to the Board of
Directors. Specifically, some studies and reports which
have been advised to the Board of Directors were as
follows:
»» Made report on Vietnam’s economic conditions
to advise the Board of Directors on the business
development strategy of Eximbank in the second half
of 2014.
»» Conducted analysis and judgement to advise the
Board of Directors on the non-performing loan
handling orientations.
»» Analyzed and reviewed the internal control reports to
advise the Board of Directors on branch development
orientation.
»» Analyzed business and production activities and
financial capability of several customers to advise the
Board of Directors.
»» Studied and reported the impacts of TPP on the
economy and preparations of the banking industry.
»» Made report on the business performance of
Commercial Banks in the first 9 months of the year
to advise the Board of Directors on assessment of
Eximbank’s operations in 2015 and planning for 2016.
»» Judged and assessed the foreign investment sources
in Southeast Asia and Vietnam in 2016.
»» Analyzed Vietnam’s economic situation in 2015
and forecasted for 2016 to advise the Board of
Directors on business development strategy of
Eximbank in 2016.
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Operations of

the Board of Directors (continued)

of Councils and Committees
under the Board of Directors

Operations of

Personnel Committee
advised the Board of Directors on the following key issues:
»» Personnel policies in the network; officer planning of
all levels to prepare for successive managing officers
and employees for the development and expansion
of operation network;
»» Advice to the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors on anticipated personnel for membership
of the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors for the
VIth tenure (2015 – 2020).

Risk Management Committee
In the year, Risk Management Committee held 10 meeting
sessions and suggested to the Board of Directors the
following issues:
»» Management of lending activities at branches;
»» Implementation and compliance with Circular 36;
»» Deployment of suggestions in operational risk
management at Eximbank;
»» Effective use of Internal Auditors’ reports and
management of the progress of breach correction
and remedy at Branches and Transaction Offices;
»» Control over credit quality in connection with
interbank lending activity;
»» Deployment of suggestions of Operational
Supervision Division on management of credit items
granted to groups of customers;
»» Management of valuation and hiring of valuation
companies;
»» Discussion on regular reports on credit activity and
compliance with prudential ratios;
»» Regular reports on credit activity and compliance
with prudential ratios;
»» Implementation of recommendations of the Board of
Supervisors on the credit management at Eximbank.
»» Improvement of credit profile handling;
»» Assessment report on quality of lending to employees
of other entities;
»» Suggestions to innovate the regime of operating
target assignment, reward, discipline, and KPI
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construction according to Eximbank’s risk appetite,
especially in credit activity.

Alliance Committee
Instructed Alliance Department and operational divisions
to promote business association and cooperation
programs between SMBC and Eximbank. With its
commitment of long-term investment in Vietnam, in 2015,
SMBC continued to assist Eximbank in funding, education
and training, Vietnamese – Japanese enterprises
matching, referral of counterparties and provision of
financial services to two sides’ customers, especially
promotion of export import financing operations and
retail banking services.

Training Council
Training Council contributed opinions to the development
of training plan in 2015 to be submitted to the Board
Chairman for approval. Accordingly, the training to
standby transaction office managers, training classes
for Individual Credit/Corporate Customer Department
Leaders, and training to successive officers were more
focused.
In addition, Training Council also consulted opinions from
SMBC’s experts on such issues as: assessment of training
needs of sales officers, staff competency assessment,
discussion on Eximbank’s senior officers training as well
as training orientations of Eximbank.
Besides the training deployment in 2015, Training Council
also discussed personnel development and training
orientations in the forthcoming time.

Operation Network Planning
Development Committee

and

advised the Board of Directors on planning of policies
as well as operation network restructuring to suit with
Eximbank’s business conditions from time to time.
Concretely, over the past time, the Committee advised
the Board of Directors to direct relevant units to perform
the following tasks:
»» Advised on utilization of some assets owned by
Eximbank with convenient business location,
suitable for banking operations to serve as branches

and transaction offices’ premises for rental cost
mitigation and business office stability.
»» Advised measures to promote business operations
such as relocation of unfavorable business places
which do not meet the standards of infrastructure,
concretely the relocation of District 4 Branch and 11
transaction offices.

Banking Technology
Modernization Committee
with the role of advising the Board of Directors on
technology development strategies, supporting the
Management to perform the Board of Directors’ directions
in implementing information technology strategies and
plans, in 2015, the Committee performed the following
tasks:
»» Supported the Management in executing 2015 IT plan
as approved by the Board of Directors, participated in
the establishment of IT plan for 2016.
»» Full-time members and other concurrent members
of the Committee thoroughly participated in all IT
activities of Eximbank by supporting IT system operation to ensure its stable and continuous operation.
The Committee acted as a bridge among IT Division,

the Management and the Board of Directors.
»» Members of the Committee were the key persons in
participating in the IT Negotiation and Steering Committee, played an important role in selection of technology for key projects of the Bank like CoreBanking
project, supported the deployment of Data Center
project;
»» Participated in contributing opinions and appraising
information security policies, emergency response
procedures upon occurrence of information security
incidents;
»» Appraised, together with Internal Auditors and Accountants, investment reports of big projects of the
Bank.

Operations of Independent Board Member
Mr. Lawrence Justin Wolfe was independent Member
of the Board of Directors of Eximbank in the Vth tenure
(2010-2015) until 15/12/2015. From 15/12/2015, Mr. Le
Minh Quoc has been independent Board Member of
Eximbank in the VIth tenure (2015-2020). Independent
Board Member contributes opinions and votes for the
contents as prescribed in the Charter and relevant law
regulations.
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The Board

of Supervisors

Mr. Tran Ngoc Dung

Mr. Tran Le Quyet

Ms. Pham Thi Mai Phuong

Mr. Dang Huu Tien

Mr. Trinh Bao Quoc

Mr. Tran Ngoc Dung was born in 1966 in Sai
Gon. He is Bachelor of Credit and Finance,
Bachelor of Business Administration, and
Bachelor of Laws. He used to be Deputy
Chief of military base of Wards 8 and 13 of
Phu Nhuan District; Sales Officer of HCMC
Food Company; Accountant and then
Supervisor of Eximbank Cho Lon Branch;
Sales Officer of Expo Paint; Accountant and
then  Chief Accountant of Thien Loc Co., Ltd.;
Senior Officer of Investment and Planning
Department, Deputy Director of Internal
Inspection and Control Department, Nha
Trang Branch Director, Head Office Credit
Department Director, Nga Bay Branch
Director, Risk Management Division Head,
Member of the Board of Supervisors of Nam
A Bank; Assistant to the Board Chairman of
Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank, and
Eximbank.

Mr. Tran Le Quyet was born in 1981 in
Quang Binh. He holds Bachelor’s degree
in Accounting-Auditing, Corporate Chief
Accountant Training Certificate, Profitable
Negotiation Skill Certificate, Key Performance
Indicator Completion Certificate, and Chief
Financial Officer Certificate. He used to be
accountant of Dredging Investment and
Construction Company, Credit Officer, Credit
Risk Management Officer, Deputy Manager
of Credit Risk Management Section of HSC
in Ho Chi Minh City, Deputy Director of JSC
Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam – Tien
Giang Branch, and Vice Chief of the Board of
Supervisors of Eximbank.

Mrs. Pham Thi Mai Phuong was born in
1982 in Nha Trang. She graduated with
Intermediate Certificate in Accounting,
Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting, Bachelor’s
Degree in Foreign Trade Economics, Chief
Accountant Training Certificate, Chief
Customer Officer Certificate, and Chief
Financial Officer Certificate. She used to be
General Accounting Officer of Pacific Seafood
Export Import Company; General Accounting
senior officer, Corebanking senior officer,
Customer Service Center Director, Ben Thanh
Transaction Office Manager, Senior Officer of
the Board of Management’s Office, Customer
Service Center Director – Special envoy of
the Board of Directors of Nam A Commercial
Joint Stock Bank.

Mr. Dang Huu Tien was born in 1962 in
Hanoi. He graduated from Master of Business
Administration (MBA) course in USA, and
also holds Post-graduate Training Certificate
with major in economics, Bachelor of
Business Administration (Foreign Trade) –
Second Degree, Bachelor Degree in National
Economic Planning, Chief Accountant
Training Certificate, Senior Banking and
Finance Management Certificate, and Auditor
Training Certificate. He used to be Chief of the
Board of Supervisors of Eximbank in the Vth
tenure (2010-2015).

Mr. Trinh Bao Quoc was born in 1971 in
Vietnam. He graduated from Bachelor of
Biology and History course in USA, and
holds Master of Business Administration in
USA. He used to be project coordinator – US
Vietnam Trade Council; Lawyer Assistant and
Interpreter – Baker & McKenzie International
Law Firm; Financial & Investment Analysis
Department Director – Phu My Hung of
Central & Development Group (employer
of Tan Thuan Export Processing Zone, Hiep
Phuoc Power Plant, Phu My Hung Urban
Area); Director – QML Corporate Group;
Director cum Chief Representative in Vietnam
of Avenue Capital Group; Co-founder &
investor – Summa Training and Consultancy
Joint Stock Company; General Director – Son
Kim Real Estate Joint Stock Company.

Member
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Chief Supervisor

Member

Member

Member
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The Board

Operations of

of Supervisors (continued)

the Board of Supervisors

Changes in Members of the Board of Supervisors
In 2015 was the year ending the Vth tenure (2010-2015), structure of the Board of Supervisors was as follows:
No.
1

The Board of Supervisors
is the supervision body

Full name

Position

Remarks

of the Bank’s operations

Dang Huu Tien

Chief Supervisor

Elected for 2010 – 2015 tenure

to accurately assess its

2

Tran Le Quyet

Vice Chief Supervisor

Additionally elected on 28/4/2014 for 2010 2015 tenure

3

Nguyen Hong Long

Vice Chief Supervisor

Elected for 2010 – 2015 tenure

4

Nguyen Thi Phung

Member

Elected for 2010 – 2015 tenure

business performance
and financial condition,
conduct the internal
audit, control, assessment

At the General Meeting of Shareholders on 15/12/2015, the Board of Supervisors of the VIth tenure (2015-2020) was elected with the structure changed from 4 to 5 members:
No.

with law stipulations,

he Board of Supervisors has
closely coordinated with
the Board of Directors and
the Management to perform its
functions and duties, and attended
all meetings of the Board of Directors,
regular meetings of the Board of
Directors – the Board of Supervisors
– the Management, monthly
meetings, and review/consolidated
conferences.

The Board of Supervisors used the
Board of Internal Auditors to conduct
the regular and extraordinary internal
audit tasks with risk orientation,
combining with direct and remote
audit via the internal information
system (through the internal
information system, the Board of
Supervisors performed the remote
audit with respect to key business
operations at units in Eximbank’s
network). The audits are conducted
at Branches, Transaction Offices,
Subsidiary,
Divisions,
Centers,
Departments/Sections at Head
Office. The internal inspection and
control quality has been increasingly
improved and enhanced, with the
internal audit contents mainly
focusing on operational procedures
and inspection and control system
so as to detect, prevent and limit
risks in operations, and ensure the
compliance with provisions of state
regulators and of Eximbank.

In 2015, the Board of Supervisors
held 18 meeting sessions (in which,
16 extended meetings were attended
by the Chief Internal Auditor) to
discuss, implement and perform its

In 2015, the Board of Supervisors
directed 52 audit tranches (members
of the Board of Supervisors directly
instructed and presided meetings
to work with Audit teams and

internal regulations,

Full name

Position

Remarks

1

Tran Le Quyet

Chief Supervisor

Re-elected for 2015 – 2020 tenure

2

Dang Huu Tien

Member

Re-elected for 2015 – 2020 tenure

3

Trinh Bao Quoc

Member

Elected for 2015 – 2020 tenure

of the General Meeting

4

Tran Ngoc Dung

Member

Elected for 2015 – 2020 tenure

of Shareholders and the

5

Pham Thi Mai Phuong

Member

Elected for 2015 – 2020 tenure

Board of Directors.

Shareholding Ratio of the Members of the Board of Supervisors

No.
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of the compliance

Full name

Position

Personal Name of entity
shareholding ratio shareholder

JSC Bank for
0.00 Foreign Trade
of Vietnam

1

Tran Le Quyet

Chief
Supervisor

2

Dang Huu Tien

Member

0.0068182

3

Tran Ngoc Dung

Member

0.0001669

4

Pham Thi Mai Phuong Member

0.00

5

Trinh Bao Quoc

0.00
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Member

Entity’s
shareholding Remarks
ratio (%)
(Mr. Tran Le
Quyet represents
for the capital
8.1945167
contributed by
Vietcombank at
Eximbank)

functions and duties. In addition,
full-time members of the Board of
Supervisors directly participated
and presided 52 meetings with Audit
teams and audited units to discuss,
review, conclude and direct on the
internal audit task at each unit as
planned in an independent and
objective manner (in order to ensure
to properly/honestly reflect the
operating situation of the audited
units) as well as the issues needed to
be solved with Internal audit teams.

the Bank’s Charter and
resolutions and decisions

T

audited units) at units to perform
the internal audit as planned and
on extraordinary basis, concretely:
09 tranches at Head Office (in which,
IT: reviewed in 06 tranches, audited
in 01 tranche; 02 tranches parallel to
Independent Auditors to appraise
and review the Bank’s Financial
statements of 2014 and of the first
half of 2015), 38 tranches at Eximbank
Branches (149 belonging transaction
offices), 01 tranche at Eximbank Debt
Handling Center and 04 tranches as
requested by the Banking Inspection
and Supervision Agency.
Through the inspection and audit,
the Working teams made 12,593
recommendations in total so
as for the audited units to have
remedies/amendments/additions
with respect to the errors to restrict
risks in operations. Besides, there
were 270 recommendations for
the Head Office in relation to the
procedures and regulations in order
to help prevent risks, ensure higher
strictness in operations.
For the recommendations given
by the Banking Inspection and
Supervision Agency, the Board
of Supervisors, and the Board of
Internal Auditors regarding strict
handling of responsibility of the
collectives/individuals
having
intentional misconduct, or violation
of law/policies of credit and internal
governance of Eximbank and the
State Bank of Vietnam in 2015, the
Board of Directors and the Board
of Management had received,
handled and remedied the same,
and now the bank’s leaders keep on
executing them.
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Transactions, remunerations, and interests of

the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors & the Management

Salaries, Bonuses, Remunerations and Interests
Please refer to 2015 Consolidated Financial Statements, Notes No. 36 “Significant
transactions with related parties”.

Share Trading by Internal Shareholders
In 2015, Eximbank did not receive any notice or report on transactions of members of
the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors, the Management and their related
persons.

Consolidated
financial statements
90	Corporate information.
92	Statement of the Board of Management.
93	Independent auditor’s report.
95	Consolidated balance sheet.
98	Consolidated statement of income.
99	Consolidated statement of cash flows.
101	Notes to the consolidated financial statement.

Agreements or Transactions with Internal Shareholders
Content
Credit granting agreement/transaction between Eximbank District 3 Branch and Song Viet Corporation,
Thien Su Construction and Investment Joint Stock Company (related persons of Mr. Ha Thanh Hung –
Board Member of Eximbank)

2

Credit granting agreement/transaction between Eximbank Trang Bom Transaction Office of Dong Nai
Branch and Phu Viet Tin Investment Co., Ltd. (related person of Mr. Dang Phuoc Dua – Board Member of
Eximbank)

3

Vehicle insurance policy No. 21063/15/HD-1131/22-TKT dated 04/11/2015 between Eximbank and Bao
Long Insurance Corporation – Bao Long Main Transaction Office (related person of Mr. Nguyen Quang
Thong – Board Member of Eximbank).

4

Fire and special risks insurance policy No. 3206/15/HD-1063/22-TKT dated 11/11/2015 between Eximbank
and Bao Long Insurance Corporation – Bao Long Main Transaction Office (related person of Mr. Nguyen
Quang Thong – Board Member of Eximbank).

5

Credit granting agreement/transaction between Eximbank and Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation –
Ho Chi Minh City Branch (This limit has not been used by SMBC, outstanding placements under the limit
as of 31/12/2015 was 0)

6

Credit granting agreement/transaction between Eximbank and Song Viet Corporation (related person of
Mr. Ha Thanh Hung – Board Member of Eximbank)

7

Agreement/transaction on granting overdraft limit to Bao Long Insurance Corporation (related person of
Mr. Nguyen Quang Thong)

8

Trade Finance Transactions (financed for Eximbank by SMBC Singapore)

sustainabl
d
n
eg
a
e

h
wt
ro

1

sta
bl

No.

Implementation of Regulations on Banking Governance
Pursuant to prevailing law regulations (Law on Enterprises, Law on Credit Institutions,
Circular No. 121/2012/TT-BTC and other relevant documents), Eximbank has issued
and strictly and fully complied with the regulations on corporate governance.
Based on valid issued legal documents, Eximbank will conduct the review and report
to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and determination on
amending the regulations on banking governance as appropriate.

Auditors’ opinions

Please refer to the Independent Auditors’ Report of KPMG
to the shareholders of Vietnam Export Import Commercial
Joint Stock Bank in 2015 Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Corporate

Information

Establishment and
Operation Licence No.

11/NH-GP 6 April 1992

Mr. Tran Ngoc Dung

The Establishment and Operation Licence was issued by the State Bank of Vietnam and is
valid for 50 years from the licence date.
Business Registration
Certificate No.

Board of Directors

Mr. Le Minh Quoc

Mr. Ha Thanh Hung
Mr. Naoki Nishizawa
Mr. Nguyen Quang Thong
Mr. Hoang Tuan Khai
Mr. Dang Phuoc Dua
Mr. Pham Huu Phu
Mr. Dang Anh Mai
Mr. Naoki Nishizawa
Mr. Nguyen Quang Thong
Mr. Hoang Tuan Khai
Mr. Ngo Thanh Tung
Mr. Cao Xuan Ninh
Mr. Yasuhiro Saitoh
Mr. Le Van Quyet
Mr. Lawrence Justin Wolfe
Mr. Tran Le Quyet
Mr. Trinh Bao Quoc
Mr. Dang Huu Tien
Ms. Pham Thi Mai Phuong
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Mr. Nguyen Hong Long

0301179079 23 July 1992
The Business Registration Certificate has been amended several times, the most recent
certificate dated 14 November 2014.  The Business Registration Certificate was issued by
the Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City.

Mr. Le Hung Dung

Board of Supervisors

Mr. Dang Huu Tien

Mr. Tran Le Quyet
Ms. Nguyen Thi Phung

Chairman
(from 16 December 2015)
Chairman
(until 15 December 2015)
Standing Vice Chairman
(until 15 December 2015)
Vice Chairman
(until 15 December 2015)
Vice Chairman
(until 15 December 2015)
Vice Chairman
(until 15 December 2015)
Vice Chairman
(until 15 December 2015)
Vice Chairman
(until 15 December 2015)
Member
Member
(from 15 December 2015)
Member
(from 15 December 2015)
Member
(from 15 December 2015)
Member
(from 15 December 2015)
Member
(from 15 December 2015)
Member
(from 15 December 2015)
Member
(from 15 December 2015)
Thành viên độc lập
(until 15 December 2015)
Chief Supervisor
(from 15 December 2015)
Member
(from 15 December 2015)
Thành viên
(from 15 December 2015)
Member
((from 15 December 2015)

Board of Management

Mr. Tran Tan Loc
Mr. Pham Huu Phu
Mr. Tran Tan Loc
Mr. Nguyen Quoc Huong
Mr. Dao Hong Chau
Ms. Dinh Thi Thu Thao
Ms. Van Thai Bao Nhi
Mr. Le Anh Tu
Ms. Bui Do Bich Van
Mr. Nguyen Ho Hoang Vu
Mr. Le Hai Lam
Mr. Nguyen Quang Triet
Mr. Cao Xuan Lanh                   
Mr. Nguyen Van Hao
Mr. Masashi Mochizuki
Mr. Bui Van Dao
Mr. Nguyen Thuc Vinh
Mr. Mitsuaki Shiogo
Mr. Kenji Kuroki

Member
(from 15 December 2015)
Trưởng Ban
(until 15 December 2015)
Vice Chief Supervisor
(until 15 December 2015)
Vice Chief Supervisor
(until 15 December 2015)
Member
(until 15 December 2015)
Acting Chief Executive Officer
(from 10 December 2015)
Chief Executive Officer
(until 9 December 2015)
Standing Executive Vice President
(until 9 December 2015)
Vice President
Vice President
Vice President
Vice President
Vice President
Vice President
Vice President cum
Chief Financial Officer
Vice President
Vice President
Vice President
(until 20 January 2016)
Vice President
Vice President
(from 27 May 2015)
Vice President
(from 19 October 2015)
Vice President
(until 23 November 2015)
Vice President
(until 10 February 2015)
Vice President
(until 25 May 2015)

Registered Office

8th Floor, Office No. L8-01-11+16 Vincom Center,
No. 72 Le Thanh Ton Street, Ben Nghe Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

Auditors

KPMG Limited Vietnam
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Statement of

the Board of Management

INDEPENDENT

AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders
Vietnam Export Import Commercial Joint Stock Bank
The Board of Management of Vietnam Export Import Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“the Bank”) presents this statement
and the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as “the
Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015.
The Bank’s Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the State Bank of Vietnam and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting.  
In the opinion of the Bank’s Board of Management:
(a) The consolidated financial statements set out on pages 7 to 96 give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and of the consolidated results of operations and the consolidated
cash flows of the Group for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the State Bank of Vietnam and the relevant
statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting; and
(b) At the date of this statement, there are no reasons for the Bank’s Board of Management to believe that the Group will
not be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.
The Board of Management has, on the date of this statement, authorised the accompanying consolidated financial
statements for issue.
On behalf of the Board of Management

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Vietnam Export Import Commercial Joint
Stock Bank (“the Bank”) and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated statements of income and cash flows for the year then ended
and the explanatory notes thereto which were authorised for issue by the Bank’s Board of Management on 31 March
2016, as set out on pages 7 to 96.

The Board of Management’s Responsibilityc
The Bank’s Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the State Bank of Vietnam and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting,
and for such internal control as the Board of Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free of material misstatement.  
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Bank’s Board of Management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Tran Tan Loc
Acting Chief Executive Officer
Ho Chi Minh City, 31 March 2016
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INDEPENDENT

AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2015

Form B02/TCTD-HN

Auditor’s Opinion

UNIT: VND million

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the consolidated financial position of Vietnam Export Import Commercial Joint Stock Bank and its subsidiary as at 31 December 2015
and of their consolidated results of operations and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the State
Bank of Vietnam and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to financial reporting.

Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.  Accordingly, the
corresponding figures for the year ended 31 December 2014 have been restated.  The consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014, excluding the adjustments described in Note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements, were audited by another firm of auditors whose report dated 25 March 2015 expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.  As part of our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015, we audited the adjustments described in Note 41 that were applied to restate the corresponding figures
presented as at 31 December 2014 and for the year then ended. We were not engaged to audit, review or apply any procedures to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014, other than with respect to the
adjustments described in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
or any other form of assurance on those respective financial statements taken as a whole.  However, in our opinion, the
adjustments described in Note 41 are appropriate and have been properly applied.

KPMG Limited’s Branch in Ho Chi Minh City Vietnam
Audit Report No.: 15-01-234/1

__________________________________

__________________________________

Truong Vinh Phuc			 Nguyen Anh Hung
Practicing Auditor Registration		
Certificate No. 1901-2013-007- 1
Deputy General Director
Ho Chi Minh City, 31 March 2016

Practicing Auditor Registration
Certificate No. 2206-2013-007-1

Note

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

Restated

A

ASSETS

I

Cash on hand, gold

4

2,040,749

1,662,045

II

Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam

5

2,716,264

3,214,967

III

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions

6

7,833,274

39,463,116

1

Deposits with other credit institutions

7,833,274

33,219,476

2

Loans to other credit institutions

95,000

6,243,640

3

Allowance for credit losses

(95,000)

-

V

Derivatives and other financial assets

30,797

13,435

VI

Loans and advances to customers

83,889,887

86,123,843

1

Loans and advances to customers

8

84,759,792

87,146,543

2

Allowance for loans and advances to customers

9

(869,905)

(1,022,700)

10

19,118,084

19,923,493

VIII Investment securities

7

1

Available-for-sale securities

3,957,184

3,633,649

2

Held-to-maturity securities

16,178,452

16,518,217

3

Allowance for investment securities

(1,017,552)

(228,373)

IX

Capital contribution, long-term investments

1,869,834

1,940,102

3

Investments in associates

-

61,723

4

Other long-term investments

2,031,645

2,031,645

5

Allowance for diminution in the value of long-term
investments

(161,811)

(153,266)

X

Fixed assets

4,740,627

4,288,671

1

Tangible fixed assets

1,105,024

1,029,615

a

Cost

2,033,247

1,799,556

b

Accumulated depreciation

(928,223)

(769,941)

3

Intangible fixed assets

3,635,603

3,259,056

a

Cost

3,730,270

3,341,593

b

Accumulated amortisation

(94,667)

(82,537)

2,610,159

3,515,594

1,520,156

1,929,890

XII Other assets

11

12

13

14

1

Receivables

2

Accrued interest and fees receivable

992,436

1,408,202

4

Other assets

103,567

181,752

5

Allowance for losses on other assets

(6,000)

(4,250)

124,849,675

160,145,266

TỔNG TÀI SẢN
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Consolidated balance sheet (continued)
as at 31 December 2015
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UNIT: VND million
Note

B

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

Restated

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
I

Borrowings from the State Bank of Vietnam

15

544,945

6,613

II

Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions

16

7,933,317

41,043,340

1

Deposits from other credit institutions

7,103,777

29,554,266

2

Borrowings from other credit institutions

829,540

11,489,074

III

Deposits from customers

17

98,430,542

101,371,886

VI

Valuable papers issued

18

3,000,392

3,008,378

VII Other liabilities

1,795,758

1,595,322

1

Accrued interest and fees payable

1,510,364

1,264,197

2

Other liabilities

285,394

331,125

111,704,954

147,025,539

13,144,721

13,119,727

19

TOTAL LIABILITIES

UNIT: VND million
Note

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

39,475,997

30,858,294

36,219

34,274

32,350,457

22,220,308

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
I

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

35

1

Lending guarantees

2

Foreign exchange commitments
In which:
*

Purchase commitments of foreign currencies

153,212

99,992

*

Sale commitments of foreign currencies

358,369

867,519

*

Commitments on currency swap transactions

31,838,876

21,252,797

4

Letters of credit

3,856,992

4,903,797

5

Other guarantees

3,068,929

3,544,094

163,400

155,821

6 Other commitments
				

EQUITY
VIII Capital and reserves

21

1

Capital

12,448,674

12,448,674

a

Charter capital

12,355,229

12,355,229

b

Capital for construction, purchases of fixed assets

15,396

15,396

c

Share premium

156,322

156,322

d

Treasury shares

(78,273)

(78,273)

2

Reserves

1,513,516

1,505,613

5

Accumulated losses

(817,469)

(834,560)

13,144,721

13,119,727

124,849,675

160,145,266

TOTAL EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
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Nguyen Minh Thanh
General Accountant

Reviewed by

Legal representative

Nguyen Ngoc Ha	Tran Tan Loc
Chief Accountant

Acting Chief Executive Officer

31 March 2016
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Consolidated statement of income
for the year ended 31 December 2015
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (Direct method)

UNIT: VND million

UNIT: VND million
Note

2015

2015

2014

Restated/reclassified

Interest and similar income

22

8,601,184

8,681,711

2

Interest and similar expenses

22

(5,203,494)

(5,853,950)

I

Net interest income

22

3,397,690

2,827,761

3

Fees and commission income

23

567,691

454,119

4

Fees and commission expenses

23

(275,650)

(225,731)

II

Net fees and commission income

23

292,041

228,388

03 Net fees and commission income received
Net receipts from foreign currencies, gold and
04
securities trading activities
05 Other (expenses paid)/income received

III Net gain from trading of foreign currencies

24

62,715

170,254

06 Collection of bad debts previously written-off

V

Net loss from sales of investment securities

25

(34,163)

-

5

Other income

26

381,532

160,248

6

Other expenses

26

(296,390)

(136,230)

VI

Net other income

26

85,142

24,018

VII Loss from capital contribution, share purchase

27

(4,062)

(22,817)

VIII Operating expenses

28

(2,304,554)

(2,048,681)

1,494,809

1,178,923

(1,433,987)

(825,299)

60,822

353,624

IX

Operating profit before allowance expenses for
credit losses

X

Allowance expenses for credit losses

XI

Profit before tax (carried forward to the next
page)

7

Corporate income tax expense – current

30

(20,828)

(12,712)

8

Corporate income tax expense – deferred

30

-

-

30

(20,828)

(12,712)

39,994

340,912

33

277

XII Total corporate income tax expense

29

XIII Profit after tax
XV Basic earnings per share (VND/share)

31

01 Interest and similar income received

8,978,479

9,192,835

02 Interest and similar expenses paid

(4,957,387)

(6,057,442)

293,751

228,388

59,772

170,254

(38,637)

3,641

66,356

29,721

(2,072,604)

(1,824,719)

(21,441)

(106,481)

Cash flows from operating activities before changes
in operating assets and liabilities

2,308,289

1,636,197

Changes in operating assets
Decrease in deposits with and loans to other credit
09
institutions
10 Decrease/(increase) in investment securities

4,467,198

17,589,752

894,887

(2,036,725)

11 Increase in derivatives and other financial assets

(17,362)

(6,245)

12 Decrease/(increase) in loans and advances to customers

485,703

(8,111,246)

(648,478)

(167,090)

286,477

(96,385)

538,332

(420,188)

(33,110,023)

(24,723,214)

07 Salaries and operating expenses paid
08 Corporate income tax paid

13 Utilisation of allowance for credit losses
14 Decrease/(increase) in other operating assets
Changes in operating liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in borrowings from the State
15
Bank of Vietnam
Decrease in deposits and borrowings from other
16
credit institutions
17 (Decrease)/increase in deposits from customers
18 Decrease in valuable papers issued
21 Decrease in other operating liabilities
22 Utilisations of reserves

Nguyen Minh Thanh
General Accountant

Reviewed by

Legal representative

2014

reclassified

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

1

Prepared by

Form B04/TCTD-HN

I

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(2,941,344)

21,899,475

(7,986)

(4,669,366)

(54,434)

(16,882)

-

(46,432)

(27,798,741)

831,651

Nguyen Ngoc Ha	Tran Tan Loc
Chief Accountant

Acting Chief Executive Officer

31 March 2016
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Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (Direct method )

UNIT: VND million
2015

for the year ended 31 December 2015

01 Payments for purchases of fixed assets

(296,033)

(481,878)

02 Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets

304,801

127,208

07 Payments for investments in other entities

-

(6,545)

08 Proceeds from investments in other entities

-

12,907

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements

1.	Reporting entity
(a)

The Bank was established under Establishment and Operation Licence No. 11/NH-GP issued by the State Bank of
Vietnam (“SBV”) on 6 April 1992 and Business Registration Certificate No. 0301179079 issued by the Department
of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City on 23 July 1992. The Establishment and Operation Licence is
valid for 50 years from the from the licence date.

2,286

2,308
11,076

(346,022)

(89)

(490,978)

05 Payments for purchases of treasury shares

-

(78,273)

III CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(89)

(569,251)

(27,787,754)

(83,622)

IV

NET CASH FLOWS DURING THE YEAR

V

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR

40,362,491

40,446,113

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE
VII
YEAR (NOTE 32)

12,574,737

40,362,491

The Bank’s principal activities are to provide banking services including mobilising and receiving short, medium
and long-term deposits from various organisations and individuals; providing short, medium and long-term loans
to various organisations and individuals based on the Bank’s nature and capacity of capital resources; conducting
foreign exchange transactions; providing international trade finance services; discounting commercial papers,
bonds and other valuable papers; providing settlement services and other banking services as allowed by the
State Bank of Vietnam.
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 comprise the financial statements
of the Bank and it subsidiary (collectively referred to as “the Group”).
(b)

UNIT: VND million
2015

Cost of construction in progress acquired in the form of
netting-off with loans and advances to customers.

2014

Prepared by

Nguyen Minh Thanh
General Accountant

Reviewed by

(c)

403,898

-

Legal representative

Charter capital

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Bank’s charter capital is VND12,355,229 million. The Bank has issued
1,235,522,904 ordinary shares, with a par value of VND10,000 per share. The Bank’s shares have been listed on
the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange.

Reclassified

SIGNIFICANT NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITES

Establishment and opertations
Vietnam Export Import Commercial Joint Stock Bank (“the Bank”) is a commercial joint stock bank incorporated
in the Socialist Republic of Vietnam.

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
04 Dividends paid

Form B05/TCTD-HN

2014

Reclassified

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES	

09 Receipts of dividends and profit distributions from
capital contribution, share purchase
II NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Form B04/TCTD-HN

Location and operation network

The Bank’s Head Office is located at the 8th Floor, Office No. L8-01-11+16 Vincom Center, No. 72 Le Thanh Ton
Street, Ben Nghe Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.
TAs at 31 December 2015, the Bank has one (1) head office, forty four (44) branches, one hundred and sixty three
(163) transaction offices, one (1) savings fund nation-wide and one (1) representative office in Hanoi (31/12/2014:
one (1) head office, forty four (44) branches, one hundred and sixty-three (163) transaction offices, one (1) savings
fund nation-wide and one (1) representative office in Hanoi).

Nguyen Ngoc Ha	Tran Tan Loc
Chief Accountant

Acting Chief Executive Officer

31 March 2016
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Form B05/TCTD-HN

1.	Reporting entity (continued)
(d)

(c)

Group structure

The annual accounting period of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December.
(d)

As at 31 December 2015, the Bank had the following subsidiaries and associates:

Entity name

Operation licence

Nature of
business

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

(e)

No. 031028097
Assets
dated 24
management
August 2010

100%

100%

As at 31 December 2014, the Group reclassified the investment in Viet Dragon Securities Corporation as
investment in associate because the Group and related parties owned more than 11% charter capital of Viet
Dragon Securities Corporation. In 2015, Viet Dragon Securities Corporation increased its charter capital and the
Group did not purchase additional shares; therefore, as at 31 December 2015, the Group and related parties
owned below 11% of charter capital of Viet Dragon Securities Corporation and the investment in Viet Dragon
Securities Corporation becomes available-for-sale securities.
During 2014, the Group disposed its investment in E Xim Real Estate Joint Stock Company and this company was
no longer an associate of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.
Number of employees

(f)

Changes in accounting policies

(i)

The Bank

Debt classification in accordance with Point 3, Article 8; Point 1, Article 9 and Point 3a, Article 10 of Circular No.
02/2013/TT-NHNN (“Circular 02”)
From 1 January 2015, Point 3, Article 8 and Point 1, Article 9 of Circular 02 has been effective.  Accordingly, credit
institutions, foreign bank branches are required to use the results of debt classification as provided by the Credit
Information Center of the SBV (“CIC”) at the date of classification to adjust results of the internal classification of
loans and off-balance sheet commitments if risk groups of the internal classification are lower than risk group
provided by CIC.
Whereas, Point 3a, Article 10 of Circular 02 has expired since 1 April 2015. Accordingly, credit institutions, foreign
bank branches are not permitted to reschedule the payment terms without changing loan group as stipulated in
Point 3a, Article 10 since 1 April 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 6,239 emloyees (31/12/2014: 5,728 employees).

The Bank has adopted these requirements on a prospective basis.  The changes in debt classification policy are
disclosed in Note 3(g) – Debt classification, allowance level and calculation method of allowance for credit losses.

2.

Basis of preparation

Adoption of Circular No. 49/2014/TT-NHNN

(a)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
the Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the SBV and the relevant statutory
requirements applicable to financial reporting.  These standards and statutory requirements may differ in some
material respects from International Financial Reporting Standards and the generally accepted accounting
principles and standards in other countries.  Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements
are not intended to present the consolidated financial position and consolidated results of operations and
consolidated cash flows in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices in countries
or jurisdictions other than Vietnam. Furthermore, their utilisation is not designed for those who are not informed
about Vietnam’s accounting principles, procedures and practices applicable to credit institutions.
(b)

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements, except for the consolidated statement of cash flows, are prepared on the
accrual basis using the historical cost concept.  The consolidated statement of cash flows is prepared using the
direct method.

102

Form of accounting records applied

The Group uses accounting software to record its transactions.

The subsidiary was established in Vietnam.

(e)

Accounting and presentation currency

The Group’s accounting currency is Vietnam Dong (“VND”), which is also the currency used for financial statement
presentation purpose, rounded to the nearest million (“VND million”).

Percentage of equity owned
and voting rights

Subsidiary
Eximbank Asset Management Company

Annual accounting period

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
www.eximbank.com.vn

On 31 December 2014, the State Bank of Vietnam issued Circular No. 49/2014/TT-NHNN (“Circular 49”) amending
and supplementing certain articles of the Financial Reporting Regime applicable to credit institutions issued
under Decision No. 16/2007/QD-NHNN dated 18 April 2007 of the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam and the
regulation on Chart of Accounts for credit institutions issued under Decision No. 479/2004/QD-NHNN dated 29
April 2004 of the Governor of the State Bank of Vietnam.  Circular 49 is effective from 15 February 2015.
Accordingly, the Bank’s financial statements presentation for the year ended 31 December 2015 reflected certain
changes following the new templates provided by Circular 49.  Certain corresponding figures for the year ended
31 December 2014 have been reclassified to conform to current year’s presentation (Note 42 – Corresponding
figures).
Adoption of Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
On 22 December 2014, the Ministry of Finance issued Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC providing guidance on
Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises (“Circular 200”). Circular 200 replaces previous guidance on
Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises under Decision No. 15/2006/QD-BTC dated 20 March 2006
(“Decision 15”) and Circular No. 244/2009/TT-BTC dated 31 December 2009 of the Ministry of Finance. Circular
200 is effective after 45 days from the signing date and applicable applicable for annual accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2015.   In addition to compliance with the Vietnamese Accounting System for
Credit Institutions, the Bank also adopted the relevant requirements of the Vietnamese Accounting System for
enterprises.
Consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

2.

Basis of preparation (continued)

(f)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii)

The subsidiary

Form B05/TCTD-HN

(b)

The Group’s transactions are accounted in original currencies. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than VND are translated into VND at rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date (refer to Note
38(c)(ii) for the foreign exchange rates applied as at 31 December 2015). Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than VND are translated into VND at rates of exchange ruling on the transaction
dates. The Group’s income and expenses in foreign currencies are translated into VND at rates of exchange ruling
on transaction dates.   Foreign exchange differences arising from monthly translation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in the “Foreign exchange differences” account in Equity and recorded in the consolidated
statement of income at the end of the annual accounting period.

The subsidiary adopted Circular 200 in preparation of its financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.
(iii)

Consolidation

On 22 December 2014, the Ministry of Finance issued Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC providing guidance on
preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements (“Circular 202”).  Circular 202 replaces previous
guidance on preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements provided in Part XIII of Circular
No. 161/2007/TT-BTC dated 31 December 2007 of the Ministry of Finance.  Circular 202 is effective after 45 days
from the signing date and applicable for annual accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.  The
Group has adopted Circular 202 on a prospective basis. The adoption of Circular 202 did not have any material
effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 201.

3.	Summary of significant accounting policies

(c)

Basis of consolidation

(i)

Subsidiary

(d)

Loans to other credit institutions are loans with original term to maturity of not more than twelve months.
Deposits with other credit institutions excluding demand deposits are stated at the amount of outstanding
principal less specific allowance for credit losses.
Credit risk classification of deposits with and loans to other credit institutions and allowance thereof is made
in accordance with Circular 02 and Circular No. 09/2014/TT-NHNN dated 18 March 2014 issued by the SBV
(“Circular 09”) amending and supplementing certain articles of Circular 02. Accordingly, the Group made the
specific allowance for credit losses on deposits with and loans to other credit institutions in accordance with the
accounting policy as described in Note 3(g).

Where the accounting policies of subsidiary are different from those adopted by the Bank, adjustments have
been made where necessary to ensure consistency of accounting policies for consolidated financial statements.

Associates (“equity accounted investees”) are accounted for using the equity method.  The consolidated financial
statements include the Group’s share of the income and expenses of the equity accounted investees from the
date that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases.  When the Group’s
share of losses exceeds its carrying value of investments accounted by using equity method, the carrying amount
is reduced to nil and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an
obligation or has made payments on behalf of the investees.
(iii)

In accordance with Circular 02, the Group is not required to make general allowance for credit losses on deposits
with and loans to other credit institutions.

Associates (equity accounted investees)

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions

Deposits with other credit institutions excluding demand deposits are deposits with other credit institutions with
original term to maturity of not more than 3 months.

Subsidiary is entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity in order to obtain economic benefits from its activities.  The financial
statements of the subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

(ii)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, gold, balances with the State Bank of Vietnam, deposits with
and loans to other credit institutions with original term to maturity of not more than three months and securities
which have maturity dates within three months from the purchase dates.

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted by the Group in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements.
(a)

Foreign currency transactions

(e)

Derivative financial instruments

Forward and swap currency contracts
Forward currency contracts and swap currency contracts are recorded at the net contract values in the
consolidated financial statements.  The differences between the currency amounts which are committed to buy/
sell at contractual exchange rate and the currency amounts translated at the spot exchange rate at the effective
date of the forward currency contracts and swap currency contracts are amortised to the consolidated statement
of income on a straight-line basis over the terms of these contracts.
The positions of forward currency contracts are revalued at the spot exchange rate at each month-end. Unrealised
gains/losses are recorded in the foreign exchange differences account in Equity on the consolidated balance
sheet at each month-end and transferred to the consolidated statement of income at the end of the annual
accounting period.

Unrealised gains and losses arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the
investments to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investees.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015
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3.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(f)

Group

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers are stated at the amount of principal less allowance for credit losses. Allowance
for credit losses on loans and advances to customers comprises specific allowance and general allowance.
Short-term loans are those with repayment term within one year from the loan disbursement date; medium-term
loans are those with repayment term over one year to five years from the loan disbursement date and long-term
loans are those with repayment term of more than five years from the loan disbursement date.

Allowance rate

(a) Current debts being assessed as fully and timely recoverable, both principal and interest; or
1

Current debts

(b) Debts being overdue for less than 10 days and being assessed as
fully recoverable, both overdue principal and interest, and fully and timely
recoverable, both remaining principal and interest.

2

Special
mention debts

(a) Debts being overdue between 10 days and 90 days; or
(b) Debts having rescheduled terms of repayment for the first time.

5%

(b) Debts having extended terms of repayment for the first time; or
(c) Debts having exempt or reduced interest because customers are not able
to pay the interest according to the credit contract; or

3

Sub-standard
debts

(d) Debts falling in one of the following cases not yet collected within 30 days
after the issuance date of the recovery decision:
*

Debt classification and allowance for credit losses for loans and advances to customers are made in accordance
with Circular 02 and Circular 09 as described in Note 3(g).

Debts having violated regualtions specified in Points 1, 3, 4, 5, 6 of Article
126 of Laws on Credit Institutions; or

*

Debts having violated regualtions specified in Points 1, 2, 3, 4 of Article 127
of Laws on Credit Institutions; or

(g)

Debt classification, allowance level and calculation method of allowance for credit losses

*

Debts having violated regualtions specified in Points 1, 2, 5 of Article 128 of
Laws on Credit Institutions.

(i)

Debt classification

20%

(e) Debts in the collection process under inspection conclusions.
(a) Debts being overdue between 181 days and 360 days; or

Loan classification for deposits with and loans to other credit institutions (except for demand deposits), unlisted
corporate bonds, loans and advances to customers (together referred to as “debts”), the debts sold but not yet
paid have been classified in accordance with the quantitative method as stipulated in Article 10 of Circular 02.
(ii)

0%

(a) Debts being overdue between 91 days and 180 days; or

The Group derecognises loans and advances to customers when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
loans expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the loans are transferred.
For the loans sold to Vietnam Asset Management Company (“VAMC”), the Group derecognised from the balance
sheet in accordance with the guidance in Official Letter No. 8499/NHNN-TCKT dated 14 November 2013 (“Official
Letter 8499”) issued by the SBV and Official Letter No. 925/NHNN-TCKT dated 19 February 2014 (“Official Letter
925”) issued by the SBV.

Overdue status

(b) Debts having rescheduled terms of repayment for the first time and being overdue less than 90 days according to the first rescheduled terms of
repayment; or

Specific allowance for credit losses

4

Doubtful debts

In accordance with the requirements of Circular 02 and Circular 09, the specific allowance for credit losses at the
end of annual accounting period (31 December) is calculated using the allowance rate for each debt classification
of outstanding balance of debts at the last working day of November less the allowed value of collateral assets.
Specific allowance rates applied to each group of debts were as follows:

(c) Debts having rescheduled terms of repayment for the second time; or

50%

(d) Debts specified in point (d) of Sub-standard debts not yet collected
between 30 days and 60 days after the issuance date of recovery decision; or
(e) Debts in the collection process under inspection conclusions but being
overdue up to 60 days according to recovery term.
(a) Debts being overdue more than 360 days; or
(b) Debts having rescheduled terms of repayment for the first time and
being overdue more than 90 days according to the first rescheduled terms
of repayment; or
(c) Debts having rescheduled terms of repayment for the second time and
being overdue according to the second reschedule terms of repayment; or
5

Loss debts

(d) Debts having rescheduled terms of repayment for the third time or more,
regardless of whether the debts are overdue or not; or

100%

(e) Debts specified in point (d) of Sub-standard debts not yet collected within 60 days after the issuance date of recovery decision; or
(f) Debts in the collection process under inspection conclusions but being overdue of more than 60 days according to recovery term; or
(g) Debts to credit institutions being announced under special control status by
the SBV, or to foreign bank branches of which capital and assets are blockaded.
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3.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(g)
(ii)

Allowed values of collateral assets are subject to the following caps:

Debt classification, allowance level and calculation method of allowance for credit losses (continued)
Specific allowance for credit losses(continued)

For off-balance sheet commitments, the Group classifies debts based on the overdue days from the date when
the Group performs committed obligation:


Group 3 – Sub-standard debts: overdue below 30 days;



Group 4 – Doubtful debts: overdue from 30 days to less than 90 days;



Group 5 – Loss debts: overdue from 90 days.

Maximum
allowed ratio

Type of collateral assets

(a) Customers deposits in VND

100%

(b) Gold billets, except for the types of gold specified in item (i) below; customers
deposits in foreign currencies

95%

(c) Government bonds, transferable instruments, valuable papers issued by credit
institutions, saving deposit certificates, certificates of deposit, bills and notes issued
by other credit institution or foreign bank branches:

Where a customer owes more than one debt to the Group, and has any of its debts transferred to a higher risk
group, the Group is obliged to classify the remaining debts of such customer into the group of debts with higher
risk corresponding with their level of risk.

*

With a remaining term of below 1 year

95%

*

With a remaining term of between 1 year to 5 years

85%

*

With a remaining term of over 5 years

80%

(d) Securities issued by other credit institutions and listed on a stock exchange

70%

(e) Securities issued by other enterprises and listed on a stock exchange

65%

(f) Unlisted securities and valuable papers, except for the types of securities
specified in item (c) above, issued by other credit institutions registered for listing
on a stock exchange;

50%

TThe Group is also required to use the results of debt classification as provided by CIC at the date of classification
to adjust the results of its internal classification of debts.  Where debts and off-balance sheet commitments of
one customer is classified by the Group into a group of debts with lower risk as compared to those provided by
CIC, the Group is required to reclassify such debts and off-balance sheet commitments to the group of debts as
provided by CIC.

Unlisted securities and valuable papers, except for the types of securities specified
in item (c) above, issued by other credit institutions not registered for listing on a
stock exchange

30%

According to Official Letter No. 5482/NHNN-TTGSNH dated 30 July 2014 issued by the SBV providing implementation
guidance of Circular 02 and Circular 09, the Group is not required to use the debt groups provided by CIC for the
loans with rescheduled repayment terms and maintains the debt groups within the rescheduled payment terms
as stipulated in Circular 02.

Unlisted securities and valuable papers issued by enterprises not registered for
listing on a stock exchange

10%

(h) Real estate

50%

(i) VGold billets not having quoted price, other types of gold and other collateral
assets

30%

Where the Group participates in a syndicated loan not as the lead bank, the Group reclassifies all debts (including
the syndicated loan) of the customer into a higher risk group of debt as decided by the lead bank, participating
banks and by the Group.

(g) Unlisted securities and valuable papers issued by enterprises registered for
listing on a stock exchange;

Prior to 1 April 2015: In accordance with Point 3a, Article 10 of Circular 02, amended and supplemented by
Circular 09, debt groups of rescheduled debts remain unchanged as before the reschedule provided that the
following conditions are met:


The debt was granted under credit facility which does not violate any law or regulation;



The reschedule of repayment term is in line with the purpose of the project as stated in the credit agreement;



The borrower used the debt for the correct purpose;



The borrower has a new debt repayment plan that is feasible and suitable to its business; and



The Group remains in compliance with regulations of the SBV on limits, banking safety ratio including the
maximum ratio of short-term funding being used for medium and long-term lending in case of restructuring
short-term debts into medium-term or long-term debts.

30%

Collateral assets that do not satisfy the legal conditions as specified in Point 3, Article 12 of Circular 02 are deemed
to have zero allowed value.
(iii)

General allowance for credit losses
In accordance with Circular 02, a general allowance for credit losses at the end of annual accounting period (31
December) is made at 0.75% of the outstanding balance of debts except for deposits with and loans to other
credit institutions and debts which are classified as Loss debts on the last working date of November.

From 1 April 2015: Point 3a, Article 10 of Circular 02 expires. Accordingly, the Group is not allowed to reschedule
debts without changing debt group as mentioned above.
The allowed value of collateral assets is determined in accordance with the following principles as set out in
Circular 02:
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Collateral asset with value of VND50 billion or more for debts to related parties or other parties subject to
credit restriction under Article 127 of Law on Credit Institutions and collateral asset with value of VND200
billion or more must be valued by a licensed asset valuation organisation; and



Other than the above, collateral assets are valued in accordance with the Group’s internal policies and
processes.
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3.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(g)

For listed available-for-sale equity securities, the market price is the closing price of securities obtained from the
Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange and the Hanoi Stock Exchange at the reporting date.

Debt classification, allowance level and calculation method of allowance for credit losses (continued)

For unlisted available-for-sale equity securities that have been registered on the UPCoM market, the market price
is the closing prices obtained from the UPCoM market at the reporting date.

(iv)       Writing-off bad debts
In accordance with Circular 02 and Circular 09, debts are written-off against the allowance when they have
been classified to Group 5 or when borrowers have been declared bankrupt or dissolved (for borrowers being
organisations and enterprises) or borrowers are deceased or missing (for borrowers being individuals).

For unlisted securities that have not been registered on the UPCoM market and are actively traded on the market,
the market price is the average of the transaction prices quoted by three securities companies having charter
capital of more than VND300 billion at the reporting date.

Debts written-off against allowance are recorded as off-balance sheet items for following up and collection.  The
amounts collected from debts previously written-off, including proceeds from sales of collaterals against those
loans, are recognised in the statement of income upon receipt.

Other securities whose market price cannot be determined reliably are stated at cost.
Premiums and discounts arising from purchases of available-for-sale debt securities are amortised to the
consolidated statement of income using the straight line method over the period from the acquisition date to the
maturity date, in cases these available-for-sale securities are sold before their maturity dates, the unamortised
premiums and discounts are fully recognised in the consolidated statement of income at the selling date.

(v)       Provision for off-balance sheet commitments
In accordance with Circular 02 and Circular 09, the debt classification of off-balance sheet commitments is done
solely for risk management, credit quality supervision of credit granting activities. The Group is not required to
make provision for off-balance sheet commitments, except where the Group has been required to made payment
under the guarantee contract, in which case the payment on behalf is classified and allowance for credit losses is
made in accordance with the accounting policy as described in Note 3(g).
(h)

Post-acquisition interest income of available-for-sale debt securities is recognised in the consolidated statement
of income on an accrual basis. Interest income received which are attributable to the period before acquisition
date of available-for-sale debt securities are deducted from the carrying amount of available-for-sale debt
securities.

Investment securities

The allowance for credit losses of available-for-sale unlisted corporate bonds and allowance for diminution
in the value of other available-for-sale securities as mentioned above are reversed if the recoverable amount
increases after the allowance being recognised.  An allowance is reversed only to the extent that the investment’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no allowance had
been recognised.

Investment securities include available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities.  The Group classifies investment
securities at the time of purchase as available-for-sale securities or held-to-maturity securities. In accordance
with Official Letter No. 2601/NHNN-TCKT dated 14 April 2009 issued by the SBV, for investment securities, the
Group is allowed to reclassify maximum one time after the initial classification at purchase date.
(i)

Derecognition

Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the securities have
expired or the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Classification

Available-for-sale securities are debt securities or equity securities which are bought and intended to be held for
an indefinite period and may be sold at any time.

(ii)

Held-to-maturity securities
Classification

Recognition

The Group recognises available-for-sale securities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
these securities (trade date accounting).

Held-to-maturity securities are debt securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities where
the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold until maturity.
Recognition

Measurement

Available-for-sale unlisted corporate bonds are stated at cost less allowance for credit losses. Credit risk
classification and allowance for credit losses of unlisted corporate bonds are made in accordance with the
requirements of Circular 02 and Circular 09 as described in Note 3(g).
Other available-for-sale securities are stated at cost, which includes purchase price plus any directly attributable
transaction costs such as brokerage fees, transactions fees, information fee and bank charges (if any).  After that,
these securities is recognised at the lower of book value and market value with the loss being recognised in the
consolidated statement of income.
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The Group recognises held-to-maturity securities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
these securities (trade date accounting).
Measurement

Held-to-maturity unlisted corporate bonds are stated at cost less allowance for credit losses. Credit risk
classification and allowance for credit losses of unlisted corporate bonds are made in accordance with the
requirements of Circular 02 and Circular 09 as described in Note 3(g).
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3.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(h)

Investment securities (continued)

(ii)

Held-to-maturity securities (continued)

Other held-to-maturity securities are stated at cost less allowance for diminution in value. Allowance for
diminution in value is made when there is an indicator of long-term decline or strong evidence that the Group
might not be able to fully recover the amount and the Group does not make allowance for diminution in value for
short-term changes in prices.

For the special bonds issued by VAMC, specific allowance is calculated and made in accordance with the guidance
in Circular No. 19/2013/TT-NHNN dated 6 September 2013 issued by the SBV regulating the purchase, sale and
handling of bad debts of VAMC (“Circular 19”) and Circular No. 14/2015/TT-NHNN dated 28 August 2014 issued by
the SBV amending and supplementing certain articles of Circular 19 (“Circular 14”). Accordingly, the minimum
specific allowance required to make each year during the term of the special bonds is the positive difference
between 20% of the par value of the special bonds less the collected amount of the underlying bad debts during
the year. Annually within 5 consecutive working days before the due date of special bonds, the Group is required
to make the above specific allowance once and is not required to make general allowance for special bonds.  
Allowance for special bonds is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.
(i)

Premiums and discounts arising from purchases of held-to-maturity securities are amortised to the consolidated
statement of income using the straight line method over the period from the acquisition date to the maturity date.

Other long-term investments are investments in equity instruments of entities where the Group has no control
or significant influence.  These long-term investments are initially recognised at cost.  Subsequent to the initial
recognition, they are measured at cost less allowance for diminution in value.

Post-acquisition interest income of held-to-maturity securities is recognised in consolidated statement of income
on an accrual basis. Interest income received which are attributable to the period before acquisition date of heldto-maturity securities are deducted from the carrying amount of held-to-maturity securities.

Allowance for diminution in value of long-term investments in economic entities is required if the economic entities
suffer losses, except when the loss was anticipated in the initial business plan.  The allowance for diminution in
value is equal to the difference between the actual capital contributed by all investors and the actual equity
multiply (x) with the percentage of actual capital contributed by the Group over total actual capital contributed
by all investors at the reporting date.   The allowance is reversed if the recoverable amount increases after the
allowance being recognised. An allowance is reversed only to the extent that the investment’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no allowance had been recognised.

The allowance for credit losses on held-to-maturity unlisted corporate bonds and the allowance for diminution
in the value of other held-to-maturity securities as mentioned above are reversed if the recoverable amount
increases after the allowance being recognised.  An allowance is reversed only to the extent that the investment’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no allowance had
been recognised.
Derecognition

(iii)

Other long-term investments

(j)

Investments in associates

Held-to-maturity securities are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the securities have
expired or the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Associates are those entities in which the Group or the Group and its related parties own more than 11% charter
capital or more than 11% of share capital with voting rights, but not the Group’s subsidiaries.

Special bonds issued by VAMC

Associates are accounted for using the equity method (equity accounted investees). According to equity method,
the investments in associates are initially recognised at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, the carrying value
of the investments is adjusted in accordance with the changes in the investee’s net assets owned by the Group.

Classification

The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the income and expenses of the equity accounted
investees, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date that significant
influence or joint control commences until the date that significant influence or joint control ceases.  When the
Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted investee, the carrying amount of that interest
(including any long-term investments) is reduced to nil and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the investee.

Special bonds issued by VAMC as consideration for bad debts sold by the Group to VAMC are recognised as held-tomaturity securities.
Recognition

The Group accounts for bad debts sold in exchange for special bonds issued by VAMC in accordance with the
guidance in Official Letter 8499 and Official Letter 925.  These special bonds are classified as held-to-maturity
securities, measured initially at par value at transaction date and subsequently measured at par value less
allowance for losses.
Measurement

In exchange of each bad debt sold to VAMC, the Group receives a corresponding special bond issued by VAMC.
Par value of the special bond is equal to the carrying value of bad debt sold net off specific allowance which was
made but not yet utilised.

(k)

Other assets

Other assets, except for receivables from credit activities, are stated at cost less the allowance for losses on other
assets.
Allowance for losses on other assets are made based on the overdue status of receivables or expected losses on
undue debts which may occur when an economic organisation is bankrupted or liquidated; or debtor is missing,
running away, being prosecuted, in prison, under a trial or pending execution of sentences or deceased. The
incurred expenses are accounted as the operating expenses during the year.

After completing the procedures of selling bad debts, the Group writes down the book value of bad debts, uses
specific allowance made but not yet utilised and derecognises interest receivables recorded in off-balance sheet
account. At the same time, the Group recognises the special bonds issued by VAMC as held-to-maturity securities
issued by local economic entities.
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3.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(k)

(n)

Other assets (continued)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation.  Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

For the assets which has overdue payments, the Group applies the allowance rate based on the overdue status as
required in Circular No. 228/2009/TT-BTC dated 7 December 2009 issued by the Ministry of Finance as follows:
Overdue status

Allowance rate

Over 6 months to below 1 year

30%

From 1 to below 2 years

50%

From 2 to below 3 years

70%

From 3 years and above

100%

Allowance for losses on other assets based on the expected losses of undue receivables are determined by the
Group after giving consideration to the recovery of these receivables.
(l)

Tangible fixed assets

(i)

Cost

(o)

Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions are stated at cost.
(p)

(q)

(r)



buildings and structures



machinery and equipment

5 - 10 years



office equipment

3 - 10 years



motor vehicles

3 - 10 years



other fixed assets

5 - 10 years

(i)

Land use rights

(s)
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Severance allowance and unemployment insurance

On 24 October 2012, the Ministry of Finance issued Circular No. 180/2012/TT-BTC (“Circular 180”) guiding the
financial treatment for redundancy allowance to employees of enterprises.   Circular 180 provides that, in
preparation of 2012 financial statements, if an enterprise’s provision for redundancy allowance still has the
outstanding balance, the enterprise must reverse the balance to other income for 2012 and must not carry
forward balance to the following year. Accordingly, the Group reversed the outstanding balance of provision for
severance allowance. This change in accounting policy has been applied prospectively from 2012.
Pursuant to the Law on Social Insurance, effective from 1 January 2009, the Group and its employees are required
to contribute to an unemployment insurance fund managed by the Vietnam Social Insurance Agency. The
unemployment insurance paid by the Group for the years of service is recorded as expense in the consolidated
statement of income when incurs.
(t)

Capital

(i)

Charter capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.  Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognised as a deduction from equity.

Software

Cost of acquiring new software, which is not an integral part of the related hardware, is capitalised and treated as
an intangible asset.  Software costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over 5 to 10 years.

Other payables

Under the Vietnamese Labour Code, when an employee who has worked for 12 months or more (“the eligible
employees”) voluntarily terminates his/her labour contract, the employer is required to pay the eligible employee
severance allowance calculated based on years of service as of 31 December 2008 and employee’s average
monthly salary of the latest 6 consecutive months period up to the resignation date. Provision for severance
allowance has been provided based on employees’ years of service and their current salary level.

25 - 50 years

Land use rights comprise those acquired in a legitimate transfer. Freehold land use rights are stated at cost and
are not amortised. Initial cost of a land use right comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
incurred in conjunction with securing the land use right.
(ii)

Valuable papers issued

Other payables are stated at cost.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of items of tangible fixed assets.  
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Intangible fixed assets

Deposits from customers

Deposits from customers are stated at cost.

Depreciation

(m)

Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions

Valuable papers issued are stated at cost. Cost of these issued valuable papers comprise proceeds from issuance
net off issuance costs.

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.  The initial cost of a tangible fixed asset
comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the tangible fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs, maintenance and overhaul
costs, is charged to consolidated statement of income in the year in which the costs are incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of tangible fixed assets beyond its originally assessed
standard of performance, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of tangible fixed assets.
(ii)

Provisions

(ii)

Share premium

On receipt of proceeds from share issuance from shareholders, the difference between the issue price and the par
value of the shares is recorded in share premium account in equity.
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3.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(t)

Capital (continued)

(iii)

Treasury shares

From time to time, the Group has outstanding commitments to extend credit. These commitments take the form
of approved loans and overdraft facilities.   The Group also provides financial guarantees and letters of credit
to guarantee the performance of customers to third parties. The contingent liabilities and commitments may
expire without being advanced in whole or in part.  Therefore the amounts do not represent a firm commitment
of future cash flows.

When the Bank repurchases the Bank’s ordinary shares (“treasury shares”), the amount of the consideration paid,
which includes directly attributable costs, is recognised as a deduction from equity.

(w)

The Group recognises the interest income on an accrual basis, except for interest income from the debts classified
in Group 2 to Group 5 as defined in Note 3(g) being recognised upon receipt.  When debts are classified in Group 2
to Group 5 as defined in Note 3(g) the accrued interest is reversed and recorded in the off-balance sheet.  Interest
income from these debts is recognised in the consolidated statement of income upon receipt.

When the treasury shares are reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognised as an increase in equity,
and the difference between the issue price and carrying value of shares reissued is recorded in share premium
account in equity.
(u)

Reserves

(ii)

Statutory reserves

(x)

(y)

Annual allocation

Maximum balance

        5% of profit after tax

100% charter capital

        10% of profit after tax

25% charter capital

(z)

(aa)

Dividend received in the form of shares and bonus shares is not recognised as income and the Group only records
the increase in number of shares. Dividends received which are attributable to the period before investment
acquisition date are deducted from the carrying amount of the investment.
(bb)

(iii)

Other reserves

Other reserves include investment and development fund and other reserves appropriated from the Group’s
profit after tax approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.  These reserves are not required by
laws, fully distributable and classified as part of equity.
(v)

Off-balance sheet items

Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the consolidated statement of income on a straightline basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the consolidated statement of
income as an integral part of the total lease expense.

Bonus and welfare fund

Bonus and welfare fund is not required by laws and is fully distributable, and is used primarily to make payments
to the Group’s employees. Bonus and welfare fund is established at the shareholders’ decision at the Annual
General Meeting and is recognised as other liabilities. The appropriation rate is decided by the shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting.

Dividend income

Dividend receivable in the form of cash is recognised in the consolidated statement of income when the Group’s
right to receive dividend is established.

According to Circular No. 27/2002/TT-BTC dated 22 March 2002 issued by the Ministry of Finance, the appropriations
of statutory reserves are made in accordance with the requirements applicable to the Bank as described above.
(ii)

Fees and commission expenses

Fees and commission expenses are recognised in the consolidated statement of income when incurred.

The purpose of financial reserve is to cover the remaining losses in the course of business after such losses being
compensated by the organisations, individuals causing the loss, indemnity and the allowance; to use for other
purposes in accordance with the laws.  The statutory reserves are non-distributable and are classified as part of
equity.
Eximbank Asset Management Company – the subsidiary

Fees and commission income

Fees and commission income include the income from the settlement services, guarantee services, cashier
services and other services. Fees and commission income are recognised on an accrual basis.

According to Decree No. 57/2012/ND-CP dated 20 July 2012 issued by the Government of Vietnam, the Bank is
required to make the following allocations before distribution of profits:

Financial reserve

Interest expense

Interest expense is recognised in the consolidated statement of income on an accrual basis.

The Bank

Reserve to supplement charter capital

Interest income

(cc)

Taxation

Corporate income tax on the profit or loss for the period comprises current and deferred tax.  Corporate income
tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly to equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted at the reporting
date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous periods.
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.  
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Commitments and contingent liabilities
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3.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

(cc)

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, other than:

Taxation (continued)

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.  Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
(dd)

Earnings per share

Related parties

(gg)

Classification of financial instruments

Solely for the purpose of providing disclosures about the significance of financial instruments to the Group’s
financial position and results of operations and the nature and extent of risk arising from financial instruments,
the Group classifies its financial instruments as follows:
(i)

cthose that the Group designates as available-for-sale; and



those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.



that the Group intends to sell immediately or in the near term, which are classified as held for trading and
those that the Group, on initial recognition, designates as at fair value through profit or loss;



that the Group, upon initial recognition, designates as available-for-sale; or



for which the Group may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of credit
deterioration, which are classified as available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or
those are not classified as:

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing related products
or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.  
The Group’s primary format for segment reporting is based on geographical segments and the secondary format
is based on business segments.



Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market, other than those:

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions, or
where the Group and the other party are subject to common control or significant influence.  Related parties
may be individuals or corporate entities and include close family members of any individual considered to be a
related party.
(ff)

those that the Group, upon initial recognition, designates as at fair value through profit or loss;

Loans and receivables

The Group presents basic earnings per share (“EPS”) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year.   Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
the ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effect of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise convertible bonds and share options.
(ee)



(ii)



loans and receivables;



held-to-maturity investments; or



financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
A financial liability at fair value through profit or loss is a financial liability that meets either of the following
conditions:


Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss


A financial asset at fair value through profit or loss is a financial asset that meets either of the following conditions:
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It is classified by the Group as held-for-trading.  A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:
*

it is acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term;

*

there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit-taking; orc

*

it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective
hedging instrument).

Upon initial recognition, it is designated by the Group as at fair value through profit or loss.
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It is considered by management as held for trading.  A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
*

it is incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term;

*

there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

*

it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective
hedging instrument).

Upon initial recognition, it is designated by the Group as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Financial liabilities which are not classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are classified
as financial liabilities carried at amortised cost.
The above described classification of financial liabilities is solely for presentation and disclosure purposes and
is not intended to be a description of how the financial instruments are measured.   Accounting policies for
measurement of financial liabilities are disclosed in other relevant notes.

Consolidated financial statements

119

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Form B05/TCTD-HN

3.	Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(hh)

Material errors in prior periods

6.	Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions

The Group corrects material prior period errors retrospectively in the consolidated financial statements by:

(ii)

UNIT: VND million



Restating the comparative amounts for the prior periods presented in which the errors occurred; or



Adjusting the opening balances of assets, liabilities and items of equity for the earliest prior period presented
if the errors occurred before that period.

98,808

190,146

3,303,126

1,922,160

Deposits with other credit institutions

*

In VND

*

In foreign currencies

Term deposits

4.	Cash on hand, gold

UNIT: VND million

*

In VND

3,321,550

25,238,360

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

*

In foreign currencies

1,109,790

5,868,810

Cash in VND

846,541

701,172

7,833,274

33,219,476

Cash in foreign currencies

942,159

696,190

Gold

252,049

264,683

95,000

2,758,700

2,040,749

1,662,045

-

3,484,940

95,000

6,243,640

(95,000)

-

-

6,243,640

7,833,274

39,463,116

Loans to other credit institutions
*

In VND

*

In foreign currencies

Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam
Allowance for credit losses on deposits with and loans to other
credit institutions

These consist of compulsory reserve for liquidity and current account at the SBV.
Under the SBV’s regulations relating to the compulsory reserve, banks are permitted to maintain a floating balance
for compulsory reserve requirement (“CRR”). The monthly average balance of the reserve must not be less than
relevant CRR rates multiplied by the preceding month’s average balances of deposits in scope as follows:

Deposits in scope

Term deposits and loans to other credit institutions categorised by credit risk group are as follows:

CRR rates
31/12/2015

31/12/2014

UNIT: VND million

Preceding month’s average deposit balances of:
Customers:

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

4,415,790

37,350,810

*

Deposits in foreign currencies with term of less than 12 months

8%

8%

Group 1 - Current debts

*

Deposits in foreign currencies with term of 12 months and above

6%

6%

Group 4 - Doubtful debts

15,550

-

Group 5 - Loss debts

95,000

-

4,526,340

37,350,810

*

Deposits in VND with term of less than 12 months

3%

3%

*

Deposits in VND with term of 12 months and above

1%

1%

1%

1%

Movements in the allowance for credit losses on deposits with and loans to other credit institutions during the
year were as follows:

UNIT: VND million

UNIT: VND million

Overseas credit institutions:
* Deposits in foreign currencies
		

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

Current account and compulsory reserve

120

31/12/2014

Demand deposits

Nil balances

Items or balances required by Circular 49 that are not shown in these consolidated financial statements indicate
nil balances.

5.

31/12/2015

2014

-

-

*

In VND

1,607,784

2,106,702

Allowance made during the year

95,000

-

*

In VND

1,108,480

1,108,265

Closing balance

95,000

-

2,716,264

3,214,967

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
www.eximbank.com.vn

Opening balance

2015
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7.	Derivatives and other financial assets

Loan portfolio by credit risk group was as follows:
UNIT: VND million

UNIT: VND million
As at 31 December 2015

Total contract value
(at foreign exchange
rate at the contract date)

Total carrying value
(at foreign exchange rate
as at 31 December 2015)
Assets

Currency forward contracts

*

Currency swap contracts

31/12/2014

82,690,435

84,466,501

Group 2 - Special mentioned debts

493,885

535,671

Group 3 - Sub-standard debts

181,992

245,592

Group 4 - Doubtful debts

591,316

555,154

Group 5 - Loss debts

802,164

1,343,625

84,759,792

87,146,543

Group 1 - Current debts

Liabilities

Currency derivatives
*

31/12/2015

3,809,583

29,012

-

15,942,587

1,785

-

19,752,170

30,797

-

Loan portfolio by term was as follows:
UNIT: VND million

UNIT: VND million
As at 31 December 2014

Total contract value
(at foreign exchange
rate at the contract date)

Total carrying value
(at foreign exchange rate
as at 31 December 2015)
Assets

Liabilities

Currency derivatives
*

Currency forward contracts

6,155,514

6,482

-

*

Currency swap contracts

9,633,883

6,953

-

15,789,397

13,435

8.	Loans and advances to customers
UNIT: VND million

Loans to local economic entities and individuals
Discounted transferrable instruments and valuable papers
Payments on behalf of customers

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

Short-term loans

31,618,759

45,599,692

Medium-term loans

15,806,410

12,384,194

Long-term loans

37,334,623

29,162,657

84,759,792

87,146,543

Loan portfolio by business sector of customers was as follows:
UNIT: VND million
31/12/2015

31/12/2014

Individual and community services

33,203,944

29,372,611

Trading

20,942,648

21,953,633

Agriculture and forestry

6,730,921

7,656,638

Manufacturing and processing

6,500,828

7,686,299

Electricity, gas and water producing and distribution

5,908,704

6,064,489

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

Construction

5,174,406

7,360,964

84,401,111

86,532,138

Transportation, warehousing and communication

1,983,031

777,961

357,513

611,275

Hotels and restaurants

1,385,227

1,413,807

1,168

3,130

Financial services

867,373

2,107,376

84,759,792

87,146,543

Education and training

551,611

672,769

Asset trading activities and consultancy services

448,815

463,965

Mining exploration

308,702

409,937

Health care and social relief activities

301,835

451,512

Operation of international organisations or parties

278,708

580,853

Science and technology

124,216

127,089

48,823

46,640

84,759,792

87,146,543

Sport and cultural activities
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8.	Loans and advances to customers (continued)
Loan portfolio by type of borrower and type of business is as follows:

10.	Investment securities
UNIT: VND million
31/12/2015

31/12/2014

Individuals

35,984,766

30,425,487

Limited liability companies

21,837,001

26,103,578

Joint stock companies

13,884,318

17,083,070

State-owned enterprises

10,096,115

11,064,924

1,962,076

2,061,406

100% foreign owned companies

805,563

352,888

Co-operatives

162,095

48,501

27,858

6,689

84,759,792

87,146,543

Private companies

Others

9.	Allowance for loans and advances to customers

UNIT: VND million
31/12/2015

31/12/2014

Available-for-sale securities
Debt securities
*

Treasury bills issued by the State Bank of Vietnam

-

1,033,278

*

Treasury bills issued by the State Treasury

-

250,000

*

Government bonds

3,922,512

2,348,379

722

722

33,950

1,270

3,957,184

3,633,649

-

-

3,957,184

3,633,649

Equity securities
*

Shares issued by other local credit institutions

*

Shares issued by local economic entities

Allowance for available-for-sale securities

Allowance for credit losses on loans and advances to customers consists of:
UNIT: VND million

(i)

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

General allowance (i)

628,462

618,294

Specific allowance (ii)

241,443

404,406

869,905

1,022,700

Movements in general allowance for credit losses on loans and advances to customers during the year were as follows:

UNIT: VND million

Opening balance
Allowance made during the year
Closing balance
(ii)

2015

2014

618,294

596,177

10,168

22,117

628,462

618,294

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

150,042

1,108,894

Held-to-maturity securities (excluding special bonds issued by
VAMC)
Debt securities
*

Government bonds

*

Bonds issued by other local credit institutions – unlisted

4,600,000

4,600,000

*

Bonds issued by local economic entities – unlisted

5,198,000

6,025,000

9,948,042

11,733,894

(38,422)

(44,625)

9,909,620

11,689,269

Allowance for held-to-maturity securities
*

General allowance (i)

Movements in specific allowance for credit losses on loans and advances to customers during the year were as follows:

UNIT: VND million

UNIT: VND million
31/12/2015

31/12/2014

Special bonds issued by VAMC (ii)

2015

2014

*

Special bonds’ par value

6,230,410

4,784,323

Opening balance

404,406

114,781

*

Allowance for special bonds

(979,130)

(183,748)

Allowance made during the year

539,640

631,253

(648,478)

(167,090)

5,251,280

4,600,575

(51,062)

(174,017)

(3,063)

(521)

241,443

404,406

Allowance utilised during the year
Allowance utilised for the loans sold to VAMC
Foreign currency translation difference
Closing balance
124

UNIT: VND million
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10.	Investment securities (continued)

(ii)

Other long-term investments:

Movements in general allowance for held-to-maturity securities during the year were as follows:

(i)

UNIT: VND million

UNIT: VND million
2015

2014

44,625

-

-

44,625

Allowance reversed during the year

(6,203)

-

Closing balance

38,422

44,625

Opening balance
Allowance made during the year

(ii)

These are special bonds issued by VAMC in exchange for bad debts sold to VAMC by the Group with total
outstanding principal of VND6,454,402 million. At the time of selling bad debts to VAMC, the Group has made
specific allowance for these debts amounting to VND223,992 million.

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

1,672,663

1,672,663

52,483

52,483

306,499

306,499

2,031,645

2,031,645

Investments in other local credit institutions
*

Listed entities

Investments in local economic entities

(iii)

*

Listed entities

*

Unlisted entities

Movements of allowance for diminution in the value of other long-term investments during the year were as follows:

UNIT: VND million

Movements in allowance for special bonds issued by VAMC during the year were as follows:
UNIT: VND million
2015

2014

Opening balance

183,748

-

Allowance made during the year

803,919

183,748

(8,537)

-

979,130

183,748

Allowance reversed during the year
Closing balance

Opening balance
Allowance made during the year
Allowance reversed during the year
Closing balance

2015

2014

153,266

123,065

9,617

32,213

(1,072)

(2,012)

161,811

153,266

11.	Capital contribution, long-term investments
UNIT: VND million

Investments in associates (i)
Other long-term investments (ii)

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

-

61,723

2,031,645

2,031,645

2,031,645

2,093,368

(161,811)

(153,266)

1,869,834

1,940,102

Allowance for diminution in the value of long-term investments
*

(i)

126

Allowance for diminution in the value of other long-term
investments (iii)

As at 31 December 2014, the Group reclassified the investment in Viet Dragon Securities Corporation as
investment in associate because the Group and related parties owned more than 11% charter capital of Viet
Dragon Securities Corporation. In 2015, Viet Dragon Securities Corporation increased its charter capital and
the Group did not purchase additional shares; therefore, as at 31 December 2015, the Group and related
parties owned below 11% of charter capital of Viet Dragon Securities Corporation and the investment in Viet
Dragon Securities Corporation becomes available-for-sale securities.
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12.	Tangible fixed assets
UNIT: VND million
2015

Building and structures

Machinery equipment

Motor vehicles

Office equipment

Other fixed assets

Total

436,397

567,871

230,677

41,485

523,126

1,799,556

-

-

217

-

-

217

191,196

30,482

4,003

2,240

35,186

263,107

-

625

-

(225)

(400)

-

Disposals

(22,378)

(819)

(3,047)

(551)

(2,838)

(29,633)

Closing balance

605,215

598,159

231,850

42,949

555,074

2,033,247

21,066

295,829

135,969

28,285

288,792

769,941

8,209

62,519

30,244

4,866

59,302

165,140

-

220

-

(152)

(68)

-

(978)

(744)

(2,941)

(493)

(1,702)

(6,858)

28,297

357,824

163,272

32,506

346,324

928,223

Opening balance (as restated – Note 41)

415,331

272,042

94,708

13,200

234,334

1,029,615

Closing balance

576,918

240,335

68,578

10,443

208,750

1,105,024

Cost
Opening balance (as restated – Note 41)
Additions during the year
Transfer from construction in progress
Reclassification

Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance (as restated – Note 41)
Charge for the year
Reclassification
Disposals
Closing balance
Net book value

UNIT: VND million
2014

Building and structures

Machinery equipment

Motor vehicles

Office equipment

Other fixed assets

Total

Opening balance (as restated – Note 41)

255,562

479,042

207,123

42,152

481,507

1,465,386

Transfer from construction in progress

193,497

88,939

34,158

316

42,734

359,644

-

(79)

(1,019)

(293)

1,391

-

Disposals

(12,662)

(31)

(9,585)

(690)

(2,506)

(25,474)

Closing balance

436,397

567,871

230,677

41,485

523,126

1,799,556

16,098

234,797

106,518

25,684

225,457

608,554

4,968

61,099

37,069

3,269

62,883

169,288

Reclassification

-

(36)

(910)

(77)

1,023

-

Disposals

-

(31)

(6,708)

(591)

(571)

(7,901)

21,066

295,829

135,969

28,285

288,792

769,941

Opening balance (as restated – Note 41)

239,464

244,245

100,605

16,468

256,050

856,832

Closing balance

415,331

272,042

94,708

13,200

234,334

1,029,615

Cost

Reclassification

Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance (as restated – Note 41)
Charge for the year

Closing balance
Net book value

As at 31 December 2015, included in tangible fixed assets were assets costing VND295,429 million which were fully
depreciated (31/12/2014: VND184,280 million) but which are still in use.
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13.	Intangible fixed assets
UNIT: VND million
2015

Land use rights

Software

14.	Other assets
UNIT: VND million

Total

Cost
3,209,098

132,495

3,341,593

603,132

15,342

618,474

Disposals

(229,797)

-

(229,797)

Closing balance

3,582,433

147,837

3,730,270

Opening balance (as restated – Note 41)
Transfer from construction in progress

31/12/2014

Constructions in progress (i)
*

Advances for purchases of fixed assets

310,151

536,870

*

Construction in progress
Advances for purchases of other assets

281,101
19,769

264,278
34,348

611,021

835,496

*

Receivables

Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance (as restated – Note 41)

-

82,537

82,537

*

Receivables from share transfers (ii)

303,828

303,679

Charge for the year

-

12,130

12,130

*

Over-paid corporate income tax (Note 20)

129,561

128,948

*

Advance for salary not yet finalised

116,012

239,295

*

Receivables from Vinashin’s debts settlement (iii)

87,500

131,250

*

Advances for operating activities

57,797

51,712

Closing balance

-

94,667

94,667

Net book value
Opening balance (as restated – Note 41)

3,209,098

49,958

3,259,056

*

Receivables from interest subsidy program

38,451

38,442

Closing balance

3,582,433

53,170

3,635,603

*

Receivables from card payments

31,079

35,177

*

Deposits for house rentals and other operating lease

26,111

12,775

*

Advances for debts collection awaiting for finalisation

18,736

34,683

*

Corporate income tax paid in foreign countries awaiting for
finalisation

12,519

12,895

*

Dividend receivable

5,865

5,865

5,472

6,034

76,204

31,466
62,173

909,135

1,094,394

992,436

1,408,202

UNIT: VND million
2014

Land use rights

Software

Total

Cost
2,467,458

128,100

2,595,558

*

Deductible value added tax

34,868

-

34,868

*

825,750

4,395

830,145

*

Over-paid value added tax
Other receivables

Disposals

(118,978)

-

(118,978)

Closing balance (as restated – Note 41)

3,209,098

132,495

3,341,593

Opening balance (as restated – Note 41)
Additions
Transfer from construction in progress

Accrued interest and fees receivable
Other assets

Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance

-

70,685

70,685

*

Prepaid expenses

72,962

122,588

Charge for the year

-

11,852

11,852

*

Materials and tools

17,473

16,608

Closing balance (as restated – Note 41)

-

82,537

82,537

*

Settlements among credit institutions

13,132

-

*

Collateral assets transferred to the Group awaiting for
finalisation

-

42,556

103,567

181,752

(6,000)

(4,250)

2,610,159

3,515,594

Net book value
Opening balance (as restated – Note 41)

2,467,458

57,415

2,524,873

Closing balance (as restated – Note 41)

3,209,098

49,958

3,259,056

As at 31 December 2015, included in intangible fixed assets were assets costing VND41,033 million which were
fully depreciated, (31/12/2014: VND40,728 million) but which are still in use.
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16.	Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions

14.	Other assets (continued)
(i)

UNIT: VND million

Movements in construction in progress during the year were as follows:

UNIT: VND million

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

2015

2014

Opening balance

835,496

1,587,889

Additions

678,821

483,156

Transfer to tangible fixed assets

(263,107)

(359,644)

Transfer to intangible fixed assets

(618,474)

(830,145)

Transfer to other assets

(21,715)

(45,760)

Số dư cuối năm

611,021

835,496

These are receivables from transfers of shares of Saigon Development and Investment Joint Stock Company
and E Xim Real Estate Joint Stock Company. These receivables mature in 2018 and 2019.
This amount is the receivable from resolving debts of Vietnam Shipbuilding Industry Corporation (Vinashin) in
accordance with guidance of the State Bank of Vietnam and it is amortised to the results of operations until
2017. The movement of this receivable during the year is related to the amortisation for the year ended 31
December 2015.

31/12/2014

Demand deposits
*

Demand deposits in VND

81,426

90,775

*

Demand deposits in foreign currencies

13,571

13,991

Term deposits
*

Term deposits in VND

4,565,000

23,570,000

*

Term deposits in foreign currencies

2,443,780

5,879,500

7,103,777

29,554,266

Borrowings
*

Borrowings in VND

*

Borrowings in foreign currencies

-

3,850,000

829,540

7,639,074

829,540

11,489,074

7,933,317

41,043,340

17.	Deposits from customers

Movements in the allowance for losses on other assets during the year were as follows:

UNIT: VND million
UNIT: VND million

2015

2014

Opening balance

4,250

-

*

Demand deposits in VND

Allowance made during the year

1,839

48,000

*

Demand deposits in foreign currencies

(89)

(43,750)

6,000

4,250

Allowance reversed during the year
Closing balance
Other assets with credit risk categorised by credit risk group are as follows:

Group 1 - Current debts
Group 2 - Special mention debts
Group 3 - Sub-standard debts
Group 4 - Doubtful debts
Group 5 - Loss debts

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

10,410,868

9,010,250

3,389,012

2,354,544

19,237,732

27,381,978

799,151

1,526,950

Demand deposits

Term deposits
*

Term deposits in VND

*

Term deposits in foreign currencies

Saving deposits
UNIT: VND million

15.

31/12/2015

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

1,537,733

1,923,830

40

211

173

131

53

168

93,365

137,305

1,631,364

2,061,645

*

Saving deposits in VND

53,658,311

49,926,314

*

Saving deposits in foreign currencies

10,075,694

10,181,799

Special-purpose deposits
*

Special-purpose deposits in VND

41,245

27,050

*

Special-purpose deposits in foreign currencies

55,435

26,875

Margin deposits
*

Margin deposits in VND

560,621

434,438

*

Margin deposits in foreign currencies

202,473

501,688

98,430,542

101,371,886

Borrowings from the State Bank of Vietnam
UNIT: VND million
31/12/2015

31/12/2014

542,634

-

2,311

6,613

544,945

6,613

Borrowings from the SBV

132

*

In VND

*

In foreign currencies
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17.	Deposits from customers (continued)

(i)

Movements in bonus and welfare fund during the year were as follows:

Deposits from customers by type of customer and type of business were as follows:

UNIT: VND million
UNIT: VND million

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

Individuals

70,321,728

65,820,637

Joint stock companies, limited liability companies, private companies

17,849,862

24,066,016

State-owned enterprises

5,796,873

7,129,432

100% foreign owned companies

3,971,537

3,847,392

490,542

508,409

98,430,542

101,371,886

Others

18.

Opening balance
Transfer from equity (Note 21)
Appropriation from profit after tax during the year (Note 21)
Utilised during the year
Closing balance

2014

33,327

-

-

51,626

15,000

-

(23,952)

(18,299)

24,375

33,327

20.	Obligations to the State Treasury

Valuable papers issued

UNIT: VND million
UNIT: VND million
31/12/2015

31/12/2014

392

8,378

3,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,392

3,008,378

Certificates of deposit
*

Under 12 months

*

From 5 years and above

2015

UNIT: VND million
31/12/2015

Payables to employees

5,365

3,528

*

Other internal payables

4,659

2,572

(128,948)

20,828

(21,441)

(129,561)

Value added tax

8,496

76,882

(76,069)

9,309

Personal income tax

3,958

62,045

(59,584)

6,419

Foreign contractor tax

-

3,769

(3,769)

-

Other taxes

-

6,062

(6,062)

-

(116,494)

169,586

(166,925)

(113,833)

Corporate income tax

*

				
UNIT: VND million
Opening balance

Movements during the year

Incurred
Corporate income tax
Value added tax

External payables

Closing balance

Paid

2014

*

Payables relating to letters of credit

Movements during the year

31/12/2014

Internal payables

*

Opening balance

Incurred

19.	Other liabilities

134

2015

Personal income tax

Closing balance

Paid

(35,179)

12,712

(106,481)

(128,948)

5,374

49,924

(46,802)

8,496

12,492

69,626

(78,160)

3,958

114,878

109,549

Payable to the SBV relating to interest subsidy program

29,841

29,686

Foreign contractor tax

-

8,685

(8,685)

-

*

Card settlement payables

29,374

25,172

Other taxes

-

4,484

(4,484)

-

*

Taxes payable (Note 20)

15,728

12,454

(17,313)

145,431

(244,612)

(116,494)

*

Payables relating to debts handling

13,666

13,018

*

Remittance payables

11,572

22,728

*

Dividend payable

2,556

2,645

*

Defferred revenue

354

9,725

*

Other payables

33,026

66,721

*

Bonus and welfare fund (i)

24,375

33,327

285,394

331,125
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21.	Capital and reserves
(a)

Statement of changes in equity

UNIT: VND million
Charter capital

Capital for construction,
purchases of fixed
assets

Share premium

Treasury shares

Bonus and
welfare fund

Reserve to
supplement
charter capital

Financial
reserve

Investment and
development
fund

Accumulated
losses

Total

12,355,229

15,396

156,322

-

29,032

511,574

984,322

326

(605,282)

13,446,919

Net profit for the year

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

340,912

340,912

Additional appropriation reserves of previous year

-

-

-

-

69,026

294

588

-

(69,908)

-

Appropriation to statutory reserves

-

-

-

-

-

2,836

5,673

-

(8,509)

-

Purchase of treasury shares

-

-

-

(78,273)

-

-

-

-

-

(78,273)

Dividends

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(491,773)

(491,773)

Utilisation of funds

-

-

-

-

(46,432)

-

-

-

-

(46,432)

Transfer to other liabilities (*)

-

-

-

-

(51,626)

-

-

-

-

(51,626)

12,355,229

15,396

156,322

(78,273)

-

514,704

990,583

326

(834,560)

13,119,727

Net profit for the year

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

39,994

39,994

Additional appropriation to reserves of
previous year

-

-

-

-

-

(32)

(65)

-

97

-

Appropriation to statutory reserves

-

-

-

-

-

2,666

5,334

-

(8,000)

-

Appropriation to bonus and welfare fund

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(15,000)

(15,000)

12,355,229

15,396

156,322

(78,273)

-

517,338

995,852

326

(817,469)

13,144,721

Balance at 1 January 2014
(as restated – Note 41)

Balance at 1 January 2015
(as restated – Note 41)

Balance at 31 December 2015

(*) The bonus and welfare fund was transferred to other liabilities in accordance with the requirements of
Circular No. 10/2014/TT-NHNN dated 20 March 2014 issued by the State Bank of Vietnam from the year ended
31 December 2014.
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21.	Capital and reserves (continued)
(b)

23.

Net fees and commission income

Charter capital

UNIT: VND million
UNIT: VND million
31/12/2014

31/12/2015
Par value

Number of shares

Par value

1,235,522,904

12,355,229

1,235,522,904

12,355,229

1,235,522,904

12,355,229

1,235,522,904

12,355,229

(6,090,000)

(60,900)

(6,090,000)

(60,900)

*

Settlement services

476,699

385,915

*

Cashiering services

33,082

25,161

*

Other services

57,910

43,043

567,691

454,119

Issued share capital
Ordinary shares

Fees and commission expenses

Treasury shares
Ordinary shares
Shares in circulation
Ordinary shares

1,229,432,904

12,294,329

1,229,432,904

12,294,329

All ordinary shares have a par value of VND10,000. Each share is entitled to one vote at meetings
of shareholders of the Bank.
Shareholders are entitled to receive dividends as declared from
time to time. All ordinary shares are ranked equally with regard to the Bank’s residual assets. In
respect of shares bought back by the Bank, all rights are suspended until those shares are reissued.

22.

Net interest and similar income
UNIT: VND million
2015

Loans and advances to customers and loans to other credit
institutions

*

Deposits with other credit institutions

*

Investment securities

*

Guarantee services

*

Other income from credit activities

Deposits from customers and deposits from other credit
institutions

*

Borrowings from other credit institutions

*

Certificates of deposit

*

Other expenses on credit activities

Net interest income
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Settlement and cashiering services

(204,878)

(157,902)

*

Postage and telecommunications

(35,834)

(36,713)

*

Cash handling

(6,766)

(7,626)

*

Agency commission

(12,044)

(8,177)

*

Other services

(16,128)

(15,313)

(275,650)

(225,731)

292,041

228,388

Net fees and commission income

24.

Net gain from trading of foreign currencies
UNIT: VND million

2014

2015

2014

1,318,090

1,467,581

Gain from trading of foreign currencies from
6,669,181

6,304,951

350,262

756,626

1,441,696

1,471,392

111,129

117,528

28,916

31,214

8,601,184

8,681,711

Interest and similar expenses on
*

*

Đã phân loại lại

Interest and similar income from
*

2014

Đã phân loại lại

Fees and commission income

Number of shares

Authorised charter capital

2015

(4,707,171)

(4,959,095)

(93,702)

(501,769)

(375,001)

(390,095)

(27,620)

(2,991)

(5,203,494)

(5,853,950)

3,397,690

2,827,761

*

Spot contracts

*

Gold trading

204,029

284,388

*

Currency derivatives instruments

510,436

268,987

2,032,555

2,020,956

(1,071,600)

(985,402)

Loss from trading of foreign currencies on
*

Spot contracts

*

Gold trading

(209,848)

(253,901)

*

Currency derivatives instruments

(688,392)

(611,399)

(1,969,840)

(1,850,702)

62,715

170,254

Net gain from trading of foreign currencies
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25.
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Net loss from sales of investment securities

28.	Operating expenses
UNIT: VND million
2015

2014

204

-

Expenses on sales of investment securities

(3,147)

-

1. Personnel expenses:

(31,220)

-

In which:

(34,163)

-

Net other income
UNIT: VND million
2015

2014

Đã điều chỉnh/
phân loại lại

Other income
Collections of bad debts previously written-off
Proceeds from disposals of land use rights and other fixed assets
Other income

Net book value of land use rights and other fixed assets disposed
Other expenses
Net other income

63,559

*

Meal allowances

62,881

61,281

*

Health payment

5,316

4,464

*

Allowances payments

4,415

5,039

*

Uniform and labour protection instruments

425

20,357

499,114

488,149

2. Asset expenditure
In which:
*

Rental

200,207

199,576

177,270

181,144

77,361

71,025

10,070

3,319

*

Purchase of tools

41,802

34,035

381,532

160,248

*

Insurance fee

2,474

2,369

3. Document and advertisement expenses

96,354

174,331

4. Insurance for customer deposits

82,193

64,852

5. Meeting and conference expenses

71,147

76,232

6. Utilities expenses

47,020

41,717

7. Provision expenses

45,500

48,000

8. Materials and printing expenses

40,367

36,951

9. Travelling expenses

23,579

21,249

10. Postage and telecommunication expenses

10,948

14,233

11. Professional services

15,017

9,254

12. Other taxes and fees

7,882

6,651

13. Documents and newspapers

7,515

5,433

14. Education and training expenses

3,995

2,495

15. Inspection and examination expenses

2,248

2,698

202,769

106,749

2,304,554

2,048,681

(294,910)

(136,230)

(1,480)

-

(296,390)

(136,230)

85,142

24,018

31

2,282

2,255

Loss from sale of investment in associate

-

(3,716)

Loss from sale of other long-term investments

-

(2,613)

Share of profit under equity method

2,175

11,427

Reversal of allowance for diminution in the value of long-term
investments

1,072

10,368

(9,617)

(40,569)

(4,062)

(22,817)

www.eximbank.com.vn

73,544

Repair and maintenance
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Payments relating to salary

*

2,286

Allowance for diminution in the value of long-term investments

*

127,208

2,308

Capital contribution, long-term investments

794,987

Salary and allowances

305,106

2014

*

1,002,325

*

Depreciation of fixed assets

2015

Available-for-sale equity securities

949,687

*

UNIT: VND million

*

1,148,906

29,721

27.	Loss from capital contribution, share purchase

Dividends/profit distributions from:

2014

Đã phân loại lại

66,356

Other expenses

140

2015

Income from sales of investment securities
Allowance for diminution in the value of investment securities

26.

UNIT: VND million

16. Others
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29.	Allowance expenses for credit losses

(b)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

UNIT: VND million
2015

2014

Allowance for credit losses on deposits with and loans to other
credit institutions (Note 6)

95,000

-

General allowance for credit losses on loans and advances to
customers (Note 9(i))

10,168

22,117

Specific allowance for credit losses on loans and advances to
customers (Note 9(ii))

539,640

631,253

(Reversal)/addition of allowance for general allowance for credit
losses on held-to-maturity securities (Note 10(i))
Allowance for special bonds (Note 10(ii))
Reversal of allowance for special bonds (Note10(ii))
Reversal of provision for off-balance sheet commitments

UNIT: VND million
2015

Profit before tax

Corporate income tax expense

(1,932)

(1,937)

Profit shared from associates under equity method

(2,175)

(11,427)

*

Allowance for investments in associates for consolidation
purpose

11,159

8,355

-

3,716

22,598

29,361

Taxable income

90,472

381,692

Corporate income tax expense during the year

20,645

83,725

183

194

-

(71,207)

20,828

12,712

803,919

183,748

(8,537)

-

*

Loss from disposal of associates

-

(56,444)

*

Non-deductible expenses

1,433,987

825,299

Under provision in prior years
Tax adjustments (*)
Corporate income tax expense

2015

2014

20,645

12,518

183

194

20,828

12,712

-

-

20,828

12,712

Current tax expense

Deferred tax expense

Tax exempt income (dividends)

*

44,625

UNIT: VND million

Under provision in prior years

*

(6,203)

Recognised in the consolidated statement of income

Current year

353,624

Adjustments:

30.	Corporate income tax
(a)

60,822

2014

Đã điều chỉnh lại

(*) This is the adjustment resulting from liquidation of asset transfer contracts during the year.
(c)

Applicable tax rates

The corporate income tax rate applicable to the Bank is 22% for 2014 and 2015, and will be reduced to 20% from
2016.
Eximbank Asset Management Company has to pay income tax at the rate of 20% of taxable profits for 2014 and
2015 because the Company’s revenue is less than VND20 billion in accordance with Circular No. 78/2014/TT-BTC
dated 18 June 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance.
The corporate income tax computation is subject to the review and approval of tax authorities.
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31.

Earnings per share

(a)

Basic earnings per share
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32.	Cash and cash equivalents
UNIT: VND million

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2015 was based on profit attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Bank amounting to VND39,994 million (2014: VND340,912 million) and a weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding of 1,229,432,904 (2014: 1,229,682,643), calculated as follows:
(i)

Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

UNIT: VND million
2015

Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
(ii)

39,994

2014

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

Cash on hand, gold

2,040,749

1,662,045

Balances with the SBV

2,716,264

3,214,967

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions with original
term to maturity of not more than three months

7,817,724

34,885,368

Securities with maturity date within three months from the purchase date

-

600,111

12,574,737

40,362,491

Đã điềuchỉnh lại
340,912

33.

Employees’ benefits

Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

UNIT: VND million
UNIT: Shares
2015

2014

Ordinary shares issued at the beginning of the year

1,229,432,904

1,235,552,904

Effect of treasury shares purchased during the year

-

(5,870,261)

1,229,432,904

1,229,682,643

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at the end of the year
(iii)

2014

6,046

5,429

1. Salary

1,002,325

794,987

2. Bonus

10,865

30,219

3. Other income

62,881

61,281

1,076,071

886,487

Average monthly salary/employee

14

12

Average monthly income/employee

15

14

Total average number of employees during the year
Employees’ remunerations

4. Total income (1+2+3)

Basic earnings per share

UNIT: VND
2015

Basic earnings per share

2015

33

2014

Đã điềuchỉnh lại
277

34.	Type and value of collaterals of received from customers
UNIT: VND million

(b)

Diluted earnings per share

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Bank did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares. Accordingly, the
requirement of presentation of diluted earnings per share is not applicable.

31/12/2015

Inventories

31/12/2014

553,676

1,036,807

109,857,818

95,604,943

Machinery and equipment

15,567,144

5,117,128

Shares and valuable papers

20,909,487

29,358,752

Other assets

25,603,203

16,172,157

172,491,328

147,289,787

Real estates

Except for the low-value assets being valued by the branches, the collaterals are valued by the Asset Valuation
Center of the Bank. For the collaterals (i) with value of VND50 billion or more for loans and advances to related
parties or other parties subject to credit restriction under Article 127 of Law on Credit Institutions, or (ii) with value
of VND200 billion or more, the Bank uses the assets revaluation services of independent revaluation organisation
approved by the Bank’s Chief Executive Officer.
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35.	Contingent liabilities and commitments

UNIT: VND million
UNIT: VND million
31/12/2015

Contractual
amount –
gross

36,219

Lending guarantees

Margin
deposits

Contractual
amount –
net

Contractual
amount –
gross

Margin
deposits

Contractual
amount –
net

-

36,219

34,274

-

34,274

2014

Major shareholders
Interest income
Interest expense
Other related parties (*)
Interest income

946

422

(29,935)

(27,778)

29

5,143

(2,323)

(18,662)

(17,747)

(23,673)

(7,021)

(11,260)

(48,858)

(45,314)

Interest expense
32,350,457

-

32,350,457

22,220,308

Purchase commitments
of foreign currencies

153,212

-

153,212

99,992

-

99,992

*

Sale commitments of
foreign currencies

358,369

-

358,369

867,519

-

867,519

*

Commitments on
currency swap
transactions

31,838,876

-

31,838,876

21,252,797

Letters of credit

4,047,921

(190,929)

3,856,992

5,247,509 (343,712)

4,903,797

Other guarantees

3,228,650

(159,721)

3,068,929

3,676,371 (132,277)

3,544,094

163,400

-

163,400

39,826,647

(350,650)

39,475,997

*

2015

Thu nhập/(Chi phí)

31/12/2014

Foreign exchange
commitments
In which:

Transactions during the year

Other commitments

155,821

- 22,220,308

- 21,252,797

-

Remunerations for members of the Board of Directors
Remunerations for members of the Board of Supervisors
Salaries and allowances for members of the Board of Management

(*) Other related parties comprise key management personnel including members of the Board of Diretors,
members of the Board of Management, members of the Board of Supervisors, and close members of the
family of these individuals and entities which these individuals directly or indirectly hold significant voting
right or have significant influence over the Group.

155,821

31,334,283 (475,989) 30,858,294

36.	Significant transactions with related parties
At the year-end and during the year, there were the following significant balances and transactions with related parties:
UNIT: VND million
Balances at the year-end

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

Receivables/(payables)
Major shareholders
Deposits from major shareholders

(1,757,538)

(209,691)

Borrowings from major shareholders

(112,100)

(1,560,740)

Deposits with major shareholders

1,759,491

515,005

(58,414)

(219,395)

(7,994)

(1,266)

(257)

7,280

-

20

Other related parties (*)
Deposits from other related parties
Interest payable to other related parties
Loans to other related parties
Interest receivable from other related parties
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37.	Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet commitments by geographical area

UNIT: VND million

As at 31 December 2015

Deposits and
Derivatives
borrowings from other
(Total contractual value)
credit institutions

Loans and advances to
customers – gross

Deposits from
customers

Valuable
papers issued

Contingent
liabilities and credit
commitments

Investment
securities – gross

Capital contribution,
long-term
investments– gross

Deposits with and
loans to other credit
institutions – gross

Domestic

84,759,792

97,145,933

3,000,392

7,309,487

20,135,636

2,031,645

6,246,195

7,260,717

18,362,454

Overseas

-

1,284,609

-

3,303

-

-

1,682,079

672,600

1,389,716

84,759,792

98,430,542

3,000,392

7,312,790

20,135,636

2,031,645

7,928,274

7,933,317

19,752,170

As at 31 December 2014

UNIT: VND million
Deposits and
Derivatives
borrowings from other
(Total contractual value)
credit institutions

Loans and advances to
customers – gross

Deposits from
customers

Valuable
papers issued

Contingent
liabilities and credit
commitments

Investment
securities – gross

Capital contribution,
long-term
investments– gross

Deposits with and
loans to other credit
institutions – gross

Domestic

87,146,543

99,908,798

3,008,378

8,947,640

20,151,866

2,093,368

37,892,565

39,176,866

14,735,301

Overseas

-

1,463,088

-

10,514

-

-

1,570,551

1,866,474

1,054,096

87,146,543

101,371,886

3,008,378

8,958,154

20,151,866

2,093,368

39,463,116

41,043,340

15,789,397

38.	Financial risk management

(ii)

Risk management framework

(a)

Financial risk management

Risk management structure

(i)

Overview

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for identifying and monitoring risks. However, each member shall
be responsible for managing and monitoring risks.

Risk is inherent in the Group’s activities and is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement
and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Group’s
continuing profitability and each individual within the Group is accountable for the risk prevention relating to his
or her responsibilities. The Group is exposed to such types of risk as credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (then
being classified into business and non-business risks). The Group are also subject to various operational risks.
The independent risk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the environment,
technology and industry. The Group’s policy is to monitor those business risks through the Group’s strategic
planning process.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for monitoring the overall risk management process within the Group.
Risk Management Committee

Risk Management Committee consults the Board of Directors in the promulgation of procedures and policies
under their jurisdiction relating to risk management in the Group’s activities.
Risk Management Committee analyses and provides warnings on the safety level of the Group against potential
risks that may affect the Group’s operations and preventive measures in the short-term as well as long-term.
Risk Management Committee reviews and evaluates the appropriateness and effectiveness of the risk
management of procedures and policies of the Group to make recommendations to the Board of Directors on
the improvement of procedures, policies and operations.
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38.	Financial risk management (continued)
(a)

Financial risk management (continued)

(ii)

Risk management framework (continued)
Board of Supervisors

The Board of Supervisors has the responsibility to control the overall risk management process within the Group.
Internal Audit

According to the annual internal audit plan, business processes throughout the Group are audited by the internal
audit function, which examines both the adequacy of the procedures and the Group’s compliance with the
procedures. Internal Audit discusses the results of all assessments with the Board of Management, and reports
its findings and recommendations to the Board of Supervisors.

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations.  Credit risk is related to all financial products: all the items recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet such as deposits, loans, overdrafts, bonds, and other assets; all items are recognised
in off-balance sheet such as derivative instruments, letters of credit and guarantees.  
Credit risk management

The Group creates the credit function structure based on control and balance system, business units are separated
completely from the credit approval unit. Except for delegated authority to Branch Directors in approving small
value and low risk transactions, credit approval is centralised. Policies for significant credit risk are developed and
approved by the Board of Directors.
The Group has established credit risk management and control system, as follows:


Business units are separated completely with the risk management, collateral valuation and credit approval
units.

The Group’s risks are measured using a method which reflects both the expected loss likely to arise in normal
circumstances and unexpected losses, which are an estimate of the ultimate actual loss based on statistical
models.



Business units propose credit facility and perform initial collateral valuations.



Risk management units are independent from units proposing initially credit facility and perform review and
evaluation the proposal of business units.

Monitoring and controlling risks is primarily carried out based on limits established by the Group in compliance
with the SBV’s regulations on safety.  These limits reflect the business strategy and market environment of the
Group as well as the level of risk that the Group are willing to accept.



Except for the approvals for small and low risk transactions, the credit approval authority is centralised at the
Head Office.  All policies and relevant credit risk management regulations are approved accordingly by the
Board of Directors and Board of Management, including:

Risk measurement and reporting systems

Information compiled from all business activities is examined and processed in order to analyse, control and
early identify risks. This information is presented and explained to the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors,
Board of Management, and the Departments’ Heads. The report includes aggregate credit exposure, credit
metric forecasts, limit exceptions, liquidity ratios and risk profile changes.  The Group’s Management assesses
the appropriateness of the allowance for credit losses on a quarterly basis. The Group’s Management receives
a comprehensive risk report quarterly which is designed to provide all the necessary information to assess and
conclude on the risks of the Group.
For all levels throughout the Group, specifically tailored risk reports are prepared and distributed in order to
ensure that all business departments have access to extensive, necessary and up-to-date information.
Risk mitigation

Risk concentrations arise when a number of customers of the Group are engaged in similar business activities,
or activities in the same geographic area, or have similar economic features that would affect the group of
customers’ payment obligations or payment receipt rights when due under changes in economic, political or
other conditions.

Credit Policy;

*

Regulation on debt classification, allowance for credit loss and utilisation of allowance for credit loss;

*

Regulation on collaterals and valuation of collaterals;  

*

Regulation on the internal credit rating system;

*

Regulation on the credit limit for counterparty;

*

Credit procedures;

*

Regulation on procedures and content of reviewing, before, during, and after credit extension; and

*

Regulation on operations, functions and responsibilities of the Risk Handling Committee.



The risk management entities make periodic risk report to the Board of Management, Risk Management
Committee, the Board of Directors, this report includes a report on credit growth, credit quality, credit
distribution according to the new credit risk rating system, allowance for credit losses, problematic credit,
customer review monitoring, loans by sector, credit groups and credit concentration.



Internal audit conducts audit and regular checking to ensure compliance and the effectiveness of policies
and business procedures.

The Group actively uses collaterals to reduce its exposure to credit risk.
Risk concentration

*

These above concentrations indicate the level of sensitivity of the Bank’s performance to the developments of a
particular industry or geographic area.
In order to avoid concentrations of risk, the Group’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to
focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risk are controlled and managed
accordingly. Selective hedging is used within the Group in respect of the industries and other related factors.
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38.	Financial risk management (continued)
(b)

Credit risk (continued)
Collaterals

TCollaterals are valuated by an unit independent from the business units based on the market value at the
valuation time. The collateral valuation is regularly updated.

(i)

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions of the Group neither past due nor impaired are mainly held
with well-known financial institutions.  The Bank’s Board of Management does not foresee any significant credit
risk from these deposits and loans and does not expect that these financial institutions may default and cause
losses to the Group.

The main types of collateral obtained are real estate, machinery and equipment and valuable papers. Guidance
to evaluate movable assets and real estates is being reviewed and updated to comply with the regulations of the
SBV.
Commitments and guarantees

(ii)

To meet the financial needs of customers, the Group enters into various irrevocable commitments and contingent
liabilities.  Commitments and guarantees are classified as credit risk.
Credit risk concentration

Not considering collateral assets, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as
follows:

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers that are neither past due nor impaired are mostly from customers with good
payment records with the Group.
(iii)

The level of credit risk concentration of the Group are managed by customer, according to the geographical and
business sector.

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions

Investment securities

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in government bonds, bonds issued by credit
institutions, bonds issued by listed companies or entities with shares traded in UPCoM market. The Bank’s Board
of Management does not expect any significant financial losses that may arise from investment securities.
An aging analysis of financial assets that are past due but not impaired at the reporting date is as follows:

UNIT: VND million

UNIT: VND million

31/12/2015

31/12/2014

Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam

2,716,264

3,214,967

As at 31 December 2015

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions – gross (i)

7,928,274

39,463,116

84,759,792

87,146,543

Loans and receivables

Receivables - gross

638,927

653,442

Interest and fees receivable

992,436

1,408,202

97,035,693

131,886,270

Loans and receivables

Loans and advances to customers – gross (ii)

Investment securities – gross (iii)
Available-for-sale debt securities

3,922,512

3,631,657

16,178,452

16,518,217

20,100,964

20,149,874

Letters of credit

4,047,921

5,247,509

Other guarantees

3,264,869

3,710,645

7,312,790

8,958,154

124,449,447

160,994,298

Held-to-maturity securities

Overdue

Deposits with and loans to other
credit institutions – gross
Loans and advances to
customers – gross

From 10 to
90 days

From 91 to
180 days

From 181
to 360 days

Over
360 days

Total

-

-

15,550

-

15,550

100,797

21,427

26,335

406,679

555,238

100,797

21,427

41,885

406,679

570,788

Credit commitments – gross
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(c)

38.	Financial risk management (continued)
(b)

Market risks are the risks that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity instruments,
all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market
rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and share prices.

Credit risk (continued)

UNIT: VND million
(i)

Overdue
As at 31 December 2014

From 10
to 90 days

From 91
to 180 days

From 181
to 360 days

Over
360 days

Total

100,116

40,779

62.854

767,551

971,300

211

131

3

-

345

100,327

40,910

62,857

767,551

971,645

Loans and receivables
Loans and advances to customers – gross
Other assets – gross

An aging analysis of financial assets that are past due and impaired at the reporting date is as follows:
UNIT: VND million
Overdue
As at 31 December 2015

From 10
to 90 days

From 91
to 180 days

From 181
to 360 days

Over
360 days

Total

Loans and receivables
Deposits with and loans to other credit
institutions – gross

-

-

-

95,000

95,000

Loans and advances to customers – gross

393,088

160,565

564,981

395,485

1,514,119

40

173

53

93,365

93,631

393,128

160,738

565,034

583,850

1,702,750

Other assets – gross

Market risk

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
the market interest rate. The Group will be exposed to the interest rate risk when there is a gap between maturity
date or interest repricing date of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet commitments in a specific period of time.  
The Group manages this risk by matching the dates of interest rate repricing of assets and liabilities.
Analysis of assets and liabilities based on actual interest rate repricing term
The actual term of interest rate repricing is the remaining period calculated from the reporting date to the next
interest rate repricing term or the maturity term of assets and liabilities whichever is earlier.
The following assumptions and conditions have been adopted in the analysis of actual interest rate repricing
terms of the assets and liabilities of the Group:


Cash, gold; derivatives and other financial assets; long-term investments; other assets (including fixed assets
and other assets) and other liabilities are classified as non-interest bearing items.



Balances with the State Bank of Vietnam are considered as current, interest rate repricing term is therefore
considered within 1 month.



The actual interest rate repricing term of investment debt securities are determined based on the actual
maturity term of each type of securities at the reporting date.



The actual interest rate repricing term of deposits with and loans to other credit institutions; loans and
advances to customers; deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions and deposits from customers
are determined as follows:

UNIT: VND million
Overdue
As at 31 December 2014



From 10
to 90 days

From 91
to 180 days

From 181
to 360 days

Over
360 days

Total

435,555

204,813

492,300

576,074

1,708,742

Other assets – gross

-

-

165

137,305

137,470

435,555

204,813

492,465

713,379

1,846,212

Items which bear fixed interest rate for the entire contractual term: the actual interest rate repricing term
is determined based on the remaining contractual term calculated from the reporting date.

*

Items which bear floating interest rate: the actual interest rate repricing term is determined based on the
next interest rate repricing term subsequent to the reporting date.

The actual interest rate repricing term of valuable papers issued is determined based on the remaining
maturity term of each valuable paper.

The following tables show the Group’s assets and liabilities categorised by the earlier of interest rate repricing
date and contractual maturity date at the reporting date.

Loans and receivables
Loans and advances to customers – gross

*

See Note 34 of the types and value of collaterals received from customers. The Group has not determined and
presented fair values of the collaterals for overdue and impaired financial assets in these financial statements
because there is currently no guidance on determination of fair value under Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
the Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the SBV in case quoted price in the market
is not available.  The fair values of these collaterals may differ from their carrying amounts.
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38.	Financial risk management (continued)
(c)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

nterest rate risk (continued)
As at 31 December 2015

UNIT: VND million
Overdue

Free of interest

Less than
1 month

From 1 to 3 months

From over 3
to 6 months

From over 6
to 12 months

From over 1
to 5 years

Over 5 years

Total

Cash on hand, gold

-

2,040,749

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,040,749

Balances with the SBV

-

-

2,716,264

-

-

-

-

-

2,716,264

110,550

-

7,772,884

44,840

-

-

-

-

7,928,274

-

30,797

-

-

-

-

-

-

30,797

Assets

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions –
gross
Derivatives and other financial assets
Loans and advances to customers – gross (*)

2,069,357

-

39,810,005

15,440,732

13,568,515

11,214,110

2,589,702

67,371

84,759,792

Investment securities – gross

-

6,265,082

2,373,041

-

900,631

3,856,644

6,665,238

75,000

20,135,636

Capital contribution, long-term investments – gross

-

2,031,645

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,031,645

Fixed assets

-

4,740,627

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,740,627

93,631

2,522,528

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,616,159

2,273,538

17,631,428

52,672,194

15.485,572

14,469,146

15,070,754

9,254,940

142,371

126,999,943

Borrowings from the SBV

-

-

518,720

-

2,907

23,318

-

-

544,945

Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions

-

-

7,552,017

381,300

-

-

-

-

7,933,317

Deposits from customers

-

-

50,271,102

18,992,379

12,096,509

8,816,283

8,253,717

552

98,430,542

Valuable papers issued

-

-

392

-

-

-

-

3,000,000

3,000,392

Other liabilities

-

1,795,758

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,795,758

Total liabilities (2)

-

1,795,758

58,342,231

19,373,679

12,099,416

8,839,601

8,253,717

3,000,552

111,704,954

2,273,538

15,835,670

(5,670,037)

(3,888,107)

2,369,730

6,231,153

1,001,223

(2,858,181)

15,294,989

-

7,333,077

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,333,077

2,273,538

23,168,747

(5,670,037)

(3,888,107)

2,369,730

6,231,153

1,001,223

(2,858,181)

22,628,066

Other assets – gross
Total assets (1)
Liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap of balance sheet items [(3)=(1)-(2)]
Interest sensitivity gap of off-balance sheet items (4)
Total interest sensitivity gap [(5)=(3)+(4)]
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38.	Financial risk management (continued)
(c)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

nterest rate risk (continued)
As at 31 December 2014

UNIT: VND million
Overdue

Free of interest

Less than
1 month

From 1 to 3 months

From over 3
to 6 months

From over 6
to 12 months

From over 1
to 5 years

Over 5 years

Total

Cash on hand, gold

-

1,662,045

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,662,045

Balances with the SBV

-

1,524,941

1,690,026

-

-

-

-

-

3,214,967

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions –
gross

-

-

25,323,316

13,689,800

450,000

-

-

-

39,463,116

Derivatives and other financial assets

-

13,435

-

-

-

-

-

-

13,435

2,680,042

-

45,523,196

21,488,015

6,730,116

9,996,073

545,277

183,824

87,146,543

Investment securities – gross

-

4,786,315

1,850,112

-

3,883,166

3,557,777

2,999,496

3,075,000

20,151,866

Capital contribution, long-term investments – gross

-

2,093,368

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,093,368

Fixed assets

-

4,288,671

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,288,671

137,815

3,382,029

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,519,844

2,817,857

17,750,804

74,386,650

35,177,815

11,063,282

13,553,850

3,544,773

3,258,824

161,553,855

Borrowings from the SBV

-

-

-

-

6,613

-

-

-

6,613

Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions

-

6,093

24,731,255

15,343,892

962,100

-

-

-

41,043,340

Deposits from customers

-

-

44,338,096

15,025,027

8,277,305

14,372,538

19,356,093

2,827

101,371,886

Valuable papers issued

-

-

8,378

-

-

-

-

3,000,000

3,008,378

Other liabilities

-

1,595,322

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,595,322

Total liabilities (2)

-

1,601,415

69,077,729

30,368,919

9,246,018

14,372,538

19,356,093

3,002,827

147,025,539

2,817,857

16,149,389

5,308,921

4,808,896

1,817,264

(818,688)

(15,811,320)

255,997

14,528,316

-

(9,113,975)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(9,113,975)

2,817,857

7,035,414

5,308,921

4,808,896

1,817,264

(818,688)

(15,811,320)

255,997

5,414,341

Assets

Loans and advances to customers – gross (*)

Other assets – gross
Total assets (1)
Liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap of balance sheet items [(3)=(1)-(2)]
Interest sensitivity gap of off-balance sheet items (4)
Total sensitivity interest gap [(5)=(3)+(4)]

(*) These balances are calculated on the loan basis instead of client basis.
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38.	Financial risk management (continued)
(c)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

nterest rate risk (continued)

The following table shows the average actual interest rates of interest bearing financial instruments with different
terms and currencies:
As at 31 December 2015

Overdue

Overdue

Less than
1 month

From 1 to 3 months

From over 3
to 6 months

From over 6
to 12 months

From over 1
to 5 years

Trên 5 năm

Assets
Balances with the SBV
*

VND

-

0.60%

-

-

-

-

-

-

*

Foreign currencies

-

0.03%

-

-

-

-

-

-

0.00%

0.33%

5.12%

-

-

-

-

-

-

0.11%

0.11%

1.00%

-

-

-

-

10.30%

-

9.12%

8.91%

9.20%

9.24%

8.83%

8.34%

6.61%

-

4.61%

3.63%

3.54%

3.04%

5.22%

-

-

-

10.03%

-

10.90%

8.96%

7.70%

8.70%

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions
*

VND

*

Foreign currencies

Loans and advances to customers
*

VND

*

Foreign currencies

Investment securities
*

VND

Liabilities
Borrowings from the SBV
*

VND

-

-

5.00%

-

3.50%

3.50%

-

-

*

Foreign currencies

-

-

-

-

2.33%

-

-

-

Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions
*

VND

-

0.33%

5.00%

4.80%

-

-

-

-

*

Foreign currencies

-

0.01%

0.65%

1.57%

-

-

-

-

Deposits from customers
*

VND

-

0.30%

4.98%

6.00%

6.28%

6.17%

6.82%

5.90%

*

Foreign currencies

-

0.10%

0.18%

0.28%

0.33%

0.41%

0.24%

-

-

-

3.01%

-

-

-

-

12.50%

Valuable papers issued
*
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38.	Financial risk management (continued)
(c)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

nterest rate risk (continued)
As at 31 December 2014

Overdue

Overdue

Less than
1 month

From 1 to 3 months

From over 3
to 6 months

From over 6
to 12 months

From over 1
to 5 years

Trên 5 năm

Assets
Balances with the SBV
*

VND

-

0.60%

-

-

-

-

-

-

*

Foreign currencies

-

0.25%

-

-

-

-

-

-

0.00%

0.33%

3.95%

4.11%

4.62%

-

-

-

-

0.11%

1.33%

1.30%

-

-

-

-

12.09%

-

9.05%

9.26%

10.17%

10.27%

9.44%

9.36%

7.80%

-

4.31%

3.26%

4.14%

4.00%

4.10%

-

-

-

4.16%

6.88%

8.03%

10.41%

10.38%

8.90%

-

-

-

-

2.02%

-

-

-

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions
*

VND

*

Foreign currencies

Loans and advances to customers
*

VND

*

Foreign currencies

Investment securities
*

VND

Liabilities
Borrowings from the SBV
*

Foreign currencies

Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions
*

VND

-

0.10%

3.92%

4.16%

-

-

-

-

*

Foreign currencies

-

0.10%

1.20%

1.33%

1.54%

-

-

-

Deposits from customers
*

VND

-

0.30%

4.82%

5.52%

6.44%

7.27%

5.98%

12.40%

*

Foreign currencies

-

0.10%

0.83%

0.70%

0.82%

0.70%

0.85%

-

-

-

5.28%

-

-

-

-

12.50%

Valuable papers issued
*

VND

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The Group did not perform the sensitivity analysis for interest rates as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 due to lack
of input data and information.
(ii)

The followings are the significant exchange rates applied by the Group at the reporting date:

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk incurred from changes in foreign exchange rate to VND, the Group’s accounting currency
which may affect the value of the financial instruments or may cause volatility in the Group’s earnings.  The Group
manages currency risk by setting limits on the level of currency exposure. These limits include open position
limit, open limit on each currency.
The main transactional currency of the Group is VND.   All financial assets and liabilities of the Group are
denominated mainly in VND, partially in USD, EUR and gold.
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Exchange rate as at
31/12/2015

31/12/2014

USD/VND

22,420

21,380

EUR/VND

24,429

25,908

3,220,000

3,483,000

XAU/VND (one tenth of a tael)
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38.	Financial risk management (continued)
(c)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Currency risk (continued)
As at 31 December 2015

UNIT: VND million
VND

USD

Gold

EUR

Other currencies

Total

846,541

518,760

252,049

68,506

354,893

2,040,749

Balances with the SBV

1,607,784

1,108,480

-

-

-

2,716,264

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions – gross

3,515,358

3,789,064

-

289,292

334,560

7,928,274

-

1,334,500

-

169,397

538,666

2,042,563

Loans and advances to customers – gross

74,035,188

10,558,432

83,018

41,295

41,859

84,759,792

Investment securities – gross

20,135,636

-

-

-

-

20,135,636

Capital contribution, long-term investments – gross

2,031,645

-

-

-

-

2,031,645

Fixed assets

4,740,627

-

-

-

-

4,740,627

Other assets – gross

2,564,322

45,451

-

1,986

4,400

2,616,159

109,477,101

17,354,687

335,067

570,476

1,274,378

129,011,709

542,634

2,311

-

-

-

544,945

4,646,426

3,286,742

-

109

40

7,933,317

83,908,777

12,714,618

-

564,665

1,242,482

98,430,542

Derivatives and other financial liabilities

2,011,766

-

-

-

-

2,011,766

Valuable papers issued

3,000,122

270

-

-

-

3,000,392

Other liabilities

1,661,836

131,556

-

380

1,986

1,795,758

Capital and reserves

13,144,721

-

-

-

-

13,144,721

Total liabilities (2)

108,916,282

16,135,497

-

565,154

1,244,508

126,861,441

FX position on-balance sheet [(3)=(1)-(2)]

560,819

1,219,190

335,067

5,322

29,870

2,150,268

FX position off-balance sheet (4)

206,423

(153,954)

(25,760)

855

(26,298)

1,266

FX position on and off-balance sheet [(5)=(3)+(4)]

767,242

1,065,236

309,307

6,177

3,572

2,151,534

Assets
Cash on hand, gold

Derivatives and other financial assets

Total assets (1)
Liabilities and equity
Borrowings from the SBV
Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions
Deposits from customers
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38.	Financial risk management (continued)
(c)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Currency risk (continued)
As at 31 December 2014

UNIT: VND million
VND

USD

Gold

EUR

Other currencies

Total

701,172

315,401

264,683

95,320

285,469

1,662,045

2,106,702

1,108,265

-

-

-

3,214,967

28,187,206

10,910,810

-

77,118

287,982

39,463,116

-

-

-

340,183

1,870,880

2,211,063

Loans and advances to customers – gross

70,612,642

16,135,261

247,620

128,403

22,617

87,146,543

Investment securities – gross

20,151,866

-

-

-

-

20,151,866

Capital contribution, long-term investments – gross

2,093,368

-

-

-

-

2,093,368

Fixed assets

4,288,671

-

-

-

-

4,288,671

Other assets – gross

3,500,579

19,263

-

-

2

3,519,844

131,642,206

28,489,000

512,303

641,024

2,466,950

163,751,483

-

6,613

-

-

-

6,613

Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions

27,510,775

13,532,407

-

115

43

41,043,340

Deposits from customers

86,780,030

11,544,757

-

626,802

2,420,297

101,371,886

930,045

1,267,583

-

-

-

2,197,628

3,005,381

2,997

-

-

-

3,008,378

Assets
Cash on hand, gold
Balances with the SBV
Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions – gross
Derivatives and other financial assets

Total assets (1)
Liabilities and equity
Borrowings from the SBV

Derivatives and other financial liabilities
Valuable papers issued
Other liabilities

1,431,234

153,758

-

208

10,122

1,595,322

Capital and reserves

13,119,727

-

-

-

-

13,119,727

Total liabilities (2)

132,777,192

26,508,115

-

627,125

2,430,462

162,342,894

(1,134,986)

1,980,885

512,303

13,899

36,488

1,408,589

766,752

(758,308)

(6,339)

(6,218)

3,338

(775)

(368,234)

1,222,577

505,964

7,681

39,826

1,407,814

FX position on-balance sheet [(3)=(1)-(2)]
FX position off-balance sheet (4)
FX position on and off-balance sheet [(5)=(3)+(4)]
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(d)

38.	Financial risk management (continued)
(c)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Currency risk (continued)

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group has difficulties in performing obligations for financial liabilities at the
maturity dates. To reduce the liquidity risk, the Group mobilises from various sources beside the basic capital
resources of the Group and the Group should have flexible liquid asset management policies, monitor the future
cash flows and daily liquidity.   The Group also evaluates the expected cash flows and availability of current
collateral assets in case of mobilising more capital.

Below is the analysis of impact to net profit of the Group after consideration for the current foreign exchange rate
and the fluctuations in the past as well as market expectation as at the reporting date.
UNIT: VND million
As at 31 December 2015

USD (strengthening by 5%)

Liquidity risk

Effect to net profit

41,544

EUR (weakening by 6%)

(289)

XAU (weakening by 8%)

(19,301)

Liquidity risk is also limited by holding a large cash balance and cash equivalents under current deposits with
other credit institutions, balances with the SBV and other credit institutions and valuable papers. Safety ratios
that taken into account risk factor are also used to manage liquidity risk.
The maturity of assets and liabilities represents the remaining term of assets and liabilities from the reporting
date to the due date specified in contracts or issuance provisions.
The following assumptions and conditions are applied in analysing the maturity of assets and liabilities of the
Group:


Balances with the SBV is classified as demand deposits, in which statutory reserve deposit is included. The
balance of statutory reserve deposit depends on elements and term of deposits from customers of the Group.



The maturity of deposits with and loans to other credit institutions, derivatives and other financial assets and
loans and advances to customers are defined based on the contractual due date.  The actual maturity date
can be changed as the loan contracts are extended.

UNIT: VND million
As at 31 December 2014

(iii)

Effect to net profit

USD (strengthening by 1%)

9,536

EUR (weakening by 10%)

(599)



The maturity of investment securities is based on the maturity date of each security.

XAU (strengthening by 0.4%)

1,579



The maturity of capital contribution, long-term investments is categorised over 5 years because these
investments do not have exact maturity date and the Group has intention to hold them for long-term.



The maturity of fixed assets is defined by the remaining useful time of assets.



The maturity of deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions and deposits from customers is
defined based on the characteristic of each item or the due date specified in the contracts.  Demand deposits
from other credit institutions and customers are performed as requirement of customers and categorised as
call deposit.  The maturity for loans and term deposits are defined based on contractual maturity date.  In
practice, the actual maturities of those assets and liabilities may be longer than the original contractual term
due to rollover.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the market value of securities decreases due to changes in value of individual
securities. Equity price risk derives from available-for-sale equity investments of the Group.
Available-for-sale equity investments of the Group bear the equity price risk incurred from the uncertainties
in fluctuation of equity price in the future of these securities.   The Group manages the equity price risk by
diversification and prudence in selection of investment securities within the approved limit.
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the effect of equity price risk of the Group is insignificant because the Group
holds insignificant available-for-sale equity investments at the reporting date.
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38.	Financial risk management (continued)
(d)

Liquidity risk (continued)
As at 31 December 2015

UNIT: VND million
Overdue

Current

Overdue over 3 months

Overdue up to 3
months

Up to 1 month

From over 1 to 3
months

From over 3 to 12
months

From over 1 to 5
years

Over 5 years

Total

Cash on hand, gold

-

-

2,040,749

-

-

-

-

2,040,749

Balances with the SBV

-

-

2,716,264

-

-

-

-

2,716,264

110,550

-

7,772,884

44,840

-

-

-

7,928,274

-

-

-

30,797

-

-

-

30,797

1,575,472

493,885

3,663,379

8,338,881

19,523,189

17,099,354

34,065,632

84,759,792

Investment securities – gross

-

-

52,033

-

2,780,275

16,695,648

607,680

20,135,636

Capital contribution, long-term investments – gross

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,031,645

2,031,645

Fixed assets

-

-

96

178

29,680

240,751

4,469,922

4,740,627

93,631

-

1,137,383

12,683

789,040

583,422

-

2,616,159

1,779,653

493,885

17,382,788

8,427,379

23,122,184

34,619,175

41,174,879

126,999,943

Borrowings from the SBV

-

-

518,720

-

26,225

-

-

544,945

Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions

-

-

7,552,017

381,300

-

-

-

7,933,317

Deposits from customers

-

-

50,271,102

18,992,379

20,912,792

8,253,717

552

98,430,542

Valuable papers issued

-

-

392

-

-

-

3,000,000

3,000,392

Other liabilities

-

-

1,575,010

24,375

81,495

114,878

-

1,795,758

Total liabilities (2)

-

-

59,917,241

19,398,054

21,020,512

8,368,595

3,000,552

111,704,954

1,779,653

493,885

(42,534,453)

(10,970,675)

2,101,672

26,250,580

38,174,327

15,294,989

Assets

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions – gross
Derivatives and other financial assets
Loans and advances to customers – gross

Other assets – gross
Total assets (1)
Liabilities

Net liquidity gap [(3)=(1)-(2)]
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38.	Financial risk management (continued)
(d)

Liquidity risk (continued)
As at 31 December 2014

UNIT: VND million
Overdue

Current

Overdue over 3 months

Overdue up to 3
months

Up to 1 month

From over 1 to 3
months

From over 3 to 12
months

From over 1 to 5
years

Over 5 years

Total

Cash on hand, gold

-

-

1,662,045

-

-

-

-

1,662,045

Balances with the SBV

-

-

3,214,967

-

-

-

-

3,214,967

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions – gross

-

-

25,323,316

13,689,800

450,000

-

-

39,463,116

Derivatives and other financial assets

-

-

-

13,435

-

-

-

13,435

2,144,371

535,671

7,056,248

13,051,059

25,237,402

11,795,297

27,326,495

87,146,543

Investment securities – gross

-

-

852,103

-

2,040,943

13,683,820

3,575,000

20,151,866

Capital contribution, long-term investments – gross

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,093,368

2,093,368

Assets

Loans and advances to customers – gross

Fixed assets

-

-

535

441

42,141

184,880

4,060,674

4,288,671

137,604

211

1,472,187

6,034

1,175,145

728,663

-

3,519,844

2,281,975

535,882

39,581,401

26,760,769

28,945,631

26,392,660

37,055,537

161,553,855

Borrowings from the SBV

-

-

-

-

4,409

2,204

-

6,613

Deposits and borrowings from other credit institutions

-

-

24,737,348

15,343,892

962,100

-

-

41,043,340

Deposits from customers

-

-

44,338,096

15,025,027

22,649,843

19,356,093

2,827

101,371,886

Valuable papers issued

-

-

8,378

-

-

-

3,000,000

3,008.378

Other liabilities

-

-

1,393,392

6,625

72,738

122,567

-

1,595,322

Total liabilities (2)

-

-

70,477,214

30,375,544

23,689,090

19,480,864

3,002,827

147,025,539

2,281,975

535,882

(30,895,813)

(3,614,775)

5,256,541

6,911,796

34,052,710

14,528,316

Other assets – gross
Total assets (1)
Liabilities

Net liquidity gap [(3)=(1)-(2)]
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38.	Financial risk management (continued)
(d)

39.	Segment reporting

Fair value versus carrying amount

(a)

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability could be settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date.

Primary segment reporting

Information on primary segment reporting by geographical areas of the Group is presented as following:
UNIT: VND million

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the
consolidated balance sheet at the reporting date, are as follows:
UNIT: VND million

Fair value

Carrying
amount

Fair value

30,797

(*)

13,435

(*)

-

-

254,000

260,913

150,042

(*)

854,894

(*)

15,010,858

(*)

15,180,950

(*)

Categorised as held-to-maturity investments:
*

Government bonds with quoted prices

*

Government bonds without quoted prices

*

Other held-to-maturity securities

The Central
Region

The Southern
Region

Adjustments

Total

Interest income from external
customers

1,080,525

815,229

6,705,430

-

8,601,184

Internal interest income

1,164,138

308,547

9,778,148 (11,250,833)

-

2. Fees and commission income

64,930

22,395

480,366

-

567,691

3. Income from other activities

40,674

21,079

385,238

-

446,991

(887,943)

(226,155)

(4,089,396)

-

(5,203,494)

(1,007,369)

(677,384)

(9,566,080)

11,250,833

-

(21,773)

(13,760)

(141,737)

-

(177,270)

3. Operating expenses

(312,569)

(159,502)

(2,268,222)

-

(2,740,293)

Operating profit before
allowance expenses

120,613

90,449

1,283,747

-

1,494,809

Allowance expenses

(309,987)

(86,680)

(1,037,320)

-

(1,433,987)

(189,374)

3,769

246,427

-

60,822

447,887

243,846

1,349,016

-

2,040,749

Fixed assets

24,638

15,406

4,700,583

-

4,740,627

Other assets

14,822,650

9,672,127

95,435,881

(1,862,359)

118,068,299

I. Income
1. Interest income

Categorised as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:

Derivatives and other financial assets

The Northern
Region

31/12/2014

31/12/2015
Carrying
amount

Year ended 31/12/2015

Categorised as loans and receivables:

II. Expenses
1. Interest expense
Interest expense for external
customers

*

Balances with the SBV

2,716,264

2,716,264

3,214,967

3,214,967

*

Deposits with and loans to other credit institutions

7,833,274

(*)

39,463,116

(*)

*

Loans and advances to customers

83,889,887

(*)

86,123,843

(*)

*

Receivables

633,354

(*)

649,718

(*)

*

Interest and fees receivable

992,436

(*)

1,408,202

(*)

-

-

413,679

429,771

32,680

34,199

-

-

3,922,512

(*)

1,934,700

(*)

Segment (loss)/profit before
corporate income tax

1,992

(*)

1,285,270

(*)

Assets

1,869,834

(*)

1,940,102

(*)

Cash on hand, gold

Categorised as available-for-sale financial assets:
*

Government bonds with quoted prices

*

Shares with quoted prices

*

Government bonds without quoted prices

*

Other available-for-sale securities

*

Capital contribution, long-term investments

Categorised as financial liabilities carried at amortised cost:
*

Borrowings from the SBV

*

Deposits and borrowings from other credit
institutions

*

Internal interest expense
2. Depreciation expenses

(544,945)

(*)

(6,613)

(*)

Liabilities

(7,933,317)

(*)

(41,043,340)

(*)

External payables

(16,215,129)

(5,314,319)

(88,474,440)

94,692

(109,909,196)

Deposits from customers

(98,430,542)

(*)

(101,371,886)

(*)

Internal payables

(230)

-

(9,793)

-

(10,023)

*

Valuable papers issued

( 3,000,392)

(*)

(3,008,378)

(*)

(407,264)

(170,434)

(2,019,185)

811,148

(1,785,735)

*

Interest and fees payable

(1,510,364)

(*)

(1,264,197)

(*)

*

Other liabilities

(244,937)

(*)

(275,619)

(*)

Other liabilities

(*) The Group has not determined fair values of these financial instruments for disclosure in these financial
statements because there is no quoted price in the market for these financial instruments, and currently no
guidance on determination of fair value using valuation techniques under Vietnamese Accounting Standards
or the Vietnamese Accounting System for Credit Institutions stipulated by the SBV and relevant statutory
requirements applicable to financial reporting.  The fair values of these financial instruments may differ from
their carrying amounts.
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39,

Segment reporting (continued)

(a)

Primary segment reporting (continued)

(b)

The Group primarily operates in one business segment which is commercial banking.

UNIT: VND million

40.	Commitments

Year ended 31/12/2014
The Northern
Region

The Central
Region

The Southern
Region

Secondary segment reporting

Adjustments

Total
Restated

(a)

Capital commitments

At the reporting date, the Group had the following outstanding capital commitments approved but not provided
for in the consolidated balance sheet:

I. Income
1. Interest income
Interest income from external
customers

UNIT: VND million
1,052,983

674,790

6,953,938

-

8,681,711

Internal interest income

465,973

114,700

4,429,995

(5,010,668)

-

2. Fees and commission
income

52,666

19,706

381,747

-

454,119

3. Income from other activities

28,351

13,324

288,831

-

330,506

1. Interest expense
Interest expense for external
customers

(723,237)

(219,443)

(4,911,270)

-

(5,853,950)

Internal interest expense

(470,690)

(316,864)

(4,223,114)

5,010,668

-

(22,144)

(15,393)

(143,607)

-

(181,144)

(270,996)

(138,231)

(1,843,092)

-

(2,252,319)

112,906

132,589

933,428

-

1,178,923

(165,945)

(51,525)

(607,829)

-

(825,299)

(53,039)

81,064

325,599

-

353,624

321,818

218,917

1,121,310

-

1,662,045

Fixed assets

22,592

16,857

4,249,222

-

4,288,671

Other assets

16,182,704

8,046,428

131,819,368

(1.853,950)

154,194,550

External payables

(19,483,533)

(5.039,817)

(121,006,409)

99,542

(145,430,217)

Internal payables

(190)

-

(5,296)

-

(5,486)

2,903,567

(3,161,322)

(2,143,308)

811,227

(1,589,836)

3. Operating expenses
Operating profit before allowance expenses
Allowance expenses
Segment (loss)/profit before
corporate income tax

(b)

31/12/2014

122,085

30,729

Lease commitments

At the reporting date, the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases were as
follows:

II. Expenses

2. Depreciation expenses

Approved and contracted

31/12/2015

UNIT: VND million
31/12/2015

31/12/2014

Within one year

159,062

128,263

Over one year to five years

337,312

311,398

30,915

62,475

527,289

502,136

More than five years

Assets
Cash on hand, gold

Liabilities

Other liabilities
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Form B05/TCTD-HN

(a)

41.	Adjustments following inspection conclusion of the State Bank of Vietnam
In accordance with the Inspection Conclusion dated 19 October 2015 issued by the SBV, the Group sold certain
fixed assets (real estates) to E Xim Real Estate Joint Stock Company (“Eximland”) during years from 2010 to 2013
and recognised profits in the consolidated statements of income for those years (2010: VND179,844 million; 2011:
VND363,364 million; 2012: VND477,455 million and 2013: VND95,996 million).  Subsequently, the Group bought
back these assets from Eximland during years from 2011 to 2015. In accordance with this Inspection Conclusion,
the Group has to reverse the profits previously recognised and associated costs to write down the carrying values
of these assets to original values. The Group retrospectively adjusted the corresponding figures for the year ended
31 December 2014. Effects of these adjustments to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014 are as follows:
(a)

Consolidated statement of income
UNIT: VND million

Interest and similar income
Fees and commission income
Other expenses
Operating expenses

Consolidated balance sheet
UNIT: VND million

(b)

8,681,711

8,564,183

454,119

571,647

(421,058)

(421,035)

(2,048,681)

(2,048,704)

UNIT: VND million

Adjustments

31/12/2014
(as restated)

Tangible fixed assets – accumulated
depreciation

(770,488)

547

(769,941)

Intangible fixed assets – cost

4,290,705

(949,112)

3,341,593

Interest and similar income received

Receivables

1,929,895

(5)

1,929,890

Net fees and commission income received

114,010

(948,570)

(834,560)

Other income received
Salaries and operating expenses paid

(b)

2014
(as previously reported)

Consolidated statement of cash flows

31/12/2014
(as previously reported)

Retained profits/(accumulated losses)

2014
(as reclassified)

2014

2014

(as reclassified)

(as previously reported)

9,192,835

9,075,307

228,388

345,916

3,641

3,664

(1,824,719)

(1,824,742)

Consolidated statement of income
UNIT: VND million
2014
(as previously reported after
reclassification –Note 42)

Adjustments

2014
(as restated)

Other expense

(421,058)

284,828

(136,230)

Profit after tax

56,084

284,828

340,912

42.	Corresponding figures
As described in Note 2(f)(ii), effective from 15 February 2015, the Group has adopted Circular 49 for the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements.   Due to the adoption of Circular 49, the presentation of certain
financial statement captions has been changed.  Certain corresponding figures for the year ended 31 December
2014 have been reclassified to conform with current year’s presentation. A comparison of the amounts previously
reported and as reclassified is as follows:

Prepared by

Nguyen Minh Thanh
General Accountant

Reviewed by

Legal representative

Nguyen Ngoc Ha	Tran Tan Loc
Chief Accountant

Acting Chief Executive Officer

31 March 2016

Separate Financial Statements are published on the bank’s website at:
https://www.eximbank.com.vn/home/Static/baocaotaichinh.aspx
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OPERATION Network
as at 31 March 2016

No.
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35

180

Bank’s name

Address

19 Tran Hung Dao, Phan Chu Trinh Ward,
Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi City
Nguyen Du
(Level 1+2) Building No. 76 Mai Hac De, Bui Thi
Transaction Office
Xuan Ward, Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi City
Bach Mai
(Level 2+3) Building No. 134 Bach Mai Street,
Transaction Office
Cau Den Ward, Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi City
Hang Than
18 Hang Than Street, Nguyen Trung Truc
Transaction Office
Ward, Ba Dinh District, Hanoi City
Xuan Dieu
96 Yen Phu, Yen Phu Ward, Tay Ho Dist.,
Transaction Office
Hanoi City
Tay Ho
509B Lac Long Quan Street, Xuan La Ward,
Transaction Office
Tay Ho Dist., Hanoi City
Ly Thuong Kiet
15 Lieu Giai, Lieu Giai Ward, Ba Dinh District,
Transaction Office
Hanoi City
(Levels 1-4) Building No. 2C Thai Phien
Ba Trieu
Street, Le Dai Hanh Ward, Hai Ba Trung
Transaction Office
District, Hanoi City
Level 1 (lot No. 9) Building No. M3-M4, No.
Nguyen Chi Thanh
91A Nguyen Chi Thanh, Lang Ha Ward, Dong
Transaction Office
Da District, Hanoi City
(Levels 1 + 2) HAREC Building, No. 4A Lang
Ha, Thanh Cong Ward, Ba Dinh District,
Ba Dinh Branch
Hanoi City
Trung Yen
143 Trung Kinh, Trung Hoa Ward, Cau Giay
Transaction Office
District, Hanoi City
Lot NV-B30 Nguyen Thi Dinh Street, Trung
Trung Hoa
Hoa Nhan Chinh Urban area, Thanh Xuan
Transaction Office
District, Hanoi City
Cua Dong
(Levels 1,2) No. 152 Khuat Duy Tien, Nhan
Transaction Office
Chinh Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Hanoi City
My Dinh
B1-12 Le Duc Tho, My Dinh Ward, Tu Liem
Transaction Office
District, Hanoi City
Hang Bong
(Level 1) No. 10-12-14 Cua Nam, Cua Nam
Transaction Office
Ward, Hoan Kiem District, Hanoi City
Thang Long
Technology Center - Thang Long Industrial
Transaction Office
Zone, Dong Anh District, Hanoi City
558 Nguyen Van Cu, Gia Thuy Ward, Long
Long Bien Branch
Bien District, Hanoi City
Viet Hung
(Level 1) House No. 567 Ngo Gia Tu, Duc
Transaction Office
Giang Ward, Long Bien District, Hanoi City
Lo Duc
(Level 1) Building No. 73 Lo Duc, Pham Dinh
Transaction Office
Ho Ward, Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi City
(Level 1 + 2) Building No. 91 Nguyen Thai
Nguyen Thai Hoc
Hoc Street, Dien Bien Ward, Ba Dinh District,
Transaction Office
Hanoi City
Dong Xuan
16 Tran Nhat Duat, Dong Xuan Ward, Hoan
Transaction Office
Kiem District, Hanoi City
(Level 1 and Level 5) Building No. 257 Giai
Phong, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District,
Thu Do Branch
Hanoi City
Tran Khat Chan
439 Tran Khat Chan,Thanh Nhan Ward, Hai
Transaction Office
Ba Trung District, Hanoi City
Nguyen Phong Sac
(Level 1) Sannam Building, Dich Vong Hau
Transaction Office
Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
(Ground Floor) Machinco Building, No. 444
Hoang Hoa Tham, Thuy Khe Ward, Tay Ho
Cau Giay Branch
Dist., Hanoi City
Nguyen Co Thach
(Level 1) Building No. 136 Hoang Quoc Viet,
Savings Fund
Nghia Tan Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
(Level 1 + Level 2) Building No. 292 Tay Son,
Dong Da Branch
Trung Liet Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City
Kim Lien
206 Xa Dan Street, Team 27, Phuong Lien
Transaction Office
Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City
Tran Dang Ninh
6C Team 24, Nghia Do Ward, Cau Giay
Transaction Office
District, Hanoi City
Ha Dong
24 Quang Trung Street, Quang Trung Ward,
Transaction Office
Ha Dong District, Hanoi City
Dong Tam
10B2 Tran Dai Nghia Street, Dong Tam Ward,
Transaction Office
Hai Ba Trung District, Hanoi City
32 Tran Phu, Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong
Hai Phong Branch
City
Extra gate of Nomura Industrial Zone, Tan
Nomura Hai Phong Industrial
Tien Commune, An Duong District, Hai
Zone Transaction Office
Phong City
Tran Nguyen Han
274 Tran Nguyen Han, Niem Nghia Ward, Le
Transaction Office
Chan District, Hai Phong
Front side of Street TL359, Phu Lien Hamlet,
Thuy Nguyen
Thuy Son Commune, Thuy Nguyen District,
Transaction Office
Hai Phong City

Ha Noi Branch
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No.

Bank’s name

Address

36

To Hieu
Transaction Office

37

Vinh Branch

172 To Hieu,Trai Cau Ward, Le Chan District,
Hai Phong City
Block 4, Thanh Chuong Town, Thanh
Chuong District, Nghe An
Block 1, Yen Thanh Town, Yen Thanh District,
Nghe An
Kiosk No. 02, Dien Chau Trade Center, Dien
Chau Town, Dien Chau District, Nghe An
Block 3, Do Luong Town, Do Luong District,
Nghe An
80 Thai Phien, Hong Son Ward, Vinh City,
Nghe An
343 Le Duan, Trung Do Ward, Vinh City, Nghe
An

38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50

Thanh Chuong
Transaction Office
Yen Thanh
Transaction Office
Dien Chau
Transaction Office
Do Luong
Transaction Office
Thai Phien
Transaction Office
Nam Vinh
Transaction Office
Bac Vinh
Transaction Office

Quang Ninh Branch
Mong Cai
Transaction Office
Quang Yen
Transaction Office
Uong Bi
Transaction Office
Ha Long
Transaction Office
Cam Pha
Transaction Office

51

Quang Ngai Branch

52

Nguyen Nghiem
Transaction Office

53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62

Da Nang Branch
Thanh Khe
Transaction Office
Hai Chau
Transaction Office
Ham Nghi
Transaction Office
Son Tra
Transaction Office

Hung Vuong Branch
Thuan Phuoc
Transaction Office
Dien Bien Phu
Transaction Office
Cho Con
Transaction Office
Hoa Cuong
Transaction Office

63

Hue Branch

64

Quang Nam Branch

65

Hoi An
Transaction Office

66

Nam Phuoc
Transaction Office

67

Nha Trang Branch

68
69
70

Le Hong Phong
Transaction Office
Quang Trung
Transaction Office
Dien Khanh
Transaction Office

71

Buon Ma Thuot
Branch

72

Buon Ma Thuot Market
Transaction Office

73

Nguyen Tat Thanh
Transaction Office

150 Nguyen Trai, Vinh City, Nghe An
14-16 Tran Hung Dao, Tran Hung Dao Ward,
Ha Long City, Quang Ninh
01 Hung Vuong, Hoa Lac Ward, Mong Cai City,
Quang Ninh
66 Le Loi, Quang Yen Town, Yen Hung District,
Quang Ninh
434 Quang Trung, Quang Trung Ward, Uong Bi
Town, Quang Ninh
(Ground Floor) Buu Dien Ha Long Building,
Team 2, Quarter 2, Bai Chay Ward, Ha Long
City, Quang Ninh
144 Tran Phu, Team 30B, Cam Tay Ward, Cam
Pha Town, Quang Ninh
35A-35B Hung Vuong Avenue, Tran Hung Dao
Ward, Quang Ngai City, Quang Ngai Province
268 Nguyen Nghiem, Nguyen Nghiem Ward,
Quang Ngai City, Quang Ngai Province
48 Tran Phu, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City
203 Ong Ich Khiem, Thach Thang Ward, Hai
Chau District, Da Nang City
484 Hoang Dieu, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau
District, Da Nang City
44A Ham Nghi, Thac Gian Ward, Thanh Khe
District, Da Nang City
794-796 Ngo Quyen, Ward An Hai Bắc,
District Son Tra, Da Nang City
151-153 Nguyen Van Linh, Vinh Trung Ward,
Thanh Khe District, Da Nang City
180-182 Dong Da, Thuan Phuoc Ward, Hai
Chau District, Da Nang City
433 Dien Bien Phu, Hoa Khe Ward, Thanh
Khe District, Da Nang City
336 - 338 Hung Vuong, Vinh Trung Ward, Hai
Chau District, Da Nang City
205 Phan Chau Trinh, Phuoc Ninh Ward, Hai
Chau District, Da Nang City
205 Tran Hung Dao, Ward Phu Hoa, TWard
Hue, tinh Thừa Thien Hue
226 - 228 Phan Chu Trinh, Tam Ky City, Quang
Nam Province
226 - 228 Phan Chu Trinh, Tp.Tam Kỳ,
Quảng Nam
22 Tran Hung Dao, Cam Pho Ward, Hoi An
City, Quang Nam Province
National Road No. 1A, Long Xuyen 1
Residential Area, Nam Phuoc Town, Duy
Xuyen District, Quang Nam Province
63 Yersin, Phuong Sai Ward, Nha Trang City,
Khanh Hoa Province
584 Le Hong Phong, Nha Trang City, Khanh
Hoa Province
61A Quang Trung, Loc Tho Ward, Nha Trang
City, Khanh Hoa Province
246 Lac Long Quan, Dien Khanh Town, Dien
Khanh District, Khanh Hoa Province
114-116 Phan Boi Chau, Buon Ma Thuot City,
Daklak Province
Kiosk No. C21 Buon Ma Thuot Market, Thong
Nhat Ward, Buon Ma Thuot City, Daklak
Province
316 Nguyen Tat Thanh, Tan Lap Ward, Buon
Ma Thuot City, Daklak Province

No.
74
75
76
77
78
79
80

Bank’s name

Address

Phan Chu Trinh
Transaction Office
Buon Ho
Transaction Office
Le Duan
Transaction Office

240 Phan Chu Trinh, Tan Loi Ward, Buon Ma
Thuot City, Daklak Province
327 Hung Vuong, Buon Ho Town, Daklak
Province
420 Le Duan, Ea Tam Ward, Buon Ma Thuot
City, Daklak Province
2D-2D/1-2E Nguyen Van Troi, Ward 1, Da Lat
City, Lam Dong Province
Lot A7 Suong Mai Planning Area, Ward 9, Da
Lat City, Lam Dong Province
11 De Tham, Ward 1, Bao Loc Town, Lam Dong
Province
25 Thong Nhat, Lien Nghia Town, Duc Trong
District, Lam Dong Province
223 Ha Huy Giap, Quarter 4, Quyet Thang
Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province
881 National Road No. 15, Tam Hiep Ward,
Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province
No. 5/1E National Road No. 20, Vo Dong 1
Hamlet, Gia Kiem Commune, Thong Nhat
District, Dong Nai Province
122/5 Quarter 9,Tan Bien Ward, Bien Hoa
City, Dong Nai Province
118 An Chu Hamlet, Trang Bom District,
Dong Nai Province
National Road No. 51A, team 19, Van Hai
Area, Long Thanh Town, Long Thanh District,
Dong Nai Province
245 Hung Vuong, Residential Area 5, Xuan
Hoa Ward, Long Khanh Town, Dong Nai
Province
244 Binh Duong Avenue, Phu Hoa Ward, Thu
Dau Mot City, Binh Duong Province
01 Team 1, Khanh Thanh Quarter, Tan Phuoc
Khanh Ward, Tan Uyen Town, Tan Uyen
District, Binh Duong Province
499 Nguyen Trai, Lai Thieu Town, Thuan An
District, Binh Duong Province
Binh Minh 2 Quarter, Di An Ward, Di An Town,
Binh Duong Province
C4-o16 Quarter I, Street DA1-1-Rupby Land,
My Phuoc Town, Ben Cat District, Binh
Duong Province
Lot G22 Ground Floor , AEON CANARY
Building, Binh Duong Avenue, Binh Hoa
Ward, Thuan An Town, Binh Duong Province
43 Tran Hung Dao, Ward 1, Vung Tau City, Ba
Ria - Vung Tau Province
112 – 114 Bach Dang, Phuoc Trung Ward, Ba
Ria Town, Ba Ria Vung Tau Province
27 National Road No. 51, Phu My Town, Tan
Thanh District, Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province
513 Nguyen An Ninh, Nguyen An Ninh Ward,
Vung Tau City, Ba Ria Vung Tau Province
286 (T17) - Team 8, Tan Phuoc Hamlet,
Phuoc Tinh Commune, Long Dien, Ba Ria Vung Tau Province
270 Hung Vuong, Ngai Giao Town, Chau Duc
District, Ba Ria Vung Tau Province
(Ground Floor, Levels 1 and 2) ITC Dong Xoai,
No. 1029 Phu Rieng Do, Dong Xoai Town,
Binh Phuoc Province
(Level 1 - Level 7) Building No. 229 Dong
Khởi, Ben Nghe Ward, District 1, HCMC
155A - 155B Dien Bien Phu, Ward 15, Binh
Thanh District, HCMC
2-4-6 Street No. 9A, Trung Son Residential
Area, Binh Hung Commune, Binh Chanh
District, HCMC
(Ground Floor) Building No. 141 Nguyen Du,
Ward Ben Thanh, District 1, HCMC

Da Lat Branch
Chi Lang
Transaction Office
Bao Loc
Transaction Office
Duc Trong
Transaction Office

81

Dong Nai Branch

82

Bien Hoa
Transaction Office

83

Gia Kiem
Transaction Office

84
85

Tan Bien
Transaction Office
Trang Bom
Transaction Office

86

Long Thanh
Transaction Office

87

Long Khanh
Transaction Office

88

Binh Duong Branch

89

Tan Phuoc Khanh
Transaction Office

90
91

Lai Thieu
Transaction Office
Di An
Transaction Office

92

My Phuoc
Transaction Office

93

Binh Duong Canary
Transaction Office

94

Ba Ria - Vung Tau
Branch

95
96
97

Ba Ria
Transaction Office
Tan Thanh
Transaction Office
Nguyen An Ninh
Transaction Office

98

Phuoc Tinh
Transaction Office

99

Ngai Giao
Transaction Office

100

Binh Phuoc Branch

101

HCMC Branch

102

Hang Xanh
Transaction Office

103

Trung Son
Transaction Office

104
105
106
107
108

Tao Dan
Transaction Office
Le Loi
Transaction Office
Minh Khai
Transaction Office
Truong Dinh
Transaction Office
Ben Thanh
Transaction Office

08 Le Loi, Ben Nghe Ward, Q1, HCMC
(Ground Floor) Building No. 179EF Cach Mang
Thang 8, Ward 5, District 3, HCMC
(Ground Floor) Building No. 24B Truong
Dinh, Ward 6, District 3, HCMC
36-38 Ngo Duc Ke, Ben Nghe Ward, District
1, HCMC

No.

Bank’s name

Address

109

Thanh Da
Transaction Office

110

Bui Thi Xuan
Transaction Office

111

Van Thanh
Transaction Office

112

Cho Lon Branch

629-631 Xo Viet Nghe Tinh, Ward 26, Binh
Thanh District, HCMC
(Ground Floor + Mezzanine) Building No.
122A-B-C Bui Thi Xuan, Pham Ngu Lao Ward,
District 1, HCMC
(Ground Floor + part of Level 1) No. 85 Street
D2, Ward 25, Binh Thanh District, HCMC
141 Nguyen Chi Thanh, Ward 9, District 5,
HCMC

113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146

Ly Thai To
Transaction Office
Nhat Tao
Transaction Office
District 6
Transaction Office
Kim Bien
Transaction Office
Phu Tho
Transaction Office
Hong Bang
Transaction Office
Hung Dao
Transaction Office
An Dong
Transaction Office
District 8
Transaction Office

291 Ly Thai To, Ward 9, District 10, HCMC
410 Nguyen Tri Phuong, Ward 4, District 10,
HCMC
41 Hau Giang, Ward 2, District 6, HCMC
161 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 13, District
5, HCMC
286 Ly Thuong Kiet, Ward 14, District 10,
HCMC
258 Hong Bang, Ward 15, District 5, HCMC
466 Tran Hung Dao, Ward 2, District 5, HCMC
265 Tran Phu, Ward 8, District 5, HCMC
390-392 Pham Hung, Ward 5, District 8, HCMC

Hoa Binh Branch

78 Nguyen Trai, Ward 3, District 5, HCMC

Hoa Hung
Transaction Office
Ky Hoa
Transaction Office
Dong Khanh
Transaction Office

138 To Hien Thanh, Ward 15, District 10,
HCMC
773 Le Hong Phong (extended), Ward 12,
District 10, HCMC

Tan Dinh Branch

78 Tran Quang Khai, Tan Dinh Ward, District
1, HCMC
250 Nguyen Thai Son, Ward 4, Go Vap
District, HCMC
11A-11B Nguyen Thi Minh Khai, Ben Nghe
Ward, District 1, HCMC
126 Nguyen Oanh, Ward 7, Go Vap District,
HCMC
164 Ho Van Hue, Ward 9, Phu Nhuan District,
HCMC
130 Phan Dinh Phung, Ward 2, Phu Nhuan
District, HCMC
(Ground Floor + Mezzanine + Level 2) Building
No. 136-138 Le Thi Hong Gam, Nguyen Thai
Binh Ward, District 1, HCMC
14R-S Quoc Huong, Thao Dien Ward, District
2, HCMC

Nguyen Thai Son
Transaction Office
Ben Nghe
Transaction Office
Go Vap
Transaction Office
Ho Van Hue
Transaction Office
Phan Dinh Phung
Transaction Office

Sai Gon Branch
Thao Dien
Transaction Office
Vo Van Tan
Transaction Office
DaKao
Transaction Office
Nguyen Cong Tru
Transaction Office
Ben Chuong Duong
Transaction Office
Truong Son
Transaction Office
Phan Xich Long
Transaction Office

Thu Duc Branch
Linh Xuan
Transaction Office
Phuoc Long
Transaction Office
District 2
Transaction Office
Le Van Ninh
Transaction Office
Tam Binh
Transaction Office
District 9
Transaction Office

81 Bui Huu Nghia, Ward 5, District 5, HCMC

365 Vo Van Tan, Ward 5, District 3, HCMC
23A-B Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward Da Kao,
District 1, HCMC
130 Nguyen Cong Tru, Nguyen Thai Binh
Ward, District 1, HCMC
327 Ben Chuong Duong, Cau Kho Ward,
District 1, HCMC
39B Truong Son, Ward 2, Tan Binh District,
HCMC
(Ground Floor) Building No. 05 Phan Xich
Long, Ward 2, Phu Nhuan District, HCMC
147A Vo Van Ngan, Linh Chieu Ward, Thu Duc
District, HCMC
76 National Road No. 1K, Quarter 3, Linh
Xuan Ward, Thu Duc District, HCMC
497 Do Xuan Hop, Phuoc Long B Ward,
District 9, HCMC
08 Tran Nao, Binh An Ward, District 2, HCMC
12 Le Van Ninh, Linh Tay Ward, Thu Duc
District, HCMC
141 National Road No. 1A, Tam Binh Ward,
Thu Duc District, HCMC
35 Le Van Viet, Hiep Phu Ward, District 9,
HCMC

181

OPERATION Network
as at 31 March 2016 (continued)

No.

Bank’s name

Address

147

Cong Hoa Branch

(Ground Floor + Mezzanine) No. 19 Cong
Hoa, Ward 12, Tan Binh District, HCMC
230-232 Nguyen Son, Phu Tho Hoa Ward, Tan
Phu District, HCMC
379-381 Truong Chinh, Tan Thoi Nhat Ward,
District 12, HCMC
150/3 Nguyen Anh Thu, Trung Chanh 2
Hamlet, Trung Chanh Commune, Hoc Mon
District, HCMC
509 Truong Chinh, Ward 14, Tan Binh District,
HCMC
156 Pham Van Hai, Ward 3, Tan Binh District,
HCMC
307 Nguyen Van Troi, Ward 1, Tan Binh
District, HCMC
110-112-114 Cho Lon, Ward 11, District 6,
HCMC
611-611ALuy Ban Bich, Phu Thanh Ward, Tan
Phu District, HCMC
A29/25 National Road No. 50, Binh Hung
Commune, Binh Chanh District, HCMC
141-141A Street No. 1, Binh Tri Dong B Ward,
Binh Tan District, HCMC
54 Go Dau, Tan Quy Ward, Tan Phu District,
HCMC
10 Kinh Duong Vuong, Ward 13, District 6,
HCMC
476-478 Kinh Duong Vuong, An Lac Ward,
Binh Tan District, HCMC
Part of Ground Floor + Part of Mezzanine)
Vinamilk Tower - No. 10 Tan Trao, Tan Phu
Ward, District 7, HCMC
1469 Nguyen Van Linh, My Toan I QuarterH3, Tan Phong Ward, District 7, HCMC

148
149
150
151
152

Nguyen Son
Transaction Office
An Suong
Transaction Office
Trung Chanh
Transaction Office
Vo Thanh Trang
Transaction Office
Pham Van Hai
Transaction Office

153

Tan Son Nhat Branch

154

Binh Phu Branch

155
156
157
158

Tan Phu
Transaction Office
Binh Chanh
Transaction Office
Binh Tri Dong
Transaction Office
Go Dau
Transaction Office

159

Binh Tan Branch

160

An Lac
Transaction Office

161

Phu My Hung Branch

162
163

Tan Phong
Transaction Office
Pham The Hien
Transaction Office

164

District 3 Branch

165

District 4 Branch

166
167
168

Khanh Hoi
Transaction Office
Thi Nghe
Transaction Office
Ly Tu Trong
Transaction Office

169

District 7 Branch

170

Phu My
Transaction Office

171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178

Phu Xuan  
Transaction Office
Nguyen Thi Thap
Transaction Office

District 10 Branch
Thanh Thai
Transaction Office
Le Van Sy
Transaction Office
Ban Co
Transaction Office
Van Hanh
Transaction Office
Ba Thang Hai
Transaction Office

No.

Bank’s name

Address

179

Minh Phung
Transaction Office

90 Minh Phung, Ward 5, District 6, HCMC

180

District 11 Branch

31-33-27/1 Au Co, Ward 14, District 11, HCMC

181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194

Dam Sen
Transaction Office
Phu Lam
Transaction Office
Tan Binh
Transaction Office
Bac Hai
Transaction Office
Au Co
Transaction Office

Can Tho Branch
Phong Dien
Transaction Office
Cai Rang
Transaction Office
An Phu
Transaction Office
Co Do
Transaction Office
Hung Loi
Transaction Office

Tay Do Branch
Tra Noc
Transaction Office
O Mon
Transaction Office
An Nghiep
Transaction Office

77-79 Le Loi, Ward 1, My Tho City, Tien Giang
Province

Cai Lay
Transaction Office
Ap Bac
Transaction Office

Thot Not
Transaction Office

197

Long An Branch

198

An Giang Branch

199

Tan Chau
Transaction Office

200

Phu Tan
Transaction Office

202
203
204

61 Thanh Thai, Ward 14, District 10, HCMC

Lot 1 Row A5 Phan Van Tri, Phong Dien Town,
Phong Dien District, Can Tho City
171 National Road No. 1A, Le Binh Ward,Cai
Rang District, Can Tho City
87 Street 30/4, Xuan Khanh Ward, Ninh Kieu
District, Can Tho City
21-22 Ha Huy Giap, Thoi Thuan Hamlet, Co
Do Town, Co Do District, Can Tho City
221A Street 3/2, Hung Loi Ward, Ninh Kieu
District, Can Tho City
Lo P+R Tran Van Kheo, Cai Khe Ward, Ninh
Kieu District, Can Tho City

My Tho Branch

196

201

1115 Cach Mang Thang 8, Ward 7, Tan Binh
District, HCMC
02 Bis Cuu Long, Bac Hai Housing
Compound, Ward 15, District 10, HCMC
344-346 Au Co, Ward 10, Tan Binh District,
HCMC
08 Phan Dinh Phung, Ninh Kieu District, Can
Tho City

Chau Doc
Transaction Office
Long Xuyen
Transaction Office
Chau Phu
Transaction Office

195

(Level 1 - Level 3) Building No. 21 Ky Dong,
Ward 9, District 3, HCMC
Building H2 Hoang Dieu Street, Ward 8,
District 4, HCMC
117 - 117A Xo Viet Nghe Tinh, Ward 17, Binh
Thanh District, HCMC
232 Ly Tu Trong, Ben Thanh Ward, District 1,
HCMC.
849 Huynh Tan Phat, Phu Thuan Ward,
District 7, HCMC
07 Lot O extended Hoang Quoc Viet, Phu
My Residential area, Phu My Ward, District
7, HCMC
6/8 Quarter 5, Nha Be Town, Nha Be District,
HCMC
527 Nguyen Thi Thap, Tan Phong Ward,
District 7, HCMC
65-65A & 63/6 Street 3/2, Ward 11, District 10,
HCMC

73 Thuan Kieu, Ward 12, District 5, HCMC

37 Le Hong Phong, Binh Thuy Ward, Binh
Thuy District, Can Tho City
292-293 National Road No. 91, O Mon
District, Can Tho City
174 Tran Hung Dao, Ninh Kieu District, Can
Tho City
568 National Road No. 91, Long Thanh A
Area, Thot Not Ward, Thot Not District, Can
Tho City
42 Tra Quy Binh, Ward 2, Tan An City, Long
An Province
46 Hai Ba Trung, My Long Ward, Long Xuyen
City, An Giang Province
46 Thoai Ngoc Hau, Tan Chau Town, An Giang
Province
Parcel No. 7125, Map No. 02 - Trung Hoa
Hamlet, Tan Trung Commune, Phu Tan
District, An Giang Province
56-58-60 Nguyen Van Thoai, Chau Phu A
Ward, Chau Doc City, An Giang Province
3/4Ton Duc Thang, My Binh Ward, Long
Xuyen City, An Giang Province
21 Tran Khanh Du, Chau Phu District, An Giang
Province

721 Pham The Hien, Ward 4, District 8, HCMC

42 Vo Van Tan, Ward 6, District 3, HCMC

377A Minh Phung, Ward 10, District 11, HCMC

619 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward 2, District 3,
HCMC
373 Su Van Hanh (extended), Ward 12,
District 10, HCMC

206
207

Bac Lieu Branch

41 Street 30/4, Region 2, Cai Lay Town, Tien
Giang Province
366 Ap Bac, Ward 5, My Tho City, Tien Giang
Province
477 Tran Phu, Ward 7, Bac Lieu City, Bac Lieu
Province

530 Street 3/2, Ward 14, District 10, HCMC

208

Kien Giang Branch

02-04 Pham Hong Thai, Vinh Thanh Van
Ward, Rach Gia City, Kien Giang Province

213 - 215 Le Van Sy, Ward 13, District 3, HCMC
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